

2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

CITY OF DETROIT
BOARD OF POLICE COMMISSIONERS MEETING
May 9, 2024 at 6:30 P.M.

1 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Good evening, ladies and
2 gentlemen. Again, I'm Commissioner Linda D. Bernard. I
3 represent the 2nd District, and as you know, part of this
4 District is in my District, District 2, as well. It's a
5 pleasure to see you all this evening, and I look forward
6 to hearing from many of you through public comment. As
7 you know, if you want to speak during public comment and
8 you have 2 minutes, you have to give this gentleman to my
9 immediate right here, a piece of paper. There should be
10 pieces of paper there, or we have them at the front desk.
11 Okay? So just put your name on it. We don't need any
12 other identifying information, just who you are to speak,
13 and you'll be given that opportunity to speak. As you can
14 see, we do not have a quorum yet, but we're going to
15 start with the information items related to the
16 commission. So as not to hold you up unduly on this rainy
17 Thursday evening, I'd like to open the meeting, call the
18 meeting to order, and I'd request that Chaplain DeShante
19 Ervin Sr., provide us with that invocation. And I'd ask
20 everyone to please be silent and or bow your head. Thank
21 you.

22 CHAPLAIN ERVIN: Amen. Heavenly Father, we thank you
23 for this another day, a day that you have allowed us to
24 gather in this place. We come lifting up before you this
25 evening, our city, ask that you continue to watch over it

1 and keep it safe. Lift up our mayor before you and the
2 City Council and our police chief, and all the many
3 officers that are on patrol, we ask that you continue to
4 watch over them. Cover this board of commissioners
5 tonight, God, and continue to bless them and watch over
6 them. Touch this meeting and allow the agenda that is
7 already set forth to be accomplished tonight. Bless the
8 people that are here and allow this meeting to go forth
9 according to your will. In Jesus' name we pray. Amen.

10 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Amen. The next item on the
11 agenda that does not require a quorum to be present is
12 the board secretary's report. The gentleman immediately
13 to my right, Mr. Robert Brown for your information, has
14 been with the commission for more than 20 years. He is
15 currently the Acting Board Secretary. Mr. Brown.

16 MR. BROWN: Madam Chair, there are currently 7
17 incoming correspondence under my report. The resignation
18 of Mr. Roy Gamble to administrative leave without pay
19 ADPOA grave grievance, for your request. And last but not
20 least, OCI weekly inventory report.

21 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Thank you Mr. Brown. I'd like
22 to indicate that we're being joined by my sister
23 Commissioner Tamara Liberty Smith and she does represent
24 this District in its entirety. Ms. Smith, it's good to
25 see you this evening. The next item on the agenda will be

1 the Community Impact Report by Reverend Jerome Warfield,
2 who is also the head of our Office of the Chief
3 Investigator. Mr. Warfield.

4 CI WARFIELD: Good evening, Madam Chair, and thank
5 you so very much.

6 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Good evening.

7 CI WARFIELD: I want to give an update on where we
8 are a year later from coming to the Office of the Chief
9 Investigator. Last week we celebrated our one year
10 employment there with the Office of the Chief
11 Investigator. So I want to give some highlights. In your
12 binder, you do have the numbers for the month of April.
13 We'll go over some of those, but I want to talk about
14 some of the challenges and some of the progress, a great
15 deal of progress that we've been able to make during this
16 time period.

17 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Please feel free to speak
18 directly to our audience. Thank you.

19 CI WARFIELD: Thank you, ma'am. As always, I always
20 like to mention that the mission of the Office of the
21 Chief Investigator is to fairly effectively and
22 objectively receive, investigate, and make
23 recommendations regarding the complaints concerning the
24 Detroit Police Department and its personnel. And it is
25 the goal of the Office of the Chief Investigator to

1 assist in improving the quality of law enforcement
2 services by instilling citizen confidence in the
3 integrity of the Detroit Police Department. One of the
4 things we want to do is just highlight some of the things
5 that we were able to accomplish within these last 12
6 months. We are very happy and pleased that we have hired
7 a number of new investigators. As a matter of fact, by
8 the end of this month, we should be at full capacity as
9 it relates to our investigators. We should have 23
10 investigators. We've been operating on average with about
11 12 investigators in our office, so we've been at 50, just
12 under 50%, we're right at 50%, and so by the end of this
13 month, we should be at full capacity.

14 We also, in an effort to make sure that we wanted to
15 be more efficient, we created and implemented an
16 automated report form that reduced the time to actually
17 type our reports from 7 hours to about an hour and a
18 half. And that makes it a lot easier for our
19 investigators, not only to get their report done and
20 finished on time, but also to start working on the very
21 next report. In addition to that, we started and
22 developed a timeliness initiative plan to make sure that
23 we are addressing those concerns. That came out of the
24 Office of the Inspector General's report. When we came
25 into the office a year ago, there were four

1 investigations going on related to the Office of the
2 Chief investigator, and one of those investigations is
3 still underway, but we've already started to address a
4 number of those concerns from those investigations and
5 make improvements.

6 Additionally, we've dedicated a backlog group of the
7 new investigators who are doing just an outstanding job
8 in tackling the backlog cases in our offices. That came
9 from the Office of the Inspector General. In their
10 report, they indicated that there were 705 cases that
11 were closed, but yet not fully investigated. We reopened
12 all of those 705 cases. We sent letters out to all 705 of
13 those constituents, and we are in the process of
14 reinvestigating those cases. And then we are also in
15 final negotiations now for a new case management system.
16 We are told that sometime in June, we are hoping that our
17 Wing Swept Case Management System will be before the City
18 Council, and we will be able to even add more
19 efficiencies in our office as it relates to how we are
20 processing our investigators. I mean, processing our
21 cases.

22 I just want to give you an overview of our staff
23 right now. Right now we have 3 supervising investigators,
24 4 senior investigators, 1 quality assurance reviewer and
25 that person makes sure that our cases are nice and

1 accurate before they come to the board. And as of today's
2 date, we have 18 investigators, and we're expecting 6
3 more to come on board by the end of this month. When we
4 look at our April numbers, our April numbers are actually
5 trending. Well, really the first 4 months of this year
6 are trending higher than they were last year, at the
7 exact same period of time. Last year we received a total
8 of 442 citizen complaints, and this time last year we saw
9 335 allegations. This year, the numbers are a little bit
10 higher. We've seen 575 citizen complaints, and out of
11 those 575 citizen complaints, we've closed 189 cases this
12 year alone.

13 So our investigators are working extremely hard to
14 make sure that we leverage all of the resources that we
15 can moving forward. Right now to date, as of the end of
16 April, we have 1,910 total cases in our office. Of those
17 1,910 cases, 375 of those are current, meaning they're
18 between zero and 90 days, and 1,535 cases are what's
19 considered backlog. And of course, included in that
20 backlog figure are the number of cases that came back to
21 us that we had to reopen from the office of the Inspector
22 General. So, all in all, I believe that we are certainly
23 moving in the right direction. We're making significant
24 progress, ma'am, and to the citizens, we're making
25 significant progress to make sure that all complaints and

1 concerns are being addressed appropriately in the office.

2 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Thank you very much, Reverend
3 Warfield. Ladies and gentlemen, I'd like to acknowledge
4 the presence of 3 additional commissioners who've joined
5 us. First and foremost, our Chairperson Mr. Pressley, to
6 my immediate left next to him is our Vice Chairperson,
7 Tamara Liberty Smith, and next to Tamara is Jesus
8 Hernandez, also a member of the Board of Police
9 Commissioners. We still don't have a quorum, but the
10 Chairman is going to take over now, and thank you for
11 your attention. CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you so very
12 much, Commissioner Bernard for leading our meeting this
13 far. And again to each of you who've come out today, we
14 don't yet have a quorum, and so we remain in our amended
15 agenda. And because we don't have a quorum, we can't ask
16 any questions of like for the Chief Investigator. And so
17 we'll return to that section once we do indeed have a
18 quorum. Moving forward with our amended agenda, we'll
19 receive our announcements from our Acting Secretary.

20 MR. BROWN: Yeah, good afternoon, Mr. Chair.

21 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Good afternoon.

22 MR. BROWN: The next BOPC meeting will be Thursday,
23 May 16th, 2024, 3:00 PM, which will take place at Detroit
24 Public State, the headquarters 1301 Third Street. The
25 next community meeting would be Thursday, June 13th at

1 6:30 PM with the 7th Precinct hosting with their location
2 to be determined. The monthly committee meetings: Policy
3 Committee meeting meets Tuesday, May 14th at 5:00 PM;
4 Citizen Complaint Committee meeting meets Tuesday, May
5 21st at 5:00 PM. All those meetings take place at Detroit
6 Public Safety headquarters, and you can also view them on
7 Zoom. Announcements.

8 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you so very much for
9 those announcements. And again, noting what we can and
10 cannot do. We can move forward at this moment to provide
11 certificates for those who we are honoring and
12 appreciating, although we can't move forward with the
13 resolutions certificates, we can move forward at this
14 time. And so I'll turn that over to Vice Chair Tamara,
15 Liberty Smith.

16 VICE CHAIR SMITH: Good afternoon.

17 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Good afternoon.

18 VICE CHAIR SMITH: I am Vice Chair Tamara Liberty
19 Smith, representing District 1, over at the 8th Precinct.
20 Today, I have 2 Certificates of Appreciation. One will be
21 for Officer Baron Coleman. Officer Coleman, are you
22 present?

23 OFFICER COLEMAN: Yes.

24 VICE CHAIR SMITH: Well, Officer Coleman, you know me
25 and you go way back. I love you dearly. He has truly been

1 my ride or die has been rooting me off of just from being
2 a community activist to where I am today. Officer
3 Coleman, we would like to appreciate you for developing
4 strong ties with the residents and community
5 organizations and enhancing police community relations
6 for a better public safety in the 8th Precinct. We love
7 you, we appreciate you. I heard that you had some health
8 challenges, and you are here and healthy and present. I
9 love you.

10 OFFICER COLEMAN: Thank you so much.

11 VICE CHAIR SMITH: Next I have a Certificate of
12 Appreciation for the Detroit Police Department, the
13 entire agency. We appreciate you for your unwavering
14 dedication, and tireless efforts during the 2024 NFL
15 Draft. Three days of commitment to ensuring that the
16 public safety of our residents and community during the
17 NFL Draft while fostering positive police community
18 relations in the City of Detroit is commendable. Thank
19 you for your service and your invaluable contribution to
20 enhancing public safety. We appreciate you. Thank you.

21 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Vice Chair Smith, I'm going to
22 ask that you remain down there because I don't want you
23 to have to come back and forth. Yeah, just if somebody
24 can grab it for her. I just don't want you to have to go
25 up and down. Now that we do have a quorum, we can move

1 through the beginning of our agenda, then you can go to
2 your resolution. Thank you. Okay, so now we do indeed
3 have a quorum and so we're going to move towards our
4 formal agenda. And so we'll do so by the introduction of
5 commissioners by our Acting Secretary, Mr. Brown

6 MR. BROWN: Chairperson Pressley - Here.

7 MR. BROWN: Vice Chairperson Smith - Present.

8 MR. BROWN: Commissioner Bernard - Present.

9 MR. BROWN: Commissioner Banks asked for the excused
10 absent. Commissioner Bell asked for an excuse absent.

11 MR. BROWN: Commissioner Burton asked for an excuse
12 absent.

13 MR. BROWN: Commissioner Carter asked for an excuse
14 absent.

15 MR. BROWN: Commissioner Moore - President
16 representing District 7.

17 MR. BROWN: Commissioner Hernandez - Present.

18 MR. BROWN: Commissioner Woods - Present.

19 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Alright. With that, we do
20 indeed have a quorum. We'll now move on to the approval
21 of the May 9th, 2024 agenda. Is there any objection to
22 this agenda being approved? Hearing no objections, the
23 agenda is approved. And now we'll move on to the approval
24 of the minutes for the May 2nd, 2024 meeting. Is there
25 any objection to those minutes being approved? Hearing no

1 objection, those minutes are approved. We had several
2 closed sessions last week, and so now we'll move on to
3 the approval of the minutes for those closed sessions.
4 First the approval of closed session minutes for Police
5 Officer Abdullah Nasser of May 2nd, 2024. Is there any
6 objection to the approval of those minutes? Hearing none,
7 those minutes are approved. Now, we'll move on to the
8 approval of the closed session minutes for Police Officer
9 Kayla Roe from May 2nd, 2024. Any objection to those
10 minutes? Hearing no objection to the approval of those
11 minutes, those minutes are approved. Now, we'll move on
12 to the approval of the closed session minutes for Police
13 Officer Brandon Jordan, May 2nd, 2024. Is there any
14 objection to the approval of those minutes? And finally
15 the approval of closed session minutes for Police Officer
16 Anthony Darling. May 2nd, 2024. Is there any objection to
17 the approval of those minutes? Hearing none, those
18 minutes are approved. We'll now have the introduction of
19 BOPC Staff, Chief of Police, Elected Officials and
20 Representatives, as well as Community Leaders by
21 Secretary Brown.

22 MR. BROWN: Yeah, good afternoon, Mr. Chair. Staff
23 present. We have Chief Investigator Jerome Warfield,
24 Attorney Stephanie LaBelle on Zoom, Supervising
25 Investigator LiSonya Sloan, Ms. Jasmine Taylor, Jonya

1 Underwood, ASL sign language interpreter, Ms. Yakata, and
2 Dr. Stephanie Beatty, Senior Investigator Tiffany
3 Stewart. And our VIPs are Ms. LaDon Davis, Office of
4 Council Member Fred Durhal III Office, and Ms. Marie
5 Overall, Office of State Representative Tyrone Carter.

6 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you. And again, we're
7 grateful everyone's participation in attendance and our
8 hope is that it adds to the productivity of our meeting.
9 Now we're back at the Board of Police Commissioner's
10 Officers Report where again, I'll turn it over to Vice
11 Chair Tamara Liberty Smith as she provides resolutions.

12 VICE CHAIR SMITH: Thank you Chair. My first Resolution
13 will be honoring Grand Sheik Craig P. FuQua Bey. Sir, are
14 you present?

15 WHEREAS Grand Sheik FuQua Bey's recent acclaim
16 across various social media platforms stems from his
17 pivotal role in shutting down hookah shops, found selling
18 vapes and marijuana to underage individuals. This action
19 garnered significant action, landing him a feature on CBS
20 News 62, where his commendable efforts with Blessed Hands
21 food pantry were highlighted. Furthermore, his dedication
22 to community service has not gone unnoted, as evidenced
23 by the honors bestowed upon him by the operation of Flip
24 the Script, the Wayne County City Clerk's Office and
25 prestigious awards such as the National Action Network

1 DreamKeepers Award, and the Southern Christian Leadership
2 Conference Distinguished Service Award. His commitment to
3 Moorish leadership is palpable as he emphasizes the
4 importance of coupling leadership with impactful deeds;
5 and

6 WHEREAS Grand Sheik Craig P. FuQua Bey's journey as
7 the Moorish leader has been marked by unwavering
8 dedication and numerous accolades. His service extends
9 beyond conventional boundaries, earning him recognition
10 from the State of Michigan for his contributions to the
11 MSTA Temple 25, with over 3 decades of faithful
12 stewardship as the Grand Sheik. He amplifies the essence
13 of leadership intertwined with benevolent actions. Fuqua
14 Bey's recent recognition underscores his enduring
15 commitment to community activism and his steadfast belief
16 that genuine leadership must be grounded in virtuous
17 deeds. And as we celebrate the remarkable achievements of
18 Grand Sheik Craig P. FuQua Bey, it is evident that his
19 impact resonates deeply within the great State of
20 Michigan, and a place he affectionately refers to as his
21 home. His tireless advocacy and unwavering commitment to
22 service has left an inevitable mark on the communities he
23 serves. Let us join together in honoring his exemplary
24 leadership and his steadfast resolve to make a positive
25 difference in the lives of others.

1 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED

2 The Detroit Board of Police Commissioners, speaking
3 on behalf of the residents of the City of Detroit, and
4 the Detroit Police Department recognizes and commends
5 Grand Sheik Craig P. FuQua Bey, for his dedicated
6 leadership and contributions to improving public safety
7 and police community relations in the 8th Precinct. We
8 thank you, and congratulate you, Grand Sheik Craig P.
9 FuQua Bey.

10 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: The Chair entertains a motion
11 to accept this Resolution into our archives.

12 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: So moved.

13 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: Second.

14 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: It's been properly moved, and
15 second. All those in favor please signify by saying,
16 "Aye."

17 COMMISSIONERS: "Aye."

18 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: All those opposed, "No." The
19 "Ayes" have it. Congratulations.

20 VICE CHAIR SMITH: Thank you, your Honor. Our next
21 Resolution would be honoring Ms. Gail Tubbs. Are you
22 present?

23 WHEREAS Ms. Tubbs has been a Detroiter since 1991
24 and a proud homeowner in the 1 Square Mile block, we
25 lovingly call the O'Hara Park community. The community

1 borders the West 7 Mile to West 8 Mile, and from
2 Southfield Road to Evergreen Road. She comes from humble
3 beginnings and hills from Honolulu, Hawaii. I didn't know
4 that.

5 MS. TUBBS: Aloha.

6 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Aloha.

7 COMMISSIONER WOODS: Aloha.

8 VICE CHAIR SMITH: That caught me off guard. Gail is
9 a first generation college graduate with degrees in
10 administration, in leadership from Central Michigan
11 University, an avid U-M fan. She retired from U-M after
12 over 60 years of dedicated service. Her passion for youth
13 and guiding them to be the best version of themselves
14 while offering options that will embrace the brightest
15 future, gave her real joy; and

16 WHEREAS as Gail writes the next chapters of her
17 life, she turns to service in her neighborhood and
18 involvement with the O'Hara Park Community Association,
19 having a mission of strengthening the O'Hara Park
20 community to become the community where people choose to
21 live. With the new task of serving as the 8th Precinct
22 Police Community Relations Council, starting as an
23 intern, treasurer, and now a newly elected board as
24 President Gail Tubbs actively collaborates with the 8th
25 Precinct in Easter, Halloween, National Night Out and a

1 Police Appreciation week.

2 MS. Tubbs hopes to solidify and structure increased
3 memberships and observe how her team can engage the
4 community served by the 8th Precinct with Family days;
5 and WHEREAS a member of the executive advisory board at
6 the Detroit regional dollars for scholars, Gail serves on
7 the next level scholars committee, whose objective is to
8 inspire and prepare students to succeed in life after
9 high school. The goal is to target resources,
10 experiences, and support students as they navigate their
11 path to post-secondary education; and

12 WHEREAS additionally, she enjoys her two grandsons,
13 Elijah and Aiden, as she still parent 3 adult men, a dog
14 and a cat. She counts it as an honor and a privilege to
15 serve this thriving community and anywhere that she can
16 make a difference, hoping to achieve what the following
17 quote describes. "Great leaders don't set out to be a
18 leader, they set out to make the difference. It is never
19 about the role, always about the goal." THEREFORE, LET IT
20 BE RESOLVED

21 The Detroit Board of Police Commissioners, speaking
22 on behalf of the residents of the City of Detroit, and
23 the Detroit Police Department, recognizes and commends
24 Ms. Gail Tubbs for her dedicated leadership and
25 contributions to improving public safety and police

1 community relations in the 8th Precinct. We thank you and
2 congratulate you, Ms. Gail Tubbs.

3 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: The Chair entertains a motion
4 to adopt this Resolution into our archives.

5 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: So moved.

6 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Is there a second?

7 COMMISSIONER WOODS: Second.

8 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: It's been properly moved, and
9 second. All those in favor please signify by saying,
10 "Aye."

11 COMMISSIONERS: "Aye."

12 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: All those opposed, "No." The
13 "Ayes" have it. That motion passes. Congratulations once
14 again.

15 VICE CHAIR SMITH: Our next Resolution is
16 representing Mr. John George. Are you present?

17 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Let's go to the next one just
18 in case he arrives at a later point.

19 VICE CHAIR SMITH: And our next one is Mr. Harrison
20 Shelby. Are you present?

21 MS. MITCHELL: Yes.

22 VICE CHAIR SMITH: Okay. No problem. Thank you. We
23 have Ms. Rhonda Mitchell today that will be accepting the
24 resolution for Mr. Harrison Shelby. Mr. Harrison. Shelby
25 is a dedicated young community activist, organizer,

1 mentor, consultant, and speaker with a passion for social
2 justice and equity. With over 10 years of experience
3 working in grassroots organizations, he has facilitated
4 numerous community programs and initiatives aimed at
5 empowering marginalized populations and creating positive
6 change. Harrison is known for his strong leadership
7 skills, tireless work ethic, and ability to bring people
8 together to address pressing issues facing our community.
9 He is committed to advocating for the rights of all
10 individuals, promoting diversity and inclusion, and
11 fostering a sense of unity within the community. Harrison
12 is affectionately known as Mr. Community and he continues
13 to be a vocal advocate for social change; and

14 WHEREAS Harrison serves as the elected corresponding
15 secretary for the 8th Precinct Community Relations
16 Council, he plays a crucial role in facilitating
17 communication and fostering connections within the
18 community.

19 He helps organize activities for Easter and
20 Halloween for the kids in the neighborhood, in
21 collaboration with the Neighborhood Police Officers to
22 make significant positive impact, providing safe and
23 enjoyable events for children, strengthening community
24 bonds, but also fostering positive relationships between
25 law enforcement and the community. Harrison Shelby is

1 dedicated and a passionate advocate for social justice
2 and community empowerment. His commitment to serving
3 others and making a difference in the world is truly
4 inspiring as he continues to make a positive impact; and
5 WHEREAS Harrison's previous roles as organizations like
6 the Detroit Phoenix Center, the University of Michigan,
7 Detroit Center, and Brilliant Detroit, further underscore
8 his commitment to serving underserved communities and
9 youth in Detroit. His work with BMe Community, my
10 Brother's Keeper Alliance and the Henry Ford College
11 black male focus group demonstrate his dedication to
12 improving life outcomes for boys, young men of color, and
13 supporting initiatives that address food insecurity and
14 educational success.

15 His involvement in launching the Hawks' Nest at
16 Henry Ford College, a student food pantry, and his
17 participation in mentoring programs aimed at supporting
18 black male college students, highlight his passion for
19 addressing critical issues like hunger, educational
20 success, and community empowerment; and

21 WHEREAS his extensive service as an AmeriCorps
22 member with the public, what is this? Allies completing
23 over 3,400 hours of community service over 2 terms,
24 showcases his dedication to serving others and addressing
25 community needs. Additionally, his participation in

1 leadership programs such as Leadership for Educational
2 Equity Fellow, Young Elected Officials, Frontline
3 Leaders, Academy Fellow, and Young People for Fellow,
4 demonstrates his commitment to developing leadership
5 skills and advocating for equity and social justice.
6 Harrison's experience as a regional youth intern with
7 Michigan's Roundtable for Diversity and Inclusion,
8 further emphasizes his engagement in promoting diversity,
9 equity, and inclusion within communities. His involvement
10 in volunteering on political campaigns and active members
11 and the Michigan Democratic Party, as well as serving as
12 an elected precinct delegate in Detroit, highlights his
13 commitment to civic engagement and advancing progressive
14 values within the political sphere.

15 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED

16 The Detroit Board of Police Commissioners, speaking
17 on behalf of the residents of the City of Detroit, and
18 the Detroit Police Department, recognizes and commends
19 Mr. Harrison Shelby for his dedicated leadership and
20 contributions to improving public safety and the police
21 community relations in the 8th Precinct. We thank and
22 congratulate you, Mr. Harrison. Shelby,

23 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: The Chair entertains a motion
24 to adopt this resolution into our archives.

25 COMMISSIONER WOODS: So moved.

1 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Is there a second?

2 COMMISSIONER MOORE: Second.

3 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: It's been properly moved and
4 second. All those in favor please signify by saying,
5 "Aye."

6 COMMISSIONERS: "Aye."

7 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: All those opposed, "No." The
8 "Ayes" have it. Congratulations once again.

9 VICE CHAIR SMITH: Mr. Harrison Shelby. And our next
10 Resolution is for Council Member James Tate, who I spoke
11 with earlier, who is having some issues with his staff,
12 as well as a death in the family. So he's going to be
13 unable to receive the Resolution. But he did thank me,
14 thank the board, and he will receive it at a different
15 time.

16 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Okay.

17 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Mr. Chairman, maybe she can
18 read the Resolution into the record, and we vote on it
19 today with the others.

20 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Well, if it's going to be
21 received at a different time, I think we could just wait
22 until that moment.

23 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Thank you.

24 VICE CHAIR SMITH: And Commissioner Bernard, you have
25 two Resolutions as well.

1 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: I have just one resolution and
2 with the audience's permission, I'd like to read it from
3 here. I can see it easier. I've had eye surgery and I
4 don't see that well, so I need as much light as possible
5 and I'll come down when they're present. This is a
6 Resolution, ladies and gentlemen, for Nicholas A. Radden,
7 Jordan A. Radden, and Dr. Louis Radden DO, II. Are they
8 present? Well, can you come forward please to the podium
9 where my colleague is? Okay. Alright. Thank you Tamara
10 for standing there with them while... I'll come down right
11 after we finish this.

12 WHEREAS one family, a shared vision and three
13 enlightened black men, equals Nuggets Cannabis Company, a
14 Detroit legacy in the making. After years of research and
15 development and a two year freeze in construction due to
16 COVID, Nuggets broke ground in 2022.

17 Nuggets opened its 6,000 foot retail facility at
18 18270 Telegraph Road in the 8th Precinct in 2023. 80% of
19 Nuggets employees are local community residents, and 95%
20 are African Americans. Nuggets strongly supports DPD and
21 the city by adopting a family and being actively engaged
22 in the community. Nuggets is the only known retail
23 marijuana operation in Michigan and even the USA headed
24 by a physician together with his two sons, Nicholas
25 Armand, Miami International University, and Jordan

1 Alexander, University of Miami; and

2 WHEREAS Dr. Louis Radden, II DO, a native Detroiter
3 is a board certified spine surgeon and graduate of
4 Michigan State University College of Medicine and Duke
5 University Spinal Fellowship residency program. As the
6 founder of Spine Specialists of Michigan Inc. SSM, he
7 treats thousands of Detroit residents and is frequently
8 seen in television ads. Because Dr. Radden is committed
9 to "Patient wellness and pain management," without
10 addictive narcotic drugs, he has a laboratory onsite at
11 Nuggets and can prescribe cannabis-based remedies for
12 pain that do not risk addiction or other side effects.
13 Nuggets is unique in that it is vertically integrated as
14 a State licensed manufacturer, grower and wholesaler to
15 other licensed retailers and processors in its 9,000
16 square foot facility called Harvest in Lansing, Michigan.
17 There are plans to build a third state-of-the-art
18 facility on the adjacent two acres in Lansing for
19 service, manufacturing, wholesale and distribution
20 related enterprises; and

21 WHEREAS because executive management in business
22 operations quote is in their blood, Nicholas Armand
23 Radden and Jordan Alexander Radden serve as creative
24 director and project manager respectively and are the
25 link to marketing sales in new product development in

1 Michigan and other States. There are numerous
2 opportunities in secure transportation of products,
3 sorry, I can't see... customer transportation and
4 laboratory testing which African Americans and other
5 industry enthusiasts can take advantage of.

6 Although cannabis products are widely used by
7 African Americans and some say we're the number one user
8 of them; for both medical and recreational purposes, only
9 2% - 2% of cannabis retail locations are owned by African
10 Americans nationally. And less than 1% of African
11 Americans are engaged in growth and testing facilities;
12 and

13 WHEREAS City Council President Pro Tem James E. Tate
14 Jr., strongly supports African American ownership of
15 marijuana businesses in Detroit, Nuggets, holds multiple
16 cannabis licenses, and created a specialty product line
17 called the Doobie Brand, which is unique to the Detroit
18 market, allowing for the extract and manufacture of
19 cannabis material, including concentrated oil in branded,
20 edible, drinkable and topical or vapor products.

21 NOW, THERE BE IT RESOLVED

22 That the Detroit Board of Police Commissioners,
23 speaking on behalf of the residents of the City of
24 Detroit, District 1, and District 2, and the 8th Precinct
25 recognizes and honors Nicholas Armand Radden and Jordan

1 Alexander Radden and Dr. Louis N. Radden II, for their
2 pioneering initiative in the multi-billion dollar
3 cannabis industry, which has historically been closed to
4 African Americans except in the Commission of Crime.
5 Nuggets is legally licensed and operated. And Dr.
6 Radden's commitment to serving the community as a
7 physician, businessman and job creator is worthy of
8 recognition by the commission and law enforcement. We
9 thank and congratulate you Nicholas Armand Radden, Jordan
10 Alexander Radden, and Dr. Lewis in Radden II. "The head
11 of the herd, for your service to Detroit and mankind." We
12 thank and congratulate you. Thank you.

13 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: The Chair entertains a motion
14 to adopt this Resolution to our archives.

15 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: So moved.

16 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Is there a second? Hearing no
17 second, there is no motion.

18 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: I'll make a second.

19 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: So it's been property moved
20 and seconded. All those in favor please signify by
21 saying, "Aye."

22 COMMISSIONERS: "Aye."

23 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: All those opposed, "No."

24 COMMISSIONER WOODS: It's a no for me.

25 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Alright. Can we get a roll

1 call please?

2 MR. BROWN: Chairperson Pressley - Yes.

3 MR. BROWN: Vice Chairperson Smith - Yes.

4 MR. BROWN: Commissioner Bernard - Yes.

5 MR. BROWN: Commissioner Hernandez - Yes.

6 MR. BROWN: Commissioner Moore - Yes.

7 MR. BROWN: Commissioner Woods - No.

8 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Alright. With 5 yes votes and
9 1 no vote, that motion passes. Congratulations. Okay. Has
10 Mr. John George arrived? Right. And then commissioners,
11 I'm not sure if there was any confusion around the last
12 Resolution that we have for Nancy to Thomas, but it's
13 also on the agenda, which is why I'm seeking clarity now
14 on.

15 VICE CHAIR SMITH: Okay, I'll read it. I didn't know
16 it was... it wasn't mine.

17 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Is she here?

18 VICE CHAIR SMITH: Resolution honoring Nancy C.
19 Thomas, are you present?

20 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Okay. Alright. So what we'll
21 do is, we'll read the Resolution for Mr. John George into
22 the record and receive that although he is not here with
23 this. And then we'll find out what's happening with the
24 Resolution regarding Nancy Thomas.

25 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Okay.

1 VICE CHAIR SMITH: Okay.

2 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: So go right ahead. So we'll do
3 both resolutions quickly and expeditiously, if you will.

4 VICE CHAIR SMITH: This is a Resolution honoring
5 Nancy C. Thomas.

6 WHEREAS Nancy C. Thomas joined the Police Community
7 Relations Council for the 12th Precinct in the 1980s. Her
8 support and advocacy for residents and neighborhoods and
9 local leader James Parker, to invite her to a council
10 meeting, which she attended. Some 40 years later, she
11 remains very active and engaged with the Precinct and the
12 Council; and

13 WHEREAS Ms. Thomas served on the Council's election
14 committee for many years. She currently serves on its
15 advisory board. Countless residents, police officers,
16 precinct commanders, and city leaders have benefited from
17 her deep knowledge and wisdom decade after decade; and

18 WHEREAS many police commissioners often worked with,
19 or heard from Ms. Thomas about police actions or
20 community safety. She has been a fixture at precinct
21 events. Her support of programs such as the Annual
22 National Night Out and the Annual Community Relations
23 Picnic helped ensure a successful and fun time for
24 everyone. Over the years,

25 Ms. Thomas has taken special thought in the annual

1 Feed the Police Day, where she donated delicious dishes
2 and served heaping plates to precinct officers. She also
3 has enjoyed donating treats and engaging with children
4 and parents at the precinct's Halloween activities; and

5 WHEREAS Ms. Thomas, pardon me, believes in service
6 to others, she provided a warm and caring presence for
7 Sinai Grace Hospital visitors and patients as a volunteer
8 at the hospital gift shop and in the surgical lounge for
9 more than 40 years. As a volunteer with the hospital and
10 with the 12th Precinct, Ms. Thomas has touched and
11 benefited generations of Detroiters. She remains a
12 driving force in the community as she celebrates her
13 100th birthday. Her friends and family will honor her
14 numerous civic contributions, and continued service to
15 the 12th Precinct Police Community Relations Council on
16 Saturday, April 27th, a couple of weeks ago.

17 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED

18 The Board of Police Commissioners, speaking on
19 behalf of the residents of the great City of Detroit,
20 salutes Nancy C. Thomas, for her tireless contributions
21 to strengthening the bond between Detroit Police and its
22 residence. Our city is forever indebted to a tireless
23 past and present commitment to improve public safety and
24 police community relations in the 12th Precinct and
25 across Detroit for the benefit of neighborhoods and the

1 Detroit Police Department. I move this Resolution, Mr.
2 Chairman.

3 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Is there a second?

4 COMMISSIONER WOODS: Second.

5 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: It's been properly moved and
6 second. All those in favor, please signal by saying,
7 "Aye."

8 COMMISSIONERS: "Aye."

9 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: All those opposed, "No." The
10 "Ayes" have it. That resolution has been adopted to our
11 archives. And so finally, to read into the record the
12 Resolution honoring Mr. John J. George.

13 VICE CHAIR SMITH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. The
14 Resolution honoring Mr. John J. George.

15 WHEREAS Detroit native John J. George, Executive
16 Director of Detroit Blight Busters, co-founder, the
17 Neighborhood Revitalization nonprofit. In 1988, when he
18 and two neighbors took a stand to make their own
19 neighborhood safe. Over time, DBB has grown into an
20 internationally recognized grassroots organization,
21 committed to being a positive catalyst in Detroit by
22 stabilizing, revitalizing, and beautifying the City of
23 Detroit, working with thousands of volunteers each year.

24 George Blight Busters tear down abandoned houses,
25 renovate existing homes, and clean up parks and other

1 public spaces, and helps people become home and business
2 owners; and

3 WHEREAS supported by corporations, foundations, and
4 individuals, donors, DBB brings people together from all
5 walks of life, from both the city and the suburbs to make
6 Georgia's vision of creating safe, clean, healthy, viable
7 neighborhoods for all children and reality. In 1995, the
8 organization purchased and renovated a formal Masonic
9 Temple into the Motor City Resource Center. Today, it
10 provides operational space for tenants and programs. It
11 also offers full banquet and meeting facilities that are
12 for rent and accessible to the community; and

13 WHEREAS George's efforts has spawned a variety of
14 other initiatives in the area, including the Artist
15 Village, Detroit, Motor City Java, and Tea House,
16 Creative Juices, Public Artworks, and United Peace
17 Relief, Veterans Village Detroit. Through his ongoing
18 neighborhood stabilization and revitalization efforts, he
19 has helped create a variety of new businesses, including
20 Sweet Potato Sensations, and Detroit Tire and Wheel. He
21 recently was instrumental in helping secure the
22 development of the Meijer Mega Store for local residents.
23 He was the founding chairman of the Brightmoor Alliance
24 and past president of the Old Redford Business
25 Association. In addition, he has co-founded Firm City

1 Detroit, a collaborative project between Fertile Ground
2 Collective and DBB to reclaim two city blocks and turned
3 them into the urban farmland, providing free fruits and
4 vegetables to residents, as well as picnic grounds and
5 the meditation garden for other community areas; and

6 WHEREAS George was awarded a Point of Light from
7 President Bill Clinton, was named Michiganian of the
8 Year. In 1995 by the Detroit News, he was selected to
9 speak at the Detroit Regional Chamber Policy Conference
10 on Mackinac Island. Mr. Chair, I'm asking...

11 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: No problem. Oprah Winfrey
12 recognizes him as one of the country's community heroes.
13 He has worked with past six Detroit mayors to bring
14 neighborhood issues to the forefront and help run
15 Jennifer Grand Homes, Michigan Prisoner Reentry
16 Initiative. In 1995, he also coined the phrase, "Angels
17 Knight," and convinced then Mayor Dennis Archer to take
18 Blight Busters community cleanup, known as Blight Flight
19 Citywide, later known as Clean Sweep. A former insurance
20 salesman. George is a graduate of Bishop Borgess' High
21 School, and he and his wife, Alicia George, have three
22 grown children, all of which have worked in various
23 capacities furthering their father's calls.

24 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED

25 The Detroit Board of Police Commissioners, speaking

1 on behalf of the residents of the City of Detroit, and
2 the Detroit Police Department, recognizes and commends
3 Mr. John J. George for his dedicated leadership and
4 contribution to improving public safety and police
5 community relations in the 8th Precinct. We thank and
6 congratulate you, Mr. John J. George. The Chair
7 entertains a motion to adopt this resolution into our
8 archives. So

9 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: So moved.

10 COMMISSIONER WOODS: Second.

11 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: It's been properly moved and
12 second. All those in favor please signify by saying,
13 "Aye."

14 COMMISSIONERS: "Aye."

15 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: All those opposed? "No." The
16 "Ayes" have it. Congratulations Mr. John J. George.

17 Thank you. And so that concludes all of our
18 Resolutions, and so you might return, if there's nothing
19 else.

20 VICE CHAIR SMITH: That will be it. Thank you.

21 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Okay, great. Thank you. And
22 so, as we are still under our Board of Police
23 Commissioners Officer's report in the Acting's report, we
24 were made aware of a letter of resignation that was
25 tendered by Commissioner Roy Gamble. And so the Chair

1 entertains a motion to accept that resignation.

2 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: So moved.

3 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: Second.

4 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: It's been properly moved, and
5 second. Is there any discussion? Hearing no discussion,
6 all those in favor, please signify by saying, "Aye."

7 COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

8 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: All those opposed? "No."
9 Right, the "Ayes" have it. That motion passes. Now,
10 moving forward, we will now have the, excuse me, well, we
11 did our Community Impact Report, but not having a quorum,
12 there wasn't an opportunity for any questions for our
13 Chief Investigator. And so I'll open up space now if
14 there are any questions or comments relative to the
15 Community Impact Report? Alright, hearing none, we'll
16 move forward with our Chief of Police Report and the 8th
17 Precinct Report.

18 DC Good afternoon. Good afternoon. My name is
19 Jacqueline Pritchett. I'm the Deputy Chief of Western
20 Operation.

21 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: I think they're working it
22 out. Let's try that again.

23 DC PRITCHETT: I'm Jacqueline Pritchett, Deputy Chief
24 of Western Operations. There is still feedback. So
25 there's an update on two injured officers. There are

1 currently two department members who are disabled and
2 recovering at home due to an on-duty injury. The two
3 detectives are from SPU Domestic Violence. On May 2nd,
4 2024, the detectives were rear-ended by another vehicle
5 while driving an unmarked department vehicle. The
6 detectives sustained multiple injuries and one was
7 admitted to the hospital. Both are now at home resting
8 for the crime data as the 582024.

9 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Let's see. Commissioner Moore,
10 can you see if she can use your mic and see if that might
11 aid us here?

12 DC PRITCHETT: Okay. So yeah, sounds better. Much
13 better feedback. Thank you. So the crime data is 582024,
14 the homicides are down 22%, and non-fatal shootings are
15 down 27%, our robberies are down 28%, a total part one,
16 violent crimes are down 11% and our carjackings are down
17 50%. We had a drag racing detail that started back in
18 April every weekend. So the enforcement for the past
19 weekend was 45 people investigated. There were 6 traffic
20 stops, 6 citations issued, 11 vehicles investigated; 4 of
21 those vehicles were impounded. There was one felony
22 arrest, one weapon recovered. They responded to 2 block
23 parties and they issued 16 spectator tickets.

24 So, year to date, mental health related calls for
25 service, we have had 5,178 calls for service year to date

1 compared to 5,017 last year. So as of yesterday's date,
2 we had 161 more calls for service for mental health. So
3 there are some significant incidents that we are seeking
4 the community's help in solving these crimes. The first
5 incident occurred on Saturday May 4th at 11:10 AM.
6 Officers were dispatched to the 2,600 block of Blaine to
7 investigate a dead person. Officers arrived and observed
8 the victim suffering from a wound to the right shoulder
9 in the back of the head. Medic 14 and Fire 39 arrived at
10 the scene and provided medical assistance. The victim,
11 however, was pronounced deceased by medics. Further
12 investigation revealed that the 911 call came from a
13 nearby gas station. After reviewing the video from the
14 gas station, it was determined that the person who made
15 the 911 call was a male wearing a dark hoodie and gloves.

16 Detectives are still attempting to identify that
17 person and the circumstances surround the incident. The
18 incident is still under investigation. Detectives are
19 asking anyone additional information to contact Crime
20 Stoppers at 1800 SpeakUp, or to Detroit Rewards TV. The
21 second incident was a triple shooting that happened on
22 Sunday, May 5th, at 1:53 PM. Officers were dispatched to
23 the 3,800 block of 33rd Street to investigate a shooting.
24 When the officers arrived, they observed medics providing
25 medical attention to victim 1, who was suffering from a

1 gunshot wound to the throat. Officers went into the
2 location to check additional victims, and discovered
3 victims 2 and 3 suffering from gunshot wounds to the
4 head. Both were pronounced deceased at the scene.
5 Officers, I'm sorry, detectives determined the witnesses
6 heard several shots being fired in a location and that
7 after the shooting, the suspect entered a gray Dodge
8 Durango and drove north on 33rd Street.

9 The suspect was described as a black male with a
10 skinny build, short hair, and wearing a white T-shirt.
11 This incident is still under investigation. So once
12 again, we are seeking assistance from the community to
13 provide any information to contact Crime Stoppers at 1800
14 SpeakUp and or Detroit Rewards TV. And the final was
15 another fatal shooting that occurred on Sunday, at around
16 4:15 AM. Officers were dispatched to Henry Ford Hospital
17 to investigate a shooting. When they arrived at the
18 hospital, they were notified by security that the victim
19 had expired from a gunshot wound and that the victim was
20 transported to the hospital by witnesses who were waiting
21 in the area. The witnesses stated that they were at a
22 block party in the area of Stansberry and West McNichols
23 when they heard shots being fired. Shortly after, the
24 victim ran to them stating he was shot. They conveyed him
25 to Henry Ford Hospital.

1 Officers and detectives responded back to the area
2 and discovered evidence of a shooting in the 16,000 block
3 of Stansberry. They canvas the area and check for
4 available video. This incident is still under
5 investigation, but once again, detectives are asking
6 anyone with additional information who might have been in
7 the area of Stansberry and West McNichols early Saturday
8 morning, to please contact Crime Stoppers at 1800 SpeakUp
9 or Detroit Rewards TV. There are some positive notes as
10 well as some of the bad news. So today, we had a
11 dedication ceremony for fallen members whose plaques were
12 placed on our memorial wall at headquarters. The
13 following members were honored: our Lieutenant Frederick
14 Bowens, Sergeant Almondo Greer-Travis and Police Officer
15 Isam Qasem. So tomorrow May 10th, Chief White will attend
16 and speak to Wayne State University. Mike Ilitch School
17 of Business, DPD Leadership Academy graduates. 16 DPD
18 members will be graduating from the 9 month program with
19 the graduate certificate in business. The certificate
20 equates to almost half the credits needed to achieve an
21 MBA. So Precinct events. The 5th Precinct yesterday had
22 biked to school day, which they rode with the 200 kids
23 from 3 DPS schools to local parks. I heard there was a
24 great turnout. So today, the 6th Precinct had Career Day
25 in Maybury Elementary School, and Tuesday on 5/7 was

1 Coffee with a Cop at the 10th Precinct. So those are the
2 reports for the Chief's report for this board.

3 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you. Are there any questions?
4 Commissioner Moore?

5 COMMISSIONER MOORE: Thank you Mr. Chairman. Chief, I
6 just need you to do a follow up for me with Assistant
7 Chief Eric Ewing. About a month ago, I asked him about
8 some crime statistics as related to justifiable
9 homicides, vehicular homicides, as well as suicides. And
10 the reason why I would like to see that information is
11 because there's been a comparison between 1966 and the
12 current crime statistics as it relates to homicide. I'm
13 acutely aware that in 1966, all of these different
14 categories were grouped together. So I just want to make
15 a comparison for myself. So if you could follow up with
16 assistant chief, you and I appreciate it

17 DC PRITCHETT: Through the Chair. You said
18 justifiable homicide, vehicular homicides, it was the
19 third one?

20 COMMISSIONER MOORE: And suicides as well. And how
21 the grouping as far as how many occurred in 2023. And a
22 question you may or may not know, and this is kind of a
23 couple weeks old, how many arrests were made during the
24 NFL Draft, if you know?

25 DC PRITCHETT: I don't know the information. I'm not

1 sure.

2 COMMISSIONER MOORE: That's fine. Thank you ma'am.

3 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Alright, are there any further
4 questions? I have one. At our last community meeting,
5 which was last month, we were made aware of a non-fatal
6 officer involved shooting that took place on Remo and
7 Fenkell. It was told to us that again, there was a
8 suspect who was 16 years old, who allegedly pulled a gun
9 from his side and an officer shot two shots, striking the
10 suspect, once in the leg. I'm mentioning this because it
11 had been the custom of the department to provide us a
12 critical debriefing that, I don't know if I missed
13 anything, but I hadn't been made aware of that critical
14 debriefing so the commissioners could review the body-
15 worn camera footage and to get any updates on where we
16 are, and then also to see if the department is in line
17 with the 45 days that the Chief has offered when those
18 videos will be released. So again, I think that the date
19 of that incident was on April 4th, and now here we are on
20 May 9th, and have yet to hear anything. And so if we can
21 get some follow up on what's occurring with that non-
22 fatal officer involved shooting that would be appreciated

23 DC PRITCHETT: Through the Chair. I'm going to make
24 sure the Chief gets your request tomorrow morning.

25 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you.

1 DC PRITCHETT: Provide an update for you.

2 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Okay. Thank you. Commissioner
3 Bernard.

4 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Mr. Chairman, I'll wait
5 because my question is related to the same incident, so
6 that's fine.

7 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Any further questions? Thank
8 you so very much. And so now we'll invite the 8th
9 Precinct leadership to come forth and provide their
10 report as well.

11 CMDR LEVER: Alright. Good evening, everybody.

12 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Good evening.

13 CMDR. LEVER: I'm Dietrich Lever. It's my pleasure to
14 be the commanding officer of the 8th Precinct and serve
15 this community. This evening, I'm going to give you an
16 overview of our crime strategies, some community
17 programs, and our upcoming events in the 8thh Precinct.
18 So I can say at the 8th Precinct, I'm proud to say that
19 our crime is down. Now, overall crime is down. I can give
20 you exact numbers. Criminal homicides are down 36.4%. I
21 can tell you our non-fatal shootings are down 6.5%. Our
22 sexual assaults are down 11.5%. Our robbery, excuse me,
23 our aggravated assaults are down 6.6%. Our robberies are
24 down 7.4%. Our larceny is down 0.04%. We'll take a win
25 when we can get it. Our motor vehicle theft is down 4.7%

1 and our carjackings are down 55.6%. The only... yes? Yes,
2 that's right. The only uptick we have is in burglaries,
3 and we'll talk about that a little later. So overall, our
4 part one crime, and I'm just referring to part one crime
5 over last year. This is 2024, compared to 2023 is down
6 7.1%.

7 So our crime strategies, they're simple. We follow
8 the Chief of Police, Chief White's 5 and 12 point plans.
9 I can go over them, I know he's very public about them.
10 Increased deployment for rapid response, police presence,
11 community engagement, traffic enforcement, noise
12 enforcement, crowd management, and code enforcement;
13 community partnerships, drag racing and block party
14 suppression, street closures, Casper or undercover unit
15 engagements, open alcohol and curfew enforcement and eyes
16 in the sky policing. That would be our helicopters and
17 rooftop surveillance. And that's our approach. That's our
18 crime strategy appropriate as followed as the Chief laid
19 out. And we use data, technology and information to make
20 that come true. So overall, the 8th Precinct, our
21 strategy for our specific strategy, we use targeted
22 enforcement with that data, with that information, it
23 tells us where our crime is, where we're spiking.

24 So that's where we send our resources to deal with
25 that. We have high visibility traffic enforcement. My

1 traffic enforcement guys are out in the areas that we
2 have identified as our problem areas for either speeders
3 or accidents to enforce the law. We have restorative
4 order practices for violent crime suppression by our
5 special operations. We have an embedded crime unit, crime
6 intelligence unit right here in the 8th Precinct where we
7 have the big giant TV where we can watch with our
8 Greenlight partners, we can partner up and get real-time
9 information from them over real time right over the
10 radio. We are transparent with my community always and
11 forever. And we're part of our partnerships. We partnered
12 with the AUSA, the Assistant US Attorney. We have our
13 federal partners, FBIATF, to help us here.

14 MDC, Michigan Department of Corrections help us as
15 well. We have our DPD specialized victims units here to
16 help us as well. We have our CVI Units, which is our
17 Community Violence Intervention Team, where we support or
18 support it by Detroit 300 and People's Action. We have
19 our building and safety engineers to help us out as well.
20 And our suburban law enforcement is actually partnering
21 with us to keep crime down. Our strategy results, again,
22 as I said, overall crime is down 7.1%. I can tell you
23 that our hardworking officers have taken 141 guns off the
24 street year to date.

25 Speaking of transparency, we do have 2 crime trends

1 that I wanted to talk about. We have our robbery crime
2 trend. We had 6 in the last month, which is more than we
3 were expecting. So that's an uptick. However, they are
4 being addressed by our detective unit. We have made 2
5 significant arrests: one for a robbery of a person at a
6 gas station. He's in custody. We made another arrest for
7 a robbery of a business that he's in custody as well. So
8 we have partnered with our FBI and told you about our
9 partnership. What we did is, we came out, they talked to
10 some business owners and we have signage up to let you
11 know that it's a federal crime to rob these stores. So
12 we're looking for the results of that to be positive. And
13 we have a burglary trend.

14 I know I talked in my community extensively about
15 the burglary trend we had. We all partnered together in
16 the partnership, the police and the community, and we
17 were able to be successful. But in the last 28 days,
18 we're up. We have five. I can tell you this, I want to
19 share this with you. We were up like 75% where I had to
20 literally go down and make a presentation in front of the
21 Chief of Police. We're still up 5.8%, but they haven't
22 stopped. We're persistent. And we're still talking about
23 our breaking and entering. We're still following our
24 strategy. So we're down about 70%, which is good. They're
25 still being tracked. I still have a breaking and entering

1 team active. Again, we collaborated with the community.
2 As a matter of fact, we got our largest tip to make our 4
3 significant arrests from a community member who was out
4 walking their dogs. Our surveillance operations continue.
5 We have one. We still have one that was identified that
6 was out. We had locked him up, and they released him.
7 We're still on his trail right now. And we're persistent.
8 We'll continue. We're not going to stop. We're not going
9 to stop until we feel that we have everybody in custody
10 who's responsible for victimizing our citizens.

11 We're not all about enforcement here. And we are
12 addressing quality of life issues right now. You should
13 see my team out. We're addressing blight complaints,
14 click fix complaints right now and safe driving. I'm
15 almost finished in our community. We have community
16 programs. We have an embedded social worker who works
17 with us every day. She's not here today. I was going to
18 invite her out. But we have immediate access to
19 counseling. We have immediate access to counseling,
20 resources and services. And she does it after an action,
21 follow up. She does a 4 or 5 day review, and she keeps me
22 posted as well. We have a ceasefire program, and that's
23 run through our special operations. And again, we're more
24 than enforcement. They run a brotherhood program where
25 they up youth and teens, they take them to play

1 basketball with them. They box, they have one-on-one
2 mentoring sessions with them. We do our restorative
3 practices to try to repair families through our ceasefire
4 program. We're on anti-gang, anti-bullying presentations
5 at schools. We have police counter education at schools.
6 And one success story I'd like to tell, we have one
7 troubled youth who participated in our ceasefire program.
8 He actually joined DPD. Moreover, he actually works in
9 the 8th Precinct.

10 VICE CHAIR SMITH: Wow. Awesome.

11 CMDR LEVER: So we have our Neighborhood Police
12 Officers. I talk about them a lot. I'm out there with
13 them a lot. And with them, there are non-emergency police
14 resources. We do see what they do, or we do, I'm sorry.
15 We do senior citizen enrichment events, neighborhood
16 mediation and conflict resolution. We have school safe
17 zones where we follow the kids to school. We know where
18 they are. We make sure they get safe, get there safe. We
19 have our prescription disposal program. We have gun lock
20 safety programs, community recognition programs, much
21 like tonight. But we have our very own in-house safety
22 assessments as needed. We offer them out when we are
23 having a breaking and entering problem, and we have our
24 chaplain services to support us, the police officers and
25 the community. Last thing on the agenda, upcoming events.

1 We have a walk a mile with the Chief, to be determined.
2 I'm told it's sometime in June. I asked today, they told
3 me sometime in June. So please stay tuned. I'll let
4 everybody know as soon as I know. We have our monthly
5 council meetings here at the 8th Precinct. The last
6 Monday of the month. This month it'll be on May 27th,
7 2024. If I'm not mistaken, it is Crystal Johns, are you
8 in the back? What time would that go off?

9 6:30, May 20th. Oh, well, Ms. Gail Tubbs here. I
10 apologize. It's May 20th and it starts at 6:30. We have a
11 District 1 monthly meeting there on Saturdays, and
12 they're with Councilman Tate. That will be to be
13 determined. We have the AUSAP Peacenik walk in
14 presentation in June to be determined. I don't have the
15 exact date, but I know it's going to be in June. As soon
16 as I know everybody else will know. Police Week is next
17 week. Our auditorium is stage, our beautiful auditorium
18 stage and lighting. We still have more lighting available
19 for our community events, graduations, and recitals. Just
20 call my front office at (313) 596 5810. We'll get a
21 reserve for you. Again, (313) 596 5810. We'll have that
22 reserved for you. And follow us on Facebook for the stuff
23 that I told you. We are at DPD 8th Precinct and that'll
24 give you some of the dates that I was talking about. And
25 last, but very, but absolutely, positively not least, I

1 would be remiss if I didn't thank the 8th Precinct
2 officers for their hard working dedication to make sure
3 that our community is safe and to keep our crime down.
4 And that's it for the 8th Precinct.

5 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you. Any questions?
6 Commissioner Moore?

7 COMMISSIONER MOORE: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I just
8 want to say thank you, Commander for you and your team.
9 I've forwarded you several complaints since you've been
10 Commander of the 8th Precinct. I'm not even the police
11 commissioner at the 8th Precinct, but you've knocked them
12 out, you and your team. So I just want to say thank you
13 and your staff for having the most complaints. Thank you.

14 CMDR LEVER: Thank you, sir.

15 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Commissioner Hernandez.

16 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: Thank you. Through the
17 Chair, I'll just add a little bit more to that. I'm not
18 surprised with the approach that you're taking based on
19 the work that you did when you were in Risk Management.
20 In particular, I have to publicly thank you for a
21 critical incident that occurred a few weeks ago that you
22 were very hands-on and empathetic with specifically with
23 the family. So I appreciate that.

24 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Any further questions,
25 comments? Commissioner Woods?

1 COMMISSIONER WOODS: He's the reason why I was late,
2 for real.

3 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Commissioner Bernard.

4 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: A quick question, Commander,
5 and congratulations again on your success, and the
6 success of this Precinct. We have in our materials and
7 everything; everything is listed of course, as a homicide
8 or if it's a crime. But my question to you is this, how
9 do you define homicide versus "What is called a
10 justifiable homicide?"

11 CMDR LEVER: So that would be a classification for
12 me. That would be our data quality. So I take the
13 information statistically that gives us, so I wouldn't
14 make that determination because at the 8th Precinct, we
15 don't handle homicides per se. We are responding units.
16 However, the homicides are handled by the homicide
17 section.

18 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Okay, thank you.

19 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Commissioner Woods.

20 COMMISSIONER WOODS: You have something called self-
21 defense, do you? It's justifiable homicide in the book. I
22 know you have the self-defense law. But do you categorize
23 homicides by justifiable homicide?

24 CMDR LEVER: Again, that would probably be that... so
25 if we are going to say categorize and you say justified,

1 that would probably be Wayne County Prosecutors because
2 we don't charge. So we'll be with the responding unit for
3 my officers at number 8th. We'll respond, we'll protect
4 our rights. We'll gather information.

5 COMMISSIONER WOODS: But you guys present the
6 charges?

7 CMDR LEVER: Yes. Well, no, that would be homicide,
8 but yes...

9 DC PRITCHETT: Through the Chair, if I may.

10 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Go right ahead.

11 DC PRITCHETT: But when a crime has occurred in the
12 8th Precinct, some crimes are handled by the precinct
13 detectives and the precinct detective unit. Homicides are
14 handled by a unit downtown. However, there are certain
15 instances in certain cases where the homicide might be
16 deemed by Madam Kym Worthy's Office, that it was self-
17 defense, which makes it justifiable. We don't make those
18 determination. The Wayne County Prosecutor looks at the
19 facts that were presented with the actual incident and
20 makes that determination. But some homicides are backed
21 out because they are deemed justifiable or self-defense
22 and are not charge for that crime.

23 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Mr. Chairman, just to follow
24 up quickly. So our homicide report would not include
25 "Justifiable homicides."

1 DC PRITCHETT: That is correct, ma'am.

2 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Commission Moore.

3 COMMISSIONER MOORE: Oh, I mean, just to clarify,
4 Chief. All homicides are initially... all deaths are
5 initially handled as they are homicide, whether it's
6 suicide or what have you. And then once it's submitted to
7 the Prosecutor's Office, that's when it's determined what
8 it actually is.

9 DC PRITCHETT: It is correct. Through the Chair, that
10 is correct.

11 COMMISSIONER MOORE: Thank you.

12 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Right. Any further questions?
13 My question again, today's Precinct is we have had our
14 chief investigator provide us a report on the work that
15 our OCI Office is doing. There is a breakdown in his
16 presentation for community, citizen community report
17 allegations by precinct. And while there's been such
18 amazing news that has been shared with the precinct, I do
19 want to draw to your attention that at least in the month
20 of April the 8thh Precinct is leading in the number of
21 CCRs that have been found against officers with them
22 ranging from service to procedure to demeanor. Is there
23 any response you would have about what maybe you might be
24 doing or communicating to ensure that officers'
25 engagement with citizens don't lead to complaints?

1 CMDR LEVER: That's a good question, and thank you
2 for your question. I apologize. I missed this report, so
3 I don't know what it said. However, I expect
4 professionalism out of my officers. I'm here from 6
5 o'clock in the morning, usually to 6 o'clock at night. So
6 I see all 3 shifts. I talk to them, I mentor them. And
7 the people that I identify who may have problems, I
8 literally bring them into my office and I talk to them
9 personally. So I expect my community to be, excuse me. I
10 expect my community to be leased with dignity and
11 constitutionally. However, sometimes I will say this,
12 sometimes people don't want to go to jail. I did take a
13 look at the complaints that were outstanding because we
14 have CompStat and I have to answer for those as well.

15 So a lot of them were pending. So I couldn't give
16 you an exact answer on the ones that are current. So for
17 the ones from May for this month, a lot of them will
18 probably still be pending when I look in my system.
19 However, if it's a person that I recognize that needs
20 some extra assistance, I'll have them ride with a
21 sergeant. I'll talk to them myself. But again, I'm at
22 roll calls probably 3, 4 times a week as the commanding
23 officer passing the message that we are going to police
24 constitutionally, we're going to be respectful to
25 citizens.

1 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you. And just to be
2 clear, for the citizens, again, these are allegations
3 that have been made, and not that the cases have been
4 sustained or the officers have been found in wrongdoing.
5 But yet with the number of allegations that have been
6 made the 8th Precinct is number one with 35, the 12th
7 Precinct is number 2, with 31, and then the 6th Precinct
8 is number 3 with 23. Just for your...

9 CMDR LEVER: Through the Chair, may I add. This is
10 not an excuse. However, we are the biggest and the most
11 populated city Precinct in the City of Detroit and
12 probably make some of the most contact with citizens.

13 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: And that's an important
14 context. Thank you for that clarification.

15 CMDR LEVER: But I still expect it to be
16 professional.

17 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you. Any further
18 questions or comments?

19 DC PRITCHETT: Through the Chair.

20 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Yes.

21 DC PRITCHETT: Commissioner Moore, I have your
22 questions. I mean, answer to your question regarding how
23 many arrests were made during the Draft. Inside the
24 footprint, there were two arrests that were made, a male
25 and a female. And there were 2 juveniles detained for

1 fighting. Outside of the footprint, there were 18. And
2 those consisted of fighting MDP and trespassing with some
3 of the charges for the 18 outside of the footprint.

4 COMMISSIONER MOORE: So thank you. Through the Chair.
5 So you say outside of the footprint. Outside of the
6 footprint could literally mean where we are right now. So
7 when you mean outside the footprint, what do you mean?

8 DC PRITCHETT: No, outside, through the Chair.
9 Outside the footprint downtown, you know, where it's
10 campus Marshalls at the theater and where the Evolves
11 were. If you go outside that area, like Greektown up by
12 Wayne State, up by LCA, those areas were also considered
13 outside the footprint. And so during the Draft, there
14 were 18 arrests that were in the area of the Draft, but
15 not in the...

16 COMMISSIONER MOORE: Understood. Thank you Chief.

17 CMDR LEVER: Through the Chair.

18 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Yes. Go right ahead.

19 CMDR LEVER: Excuse me. Sorry for this.

20 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Yeah, no problem. That's what
21 we're here for.

22 CMDR LEVER: So if you take a look over to your
23 right, my left, we have Captain Brian Bowser here. I'm
24 going to put him on the spot. He is one of the reasons
25 that... he's my second. I mean, he's one of the reasons why

1 crimes are down. He's a crime guru. This is probably
2 going to be his last Board of Police Commissioners
3 meeting. Put him on the spot now and if he'd like to come
4 up and say something on his way out.

5 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Please do.

6 CMDR LEVER: We would love to hear from him. It's,
7 so... it's okay.

8 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Excellent. After how many
9 years? 28 years. Thank you for your service. Thank you.
10 Anything further? Alright, hearing none, we thank
11 everyone for their questions for the Chief of Police
12 Report and the 8th Precinct Report. And now we'll move
13 forward to oral communications. And again, for those who
14 would like to make public comments, and you're in the
15 room, there should have been public comment cards at the
16 door when you came in that you could turn in. And then
17 those who are on the zoom, you can identify yourself as
18 we move forward in public comment. Mr. Brown, who do we
19 have?

20 MR. BROWN: Good afternoon, Mr. Chair. We currently
21 have 13 speakers. I call those in attendance. First, Ms.
22 Charnita Williams, followed by Minister Eric Blount,
23 followed by Ms. Bernie Smith.

24 MS. WILLIAMS: Hello everyone.

25 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Hello.

1 MS. WILLIAMS: And I like to say this. Everything
2 that I'm getting ready to say is from my heart. Okay? I
3 cannot speak about the 2000 police officers, but I can
4 speak about the police officers. And it's ironic that I'm
5 here at the community center concerning, you know, my
6 issue I've been going through and the officers that came
7 out to the police, I mean out to the hospital, came from
8 the 8th. So as I discovered a lot of people, like
9 Fernandez just said, thank you very much. Apparently I'm
10 not special enough for them to do their job correctly,
11 because it looks like a lot of people are calling in
12 favors to cover up this rape. And if they were doing
13 their job correctly, this person that raped me should
14 have been locked up. So when I say this, this is coming
15 from my heart, and I mean this. I know for certain,
16 certain police officers, they act like they're the black
17 mafia family with badges. That's how I feel. They
18 disrespect, they badge, they steal dope from the evidence
19 room, stealing money, and then stealing money from the
20 casinos. So how can I respect anybody like that? And at
21 the bottom line, I've been coming here over a year, and
22 if you all choose not to do your job correctly, it's
23 accountability. You always say accountability,
24 transparency, I can't tell. And whoever is calling in
25 these favors have a lot of power, from the hospitals all

1 the way down. And at this point in time, I don't know
2 what to believe or who to believe, but I know my body
3 can, you can't put a price tag on that. And where they're
4 getting this money from to be able to play for DoorDash,
5 Cash App gift cards. You tell me they have a hotline for
6 me to take pictures and post them. That's how they keep
7 track of me. So you say it's no undercover officers where
8 I live, just like the woman who was undercover, who
9 abused her daughter got dropped off by transit police.
10 Transit police didn't give me a ride after they towed my
11 car.

12 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you.

13 MS. WILLIAMS: Okay.

14 MR. BROWN: Minister Blount.

15 MINISTER BLOUNT: I don't want anyone to be deceived
16 even by the written statements of this board. On the
17 second page of your agenda, it says falsely that this
18 board acts as the final authority in imposing and
19 reviewing discipline of DPD employees. That is not true.
20 So many of these officers that are voted to be
21 disciplined, not just keep their job, but they get their
22 back pay through binding arbitration. Not only that, the
23 2022 contract negotiated under Chief White, requires that
24 discipline cannot be used in determining an officer's
25 promotion. So where is the accountability? Hard, hard to

1 find. And yes, Commissioner Bernard, I must once again
2 read into the record your statements on this meeting,
3 March 2nd, 2023, page 32, when you said, "I request that
4 everyone in this room be promoted, would you please
5 stand?" You went on to say, "I am Attorney Linda Bernard,
6 if there's anything I can do for you as a lawyer or
7 personally or professionally, please feel free to contact
8 me." If that's not solicitation, I don't know what is

9 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Mr. Chairman. If I may, with
10 the permission of the Chair. That was a remark. It was
11 not a legal solicitation by any interpretation, by any
12 court or other body. It was a remark that I made ladies
13 and gentlemen to young people that I was looking at who
14 had just been promoted as officers. And when I say that
15 to people, I say it to citizens all the time. When I talk
16 to you, I tell people, my name is Linda, you can call me
17 if you have some problem. Usually the questions relate to
18 child support. What do I do about this? What do I do
19 about that? I don't think I've ever gotten a question
20 about a criminal law matter or a matter that would be a
21 disciplinary matter. But I'm proud of my reputation. I'm
22 proud of what I've achieved.

23 I'm the only African American with a master's of
24 law, the first one to graduate from the University of
25 Pennsylvania. I earned my JD from Wayne State University

1 and my bachelor's in 3 years from Wayne State
2 University's Monteith Honors College. I've argued and won
3 3 precedent setting cases in the Michigan Supreme Court,
4 which changed the law for everyone, all of us in this
5 room. I'm not going to go into detail, my Chairman would
6 have a fit. But I want you to understand, and I'm
7 licensed in 5 federal courts, including the US Supreme
8 Court. I have nothing to be ashamed of as a professional.
9 And you cannot and will not shame me by my remarks, which
10 were quite frankly charitable in nature to young people
11 who don't know the legal system, particularly as it
12 relates to their family law issues and others, when I
13 made that remark. I'm proud of it. And I would say it
14 again and I say it to everyone in this room, if I can
15 help you, I'm on this earth to help you to serve. If I
16 can help you, please call me and I will do what I can to
17 help you negotiate or whatever it is you need or tell
18 you. Really, I just tell you the right direction to go
19 in. So thank you Mr. Chairman.

20 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Next speaker.

21 MR. BROWN: Ms. Smith.

22 MS. SMITH: Good evening to everyone here present.

23 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Good evening.

24 MS. SMITH: I didn't think I was going to make it
25 because you were so far out and then I have my cane. But

1 Linda, let me tell you something. When you are doing a
2 good job, you are getting criticized all the time. I was
3 accused of hitting people with my cane and I was ready to
4 go to court and then I talked to the Lord. That's
5 something most of us need to do. We need to talk to the
6 Lord and being a minister, he comes here every week and
7 complains about somebody...

8 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Be sure that your comments are
9 to commissioners and to the board.

10 MS. SMITH: But the fact is, I'm going to speak to
11 the commissioners, I want to let you know the members up
12 there are doing a hell of a good job. I know it because I
13 was number one under Coleman Young. So I know what you're
14 going through.

15 So Linda, don't worry about it, look up to the man.
16 He'll take care of everything. Believe me, he will. Now
17 to my police department, I want you to know I love you. I
18 told everyone that I saw since the weekend, you did a
19 hell of a job for this city. I'm going to the convention
20 next month or this month rather, which is in Chicago, my
21 home. I've been here for 70 years and I love it here. I
22 was born and raised in Chicago and I want you to know,
23 I'm going to brag my behind off when I go over there and
24 talk about my police department here because you know why
25 when you put that uniform on, you're protecting me and

1 everybody else in this auditorium. And I want everybody
2 to understand, this is your life and you have extended to
3 save us every day that you put that uniform on. I happen
4 to be 71, 79, damn, I don't even know, 91 years old. I
5 will be 92 on May 31st. And I hope the good Lord, let me
6 stay here so I can talk some more, and especially at the
7 Convention in Chicago. Take care everyone, and bless you,
8 Mr. Chair. Your next 3 speakers would be Xavier
9 Cuevas, followed by Ms. Lydia Maciel, followed by Mr.
10 Joshua Media.

11 MR. CUEVAS: Good evening everyone. My name is Xavier
12 Cuevas. Nice to see all of you. Always a pleasure to see
13 some familiar faces from the lovely Media Services
14 Department. This past Sunday was Cinco de Mayo. I was
15 present working at an event I've covered for the last few
16 years. This year, however, was slightly different as I'm
17 sure many of you have already been made aware. There was,
18 of course, a large police response to "Overcrowding,"
19 resulting in the dispersing of a vast number of visitors
20 and residents. The closing of a number of businesses and
21 the detainment of 7 individuals, one of which was myself.
22 Now, I'm not here to ask you all particularly any
23 questions or for an apology, nor am I here to antagonize
24 you. I've heard the responses, I understand people were
25 doing their jobs and following orders.

1 I am however here to of course encourage you all to
2 do a better job as well as you know, the residents of
3 this area and just throughout the city to become educated
4 and informed on the rules and regulations and processes
5 of organizing community events so that our celebrations
6 can be as respected and protected as events that attract
7 thousands of non-residents to our beautiful city. While
8 the developments and improvements occurring in Detroit
9 have been exciting to see, I hope we can continue to
10 ensure that there is always a place for the diverse
11 people who call the city home for generations and
12 continue to live here. And I'm also here to extend an
13 invitation to a community meeting tomorrow May 10th at
14 4:00 PM in Southwest Detroit regarding some of those very
15 issues and questions and events that occurred on Sunday.
16 So if you would like to hear more, I'll be there and, and
17 several other officials will be there as well. So thank
18 you.

19 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: You know where?

20 MR. CUEVAS: Oh, yes. Here, let me grab the address
21 real quick. That would be 7752 West Vernor, Detroit,
22 Michigan, 48209. So thank you.

23 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you. Commissioner Woods.

24 COMMISSIONER WOODS: Deputy Chief Pritchett, do you
25 have any insight as it relates to this matter that

1 happened at Cinco de Mayo?

2 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Well, let's hold off on that
3 because I believe maybe the next few public commenters
4 have likewise grievances. And so that way you can be
5 comprehensive in your response.

6 MR. BROWN: Ms. Lydia Maciel, followed by Josh Media.

7 MS. MACIEL: Good evening, everyone.

8 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Good evening.

9 MS. MACIEL: I actually wasn't going to speak because
10 there was somebody here that said that we're going to be
11 here, but they're not. And I decided to speak because I
12 see my community here with me as well. And I think it's
13 extremely important that you guys hear us when we speak.
14 It kind of was a smack in our faces to say that the
15 police do a very good job within all of Detroit, because
16 that's not true. And we have seen it thousands and
17 countless of times how we are treated once we're outside
18 of the beautification of Detroit. I also want to address
19 that there are officers who did assault me, never
20 arrested me, but assaulted me. I have my scratches on my
21 side, my bruises, and I still have a sore bruise and a
22 bump on my arm from holding me down. I also want to
23 address that Officer 1154 must, but I mean, must be
24 investigated.

25 There were officers there that didn't have a badge.

1 And he told me, he told me, "I have 300 complaints
2 against me, one won't be more" When I went to the 4th
3 Precinct, and I decided to make my reports, I was greeted
4 very nasty, and I even have it recorded. He decided to
5 take his body cam and record me as if the cameras inside
6 the Precinct weren't enough. That didn't intimidate me.
7 Nothing intimidates me because Detroit built me. And I
8 want the very best for my community and for my officers
9 as well. My uncle is an officer. I helped him study. I'm
10 very proud of my uncle. But what I don't agree with is
11 the nastiness that a lot of these officers have. And a
12 lot of these officers who are chiefs do not see it, they
13 don't. They want to protect them. And I understand it's
14 their blue color code. When I was in the truck, I asked
15 him, can you buckle me? Because I was having a panic
16 attack in the back of the truck, and I hit my head going
17 back and forth. I was ignored completely, besides one who
18 decided to open his mouth. I have a recording. When I was
19 in the back of the truck, he was talking smack with me. I
20 was...

21 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Sorry that's your time. But I
22 do want to point your attention. I'm having a hard time
23 seeing with the lights. A supervising investigator is
24 back there with her hand raised, can you see her?
25 Alright, so if you can go to her. So again, we do have

1 our limitations as commissioners but some of the
2 allegations you made is the responsibility of our Office
3 of Chief investigator to investigate matters of demeanor
4 and force, which I heard in your comments. And so if you
5 don't mind if you can share that information with our
6 chief investigator, we will indeed do a thorough
7 investigation on your behalf.

8 MS. MACIEL: And it's much deeper than an
9 investigation.

10 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Yep. I hear that. I definitely
11 hear that.

12 MR. BROWN: Josh Media, followed by Armando Perez,
13 followed by Miss Lory Parks.

14 MR. MEDIA: Like, you all know how to celebrate
15 yourselves. I mean, I'm here for a whole hour, awards for
16 this, award for that. But there seems to be a disconnect
17 between what the community members are coming up here and
18 saying, and how you guys are talking about yourselves.
19 There's a disconnect between how you enforced the law at
20 the Draft and how you came to our community, realize our
21 community members during a celebration of our heritage
22 during, and our day.

23 I want to know why that is. Help me understand why
24 that is. Why you were brutalizing my community members,
25 why you were dispersing our celebration. Was there a

1 problem? Was there a danger? Why is there such a
2 juxtaposition between how you guys were behaving there
3 and at the Draft. I didn't see any of that in the Draft.
4 There were 2 arrests, right, in the shoe. So please help
5 me to understand why you feel the need to come to a
6 Latino community, a black and brown community, and treat
7 us like that. Help me understand that. Another thing I
8 want you to educate me on is civilian oversight and
9 accountability. Help me understand what kind of direct
10 measures the community has on you guys to help you guys
11 serve us, right? What accountability measures and what
12 power does the community have to dictate what you're
13 going to enforce and your police policy. So if you could
14 answer those two questions, I would very much appreciate
15 that. Thank you.

16 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you.

17 MR. BROWN: Armando.

18 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: So I mean, to answer the first
19 part of your question, this is an 11 member board, where
20 7 of our members are elected. And so that's your first
21 level of accountability, is, you know, paying attention
22 to who's representing you, and you have the right to vote
23 for who you think best represents you. And then also
24 there are always openings and opportunities for you to
25 participate. And so, as you talked about policies, the

1 Chair of our Policy Committee, Commissioner Linda
2 Bernard, you can intend those meetings. You can give
3 suggestions on policies that we're reviewing. You can
4 provide feedback on whether or not you feel like those
5 are accurately representing the community needs. But
6 those are primarily the two ways that you'll be able to
7 engage with the civilian oversight board in holding us
8 accountable as it relates to what it is that you're
9 desiring to see in your community. Go right ahead, sir.

10 MR. PEREZ: Thank you. I, like my peers, wasn't going
11 to speak, but I'm going to just tell my story. So you
12 have just another perspective. Born and raised in
13 Detroit. Love my city. I think overall you guys do a good
14 job, but then there are moments like Sunday Cinco de
15 Mayo. That just doesn't make sense. Very little
16 explanation, very little communication, frustration from
17 everybody because we are just enjoying our holiday like
18 we do every year. And then you have cops that are
19 disrespectful, and are the aggressors for no reason. They
20 don't even communicate. They don't talk to you as they
21 should if you are just a civilian. And the thing that
22 triggered me was, there's a shooting on Michigan and
23 33rd. And so you would've think all of the Precinct, all
24 of the cops are just on Vernor to stop my people from
25 enjoying the day, and instead deal with the issues that

1 are happening on Michigan, deal with the actual problems
2 that are going on in the city instead of taking down an
3 event where we're just trying to enjoy.

4 There were more people last year than there were
5 this year, but they were saying that there were capacity
6 issues. None of it makes sense. My home girl here, she
7 got hurt. My one friend, he got arrested me. I almost got
8 arrested just by stating my piece, saying my voice,
9 what's the problem? Why don't you go take your attention
10 where it belongs? And so we get taken down. Half of us
11 have to leave the other half not knowing how to get home.
12 He said, grow up and figure it out. That's what we're
13 trying to do. But that's my piece. That's my 2 cents.

14 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you.

15 MR. BROWN: Mr. Parks.

16 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: And again, I don't want you to
17 think that we are not being responsive. There are two
18 things that I do want to make clear. That, again, as the
19 Board of Police Commissioners, we are the Civilian
20 Oversight Board. We don't speak for the police
21 department. But again, I will provide DC Pritchett an
22 opportunity to respond to many of the grievances that
23 have been lifted. I just wanted to get them all so that
24 she can be comprehensive in her response. Our next public
25 commenter.

1 MR. BROWN: Ms. Parks, followed by Mr. Ronald Foster,
2 followed by Ms. Cynthia West.

3 MS. PARKS: Good evening.

4 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Good evening.

5 MS. PARKS: Last week, Attorney Hawkins was
6 interviewed by the board who is qualified to be the
7 Acting of the board. Did you guys get a legal opinion on
8 whether or not Attorney Hawkins can be the Acting of the
9 board? That's one question. My next question is, how many
10 of you board of Police Commissioners are appointed by
11 Duggan? The next one is the community still wants to know
12 where or when you will have the complaints or the
13 citations that were given to you, maybe a year or two ago
14 for the officers who were called the booty boys. These
15 officers were going around the City of Detroit doing body
16 cavity searches without any warrants or anything. So
17 that's another question. And I know you guys know that he
18 was also the chief of police, chief of staff, the number
19 one booty boys. Citizens and District Council for several
20 of them across the city, and several across the city. I
21 would like to all come to the Board of Police
22 Commissioners meeting, but a lot of people in the
23 community don't attend when they are at the headquarters.
24 Why? Because a lot of people are intimidated by going to
25 the headquarters to tell all the police about what

1 happened to them in the communities. That's another one.
2 Last of all, do you guys know why the Board of Police
3 Commissioners was created in this city? I don't know
4 about any other city, but I can tell you about this city.
5 And if you don't know, you need to read up on why Coleman
6 Young had this Board of Police Commissioners created. If
7 you don't know, none of the Board of Police Commissioners
8 should be police officers.

9 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you.

10 MS. PARKS: Thank you.

11 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: That's your time. And again,
12 yes, we did get a legal opinion relative to the potential
13 candidate for the Board of Police Commissioners
14 secretary's position. Four commissioners are appointed by
15 the mayor, unless there's an elected member who vacates
16 their position, then the mayor has the opportunity also
17 to appoint them in duration. And if you have the citizen
18 complaint number for those officers you were referring to
19 we can get a status update on that. Go right ahead. I'm
20 sorry.

21 COMMISSIONER WOODS: It's like a criminal matter as
22 well, but you need to check with the Wayne County
23 Prosecutor on that.

24 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Yeah. But again, if her
25 statement is accurate, and I don't have any belief that

1 it is not, that a citizen complaint was filed, I think
2 her question was where we are on that investigation. So
3 whatever that can be. Yeah, we'll give her that update.
4 Go right ahead.

5 MR. FOSTER: Good evening.

6 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Good evening.

7 MR. FOSTER: Through the Chair. First thing I wanted
8 to say is I just stand in support with our District 6
9 community. I will firmly say that bigotry, under any
10 circumstances, should not be allowed within the city.
11 Secondly, if we listen to the community, one of the
12 things they highlighted is, they don't believe that the
13 higher command knows what goes on. So I think it'd be
14 beneficial if we acknowledge that we have potential
15 problems within a rank and file, and then we can start
16 working on policies to address those things. But we have
17 to acknowledge the damage that has been done or potential
18 damage that has been done to our community members.
19 Thirdly, across our city, I'm here to advocate for black
20 men to be held accountable for their role in our
21 community and society. It is not the government's job to
22 feed our children. It's not the government's job to
23 protect our grandparents. It's not the government's job
24 to do any of these things.

25 It's the black man's job to protect this family and

1 do that. And it's been too long that we have not held the
2 black man accountable in this role within our society. We
3 go straight to the police and we do all these other
4 things. We as black men, have to stand up and take our
5 responsibilities, let down your shame, do what you have
6 to do, and contribute within our communities and uplift
7 thoroughly. I appreciate the work of ceasefire. They
8 stand out, obviously different from the other
9 organizations with character and a lot of other things.
10 So I do appreciate the work that they do. A couple of
11 people that I see in the community events all the time, I
12 see Commissioner Moore at all the community events. I see
13 the commander here at all of the community events, which
14 is accessible to us as citizens. So I do appreciate that.
15 I got a lot more to say, but I have previously advocated
16 for active recruitment in District six, and that was last
17 year sometime. If we are in our community, then a lot of
18 times we are in a better place to prevent things from
19 happening. Thank you all.

20 MR. BROWN: Ms. West.

21 MS. WEST: Good evening. My name is Cynthia Kylian
22 Marie West, and I would like to speak about the events of
23 Cinco de Mayo. I have some, some statements from the
24 community that I think are very important. What
25 protection were the police providing when they shut down

1 multiple Latino owned businesses in Southwest Detroit on
2 Cinco de Mayo, taco trucks, Fiesta vibes at El Club
3 shutting down burner. Multiple people couldn't get home
4 and had to park their cars and walk around. Multiple
5 businesses missed out on income revenue on a day the
6 community had been planning for. Artists came together to
7 celebrate a day of pride with our community, and they
8 closed everything down with no threat present. It's hard
9 for our people and for the community to say that this
10 wasn't racially motivated or that this wasn't done with
11 prejudice. My question is, how many protests, how many
12 posts, how many riots will it take before we actually
13 feel like we are heard and we are seen and we are
14 protected? There's only so much a person can take before
15 they feel they have to take matters into their own hands.
16 So when will we actually be seen and heard and to feel
17 safe? An incident that happened in Southwest Detroit
18 would not be going on in Sterling Heights, would not be
19 going on in Royal Oak, and would not be happening in
20 Birmingham. When do we as Detroit residents actually get
21 to feel that piece of security? And that's it for me.

22 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you.

23 MR. BROWN: Mr. Chair, your next speaker will be
24 Minister Bey. While he's coming up, I got two late cards,
25 okay?

1 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Yes.

2 MR. BROWN: Minister Bey, followed by Julia
3 Fernandez, followed by Emilio Fernandez.

4 MINISTER BEY: Good evening.

5 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Good evening.

6 MINISTER BEY: To the board here. I see we have a
7 major problem out there. And I would suggest, why don't
8 you all go out there and have a meeting with the people.
9 Be transparent, let them know we are here for you and
10 hear those complaints. That will be something that will
11 be monumental just to do that alone, so you could add.
12 But I had a couple of concerns or questions. Is marijuana
13 still considered a drug? I just wanted to know, is it
14 still considered a drug on the federal level?

15 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: What?

16 MINISTER BEY: Is it? I just want to know. Is it not
17 still considered a drug on the federal level? Is it
18 considered a drug on the..

19 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Yes.

20 MINISTER BEY: Okay. That's why I wanted to know.
21 Okay. So I wanted to get that out the way because we have
22 problems with our youth in the community, period. Let's
23 take that gateway drug along with other things that we
24 need to address. I hear a lot of statistics up here. I
25 don't know what they are talking about. This is down 7,

1 that's up 9. Give me some base numbers. What do we have?
2 A hundred, now we are down to 77. Let's come with base
3 numbers, because people can always blame you with
4 statistics. Some people may not speak on it. I'm speaking
5 on it because I'm hearing it's up 3.2, it's down 6.1, but
6 we're not at a jockey race or auction or something like
7 that. Talk to the people you know, in plain language.
8 Now, I heard this...

9 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: DC Pritchett.

10 MINISTER BEY: Pardon me, DC Pritchett giving us all
11 these statistics. I hear it all the time, people like
12 they really know. How many of you all are here really
13 know about those statistics. How many of you all really
14 know what it is saying? There you go. How many of you all
15 would like to know what it's saying when they're saying
16 all these 7, 2, 3. Give us the number, then we can really
17 see what's going on in our committee and our community. I
18 appreciate that. We had something going on over here with
19 the inspectors they hired. You say you hired some more
20 inspectors.

21 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Investigators. Yeah,

22 MINISTER BEY: Investigators. But now you said
23 something about it, you can get through the job quicker
24 because they are doing what, what did you say they were
25 doing? You told me they were doing something.

1 CI WARFIELD: Through the Chair. What we're doing,
2 we're doing several things. One of the things we're doing
3 is that we automated our reports. That...

4 MINISTER BEY: What does that mean?

5 CI WARFIELD: That literally means that the report
6 now, it takes about an hour and a half...

7 MINISTER BEY: Just tell me what it means, sir. It
8 means you can speak to it...

9 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: So your time is expired, but
10 I'll allow him to respond to you.

11 MINISTER BEY: The only reason why I'm asking that is
12 because I called in for the job. They told me you had to
13 be a typist and you had to type so fast. I said, we're in
14 an animated age right now where we could just speak to
15 texts and it'll put it on the paper. They say they didn't
16 want to spend the money.

17 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Yeah. Duly noted. But again...

18 MINISTER BEY: So now we are doing it.

19 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Your time has elapsed so...

20 MINISTER BEY: Oh, oh, oh, okay.

21 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: To be fair to the other public
22 commenters, but we...

23 MINISTER BEY: I want to address those concerns.

24 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Yeah. Got you.

25 MINISTER BEY: I want somebody to speak on, just like

1 you spoke on some of that.

2 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: I got you. Yep, indeed. Yep.

3 And there are some standardized practices that go into
4 hiring that's even beyond our office, that's done by the
5 city's HR process. And so that's, you know, a part of the
6 parcel about how we hire investigators. But, you know,
7 there could be a conversation had regarding that. And
8 thank you. I mean, again we don't want to just be here to
9 be here particularly since we are volunteers. We want to
10 be effective. And so to your recommendation about using
11 the base numbers over the percentages can help the
12 information to be more accessible to our communities. And
13 so we'll take that to heart. Yeah. Yes, ma'am.

14 MS. FERNANDEZ: My name is Julie Fernandez. I'm a
15 Mexican American girl. I'm 21 years old. So for, as you
16 know, a lot of small owned businesses were shut down by
17 the Detroit Police just raiding in like the military,
18 telling us that we didn't have permits overhearing them
19 that were illegals. I just think that was honestly a very
20 racist crime that I experienced. I honestly never thought
21 I would experience that with my life. I was actually one
22 of the artists at a club.

23 There were also 40 artists, probably more that were
24 going to perform at a club. Everything just went downhill
25 when the police just came in, and just told us a whole

1 lot of racist stuff. And after I was done with my show,
2 and went outside to get some food with my brother,
3 actually. And as I went outside, that's when I saw Lydia.
4 She was speaking right now, detained by 4 police officer
5 guys against one woman. I have never seen that in my
6 life. I never thought I would. I really think that is
7 social injustice right there.

8 Then I went outside, police officers were just
9 blocking roads. They were just blocking roads. This is
10 from what I heard, they were knocking on people's doors
11 trying to shut down small Latino owned businesses. This
12 is a holiday that we celebrate every year. I'm
13 celebrating my culture. And if I can do that within my
14 community, then I honestly don't feel welcome here. I was
15 born and raised here. This is my home. Thank you.

16 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you.

17 MR. BROWN: Mr. Emilio Fernandez.

18 MR. FERNANDEZ: One concern I do have with the
19 Detroit Police Department is its use in collaboration
20 with surveillance technology, especially with one called,
21 let's see what it's called. It's one formerly known as a
22 ShotSpotter, now known as a, let's see what's it called?
23 Yeah. Now it's known as Sound Thinking. It's a
24 surveillance technology that is also being used in
25 collaboration with other surveillance technology, like

1 also in countries like in Israel as well that uses this
2 technology to like unlawfully detained Palestinian in the
3 West Bank. And the same technology used in poor black and
4 brown neighborhoods in Detroit. I just asked, like for
5 the Detroit police department to cut ties with the Sound
6 Thinking Corporation, to no longer collaborate with them,
7 and to immediately end its program. And that's my main
8 concern about that. And is funding still is... are you guys
9 still collaborating with the Sound Thinking Corporation
10 with the formerly known as ShotSpotter?

11 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Are you asking, do we still
12 use ShotSpotter technology?

13 MR. FERNANDEZ: Yeah.

14 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Yes, we do.

15 MR. FERNANDEZ: Yeah. Just the real concern,
16 basically, I have major concerns with that technology as
17 it's already been used to unlawfully detain 6 Detroit
18 residents as well too. And it's used at that technology
19 is also used by an illegal apartheid regime as well too.
20 And this kind of technology should not be operated inside
21 the city.

22 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you.

23 MR. BROWN: Mr. Chair, your next set of speakers will
24 be on Zoom Mr. Meeko Williams, followed by Ms. Betty
25 Varner. Mr. Williams.

1 MR. WILLIAMS: Yes. Hi. Can you hear me?

2 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Yes, we can. Go right ahead.

3 MR. WILLIAMS: Yes. Hi. I would like to know if this
4 question can be responded to. What is the qualification
5 and the professional resume of the secretary? I'm really
6 confused as to how you all are doing this process. Can
7 you please lay that out for me, clearly? Also, I want to
8 give my statement of concern about the Mexican town raid
9 by Detroit Police. This is a 55% white police force that
10 was barely out. That is very much misrepresentation. They
11 also shut down some of the businesses that were unlawful
12 because I'm sure that events had permits and licensing
13 that have been held up by the city. All of the events are
14 basically held up because of city dysfunction. That is
15 unacceptable. And you should apologize to all of those
16 people and release those that you've arrested with no
17 fines. It is unacceptable for this police department to
18 really come to the Gestapo. That is Gestapo panic. It's
19 unacceptable, and it shouldn't be tolerated because you
20 made those people feel in their own community. It is
21 almost as bad as the ice raid. Thank you for taking my
22 comment. Please answer my question from before. What is
23 the qualification of this board secretary? Please lay it
24 out for me, Mr. Chairman. Thank you.

25 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Right, and so my response to

1 that would be that the responsibilities of the board
2 secretary is enumerated in our city's charter, but as it
3 relates to the responsibilities as we are now under
4 deliberations about hiring a board secretary is under
5 review. So we're trying to get a description that is more
6 accurate to the role. Our challenge has been that because
7 it's called the secretary to the board most believed that
8 it's a clerical role. However, the secretary to the board
9 is more like an executive director. Not only do they
10 serve as the liaison between the Board of Police
11 Commissioners and our Office of the Chief Investigator,
12 but they also serve as a liaison between the Board of
13 Police Commissioners and the Detroit Police Department
14 overseeing a substantial amount of staff committee
15 structures and the like. And so we're hoping to again
16 rewrite the job posting so that it can be more accurate
17 to what the role of the board secretary is. But as it is
18 stated in the City Charter you can find the
19 responsibilities of the board secretary.

20 MR. BROWN: Ms. Varner.

21 MS. VARNER: Good evening to all within the sound of
22 my voice. I'm Betty A. Varner, the president of the
23 DeSoda Ellsworth Block Association. I first wanted to
24 start off by saying congrats to the Detroit Police
25 Department for the successful work they did for the NFL.

1 In regards to the issues for the event with the parade
2 and the community in Southwest Detroit, the Detroit
3 Police Department needs to work with that community to
4 bring some peace so that whatever happens, there needs to
5 be some peace so the people will feel comfortable in
6 having events in their community. And I'm in support of
7 my police department, but this is my opinion and what I
8 feel. Congrats to the work that the 8th Precinct is doing
9 in their community. I'm going to talk about my 10th
10 Precinct. I want to talk about and brag about our NPOs
11 Officer Sumpter, Officer Parker, Officer Barry, Officer
12 Rogers and Officer Barber.

13 My direct NPO is Officer Sumter. Whatever I need,
14 she steps up to the plate and helps me to get our issues
15 resolved. But if she is not available, which is what I
16 like about our NPOs, any one of the ones that I listed
17 will step up and make sure the problem is resolved. Kudos
18 to our NPOs. I also want to say we are participating in
19 Feed the Police this week? We are feeding our 10th
20 Precinct on Friday, May 17th. We're going to be feeding
21 all shifts. That's 12000 Livernois. If you'd like to
22 donate, please bring your food, good food to our
23 Precinct, Livernois and Amherst. And last but not least,
24 I want to say kudos to my Police Commissioner Ricardo
25 Moore. He is so on point...

1 MR. BROWN: Mr. Chairman, the last 2 speakers will
2 be, One of the Coldest, followed by former Commissioner
3 William Davis.

4 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Caller, are you there?

5 ONE OF THE COLDEST: Can you hear me clearly?

6 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Yes, go right ahead.

7 ONE OF THE COLDEST: Okay. To all the police
8 officers, sworn officers in presence right now. To the
9 Hispanic brothers and sisters there, police, you took an
10 oath to protect and serve the citizens of the City of
11 Detroit. The oath you took, you gave your word when you
12 gave that oath, uphold it. Commissioner Bernard,
13 impressive resume Minister Eric Blount, I've heard you
14 numerous times say disparaging things about Commissioner
15 Bernard. You are a man of the cloth, man of the clergy,
16 and that goes out to all the black Hispanic pastors,
17 ministers, bishops in the City of Detroit. The Detroit
18 city clerk has been caught blue handed lying on public
19 record in regards to an investigative report about
20 allegations of absentee ballot voter fraud. We have
21 Detroit trap houses here in the City of Detroit. That's
22 right. Detroit trap houses. Our regular trap house slangs
23 dope. These particular trap houses slangs votes, they
24 slang votes are the houses here in the City of Detroit.
25 There's no bigger issue than the right to free and fair,

1 open, honest elections here in the City of Detroit. Now,
2 this report that was proffered by the Department of
3 Elections puts the nail in the coffin, clearly
4 demonstrates that not only do we have absentee ballot
5 voter fraud here, we have international absentee ballot
6 voter fraud happening. It occurred in the 2024 United
7 States Presidential Primary election from 12842 Sussex
8 Street over in District 1, James Tate Junior's District,
9 one of the Detroit City...

10 MR. BROWN: Former Commissioner Davis.

11 FMR. COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Good evening. Can I be
12 heard?

13 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Yes, you can go right ahead.

14 FMR. COMMISSIONER DAVIS: I'd like to start off by
15 saying I believe that the Board of Police Commissioners
16 budget should be increased, especially as we find more
17 and more police officers on the force of a different
18 demographic than what the City of Detroit has, and it
19 has continued to evolve with. In 1973, during that
20 election, when Coleman Young was elected to the Board of
21 Police Commissioners, the City Charter was changed to
22 create the Board of Police Commissioners. There were a
23 lot of problems in Detroit because the police force was
24 predominantly Caucasian, and the city was becoming more
25 and more black. Now the city is even more black. And the

1 police force that was in balance for a while, it's
2 returning back to being more and more white. I know I got
3 a lot of complaints about Cinco de Mayo Day and about a
4 lot of people in Southwest Detroit.

5 I think that the board should have a town hall
6 meeting in Southwest Detroit. I think the board should be
7 a little bit more proactive, and the board should
8 recognize that people feel like they are not being
9 treated properly. And maybe something's right and
10 something's wrong, you know, and that something needs to
11 be done. We need to make sure everybody feels comfortable
12 in our city. I know for a fact most of the time when you
13 have even more people downtown Detroit at like Tiger
14 Opening Gang, where you got a whole lot of white people
15 down there drinking you know, drinking, urinating on the
16 street, but very few people get arrested. But in
17 Southwest Detroit, you have majority Hispanic and
18 minority communities where it's not as big of a crowd
19 because I've seen big crowds out there, unlike some of
20 you I worked in Southwest Detroit for 34 years. So I
21 think something needs to be done. Something needs to be
22 done to straighten this out. You know, we do not want
23 conditions to get worse this summer. Thank you.

24 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you. Alright, DC
25 Pritchett.

1 DC PRITCHETT: Through the Chair. I have invited the
2 4th Precinct Command team who were out there Friday,
3 Saturday and Sunday to approach the board and tell the
4 board what they did, what they saw, and some of the
5 reasons why some of the things happened.

6 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Alright, please come forward.

7 CMDR HOLDERBAUM: Good evening, honorable board.

8 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Good evening.

9 CMDR HOLDERBAUM: I am Commander Shelley Holderbaum
10 of the 4th Precinct. This is Captain Brandon Lewis. Cinco
11 de Mayo was a 3 day celebration. This year was a little
12 different. Cinco de Mayo fell on the same day as the
13 parade. We had over 50,000 people from Vernor to Woodmere
14 to Vernor 21st, which is over a 2 mile stretch. The
15 parade lasted 3 hours and ended at 3:00 PM, and that is
16 when the extended celebration started. 8 people were
17 ticketed and released. There were no arrests. Nobody went
18 to the DDC. No Baber (phonetic) incidents were on Vernor.
19 We closed down a non-permanent outside illegal event at
20 El Club. It had a wrestling ring in it, a stage and two
21 food locations would diminish the actual capacity of the
22 location. I did receive an email from the city that was
23 not permanent, it was an illegal event. We also shut down
24 a non-permanent mechanical bull stage. A lot of people
25 towards the end in the evening hours, a lot of public

1 drinking, marijuana smoking, loitering, and we attempted
2 to move the crowds and attempted to clear the streets so
3 we could open them up and make it safe for the public. It
4 did become a public safety issue. We have room for
5 improvement and we will be working with the businesses
6 and the communities next year to make sure that it's a
7 safe event for everybody.

8 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Alright. I'm going to ask that
9 the public commenters, please maintain your decorum. Are
10 there any questions or comments for commissioners
11 relative to that report? Excuse me. Again, public
12 commenters. I'm going to ask that you would do your best
13 to maintain your decorum. My question is, you know, I
14 think you stated the fact that the parade and the Cinco
15 de Mayo observance fell on the same day. But I mean, this
16 celebration has been going on for years. What made this
17 year different?

18 CMDR. HOLDERBAUM: I think sir, that the difference
19 was Cinco de Mayo will happen and we get folks from all
20 over and outside in the suburbs, and everybody comes in
21 on May 5th. And generally then the parade is on a Sunday.
22 The parade is always on a Sunday. This time, the parade
23 and Cinco de Mayo fell on the exact same day. So it
24 brought in a lot more people. We had well over 50,000
25 people. And just from the perspective of me and Captain,

1 on Friday and Saturday, we did get a lot of calls and
2 complaints from actual legal businesses and folks who,
3 you know, have their businesses and it is a big event for
4 them. And then folks coming up and setting up illegal
5 vending places and selling the same things that they were
6 selling. So we did have a city license person with the
7 officers, so we did shut down illegal vending people who
8 did not have their permits to do that on Friday and
9 Saturday. And the 2 events that we shut down on Sunday,
10 one of them was El Club, we shut the outside event down,
11 but we did not shut the club down.

12 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: And I can imagine again,
13 public commenter's community, I'm going to ask again,
14 that you maintain your decorum? So 2 things in that, one,
15 and I think that you mentioned it, you know, obviously it
16 doesn't resolve the harms that have already been done,
17 but to be more proactive next year, because again, when
18 it came to the NFL Draft or the fireworks or any of these
19 other events, we can predict the population that's going
20 to be out there. And as a result, there are plans and
21 measures that are often put in place prior to so that any
22 police intervention is not taking them off guard or
23 surprising. It seems as if this one may have caught us
24 off guard.

25 Is it?

1 CMDR. HOLDERBAUM: Well, I don't think so, sir. I
2 think we had more than enough officers. I and the captain
3 were out there from 8:00 AM to midnight. And the
4 celebration didn't stop. It went on to all hours of the
5 night. Unfortunately, I could not open the streets up.
6 That's how many pedestrians we had. The streets were
7 full, and so we couldn't open up for vehicular traffic.
8 On Monday, I myself, with the captain, requested a
9 meeting that we had today with the event coordinator
10 because we want to do better. We want to work with the
11 community. We don't want to have to shut things down, but
12 there are laws and there are rules. And as the police,
13 that's what we have to do. We have to enforce the law.

14 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: And then obviously there has
15 to be some level of repair and reconciliation, because as
16 you stated that you didn't shut down the event on the
17 inside, but I can imagine with the kind of police
18 presence that was there, there may have been some level
19 of intimidation that might have caused people to disperse
20 regardless of whether or not the inside was still open.
21 And so again, repairing that sense of trust and
22 relationship in that community, I think is going to be
23 paramount to again, moving forward. Commissioner Woods.

24 COMMISSIONER WOODS: Yeah. How you doing, Commander,
25 right?

1 CMDR. HOLDERBAUM: Yes, sir.

2 COMMISSIONER WOODS: Is it possible that you guys can
3 engage... I lost my voice... to engage with this particular
4 community, to have a conversation with them to see if
5 there can be some mediation with the situation?

6 CMDR. HOLDERBAUM: There's a meeting tomorrow at 4
7 o'clock that I know they've already mentioned, that I
8 will be present, along with Councilwoman Santiago Romero.
9 And you know, sir, just so you know, I lived in this
10 community for a long time. My children went to school in
11 the Catholic schools here. I've always worked for 26
12 years, DPD. Coming to Southwest Detroit was a dream job
13 for me because yeah, [foreign phrase]. But definitely yes
14 sir, we're going to work with them. I feel like this is
15 my family, you know, my children are Mexican American
16 and...

17 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Excuse me. Again, I ask the
18 public commenters, please maintain your decorum. Thank
19 you.

20 COMMISSIONER WOODS: Did you guys identify anything
21 that was alarming to you guys, as far as officers wise?

22 CMDR. HOLDERBAUM: I and the captain have been
23 watching the body cameras. You know, it's hard because
24 all officers are wearing their body cameras and mics.
25 Because it was such a long event, it takes a minute for

1 them to download. But we have been watching.

2 COMMISSIONER WOODS: And so you guys are taking a
3 deep dive into the situation, and are going to deal with
4 any bad actors if you identify though.

5 CMDR. HOLDERBAUM: Absolutely, sir.

6 COMMISSIONER WOODS: Okay. Thank you.

7 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Any further...? Commissioner
8 Moore?

9 COMMISSIONER MOORE: Yes. I don't have a question for
10 the captain and commander. More so for our chief
11 investigator. During public comment, the badge number
12 1154 came up. Can you look into that and share with the
13 board what your findings are?

14 CI WARFIELD: Yes, sir.

15 CMDR. HOLDERBAUM: I'm pretty sure the young lady did
16 file a complaint at the Precinct, and it was taken by the
17 watch commander on the desk. Well, we'll get

18 Back...

19 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: But then, and I think I'll
20 make a connection here tonight. And any comment that is
21 made during public comment is a matter of public record
22 and we make CCRs based on that as well. So I'm confident
23 that it has been recorded, and if not, we'll ensure that
24 it has been. Any further questions or comments? I don't
25 know how we'll do this. I mean that meeting tomorrow at 4

1 o'clock, if we can get an investigator there somehow so
2 that whatever might be mentioned, if there are some
3 complaints, some allegations of misconduct that are
4 lifted, we can follow up on that as our role and
5 responsibility in this affair. Yes.

6 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Mr. Chairman, because the
7 community is tremendously actively involved in this
8 meeting this evening, I've asked our Acting Board
9 Secretary, Mr. Brown, to provide me a copy of the written
10 testimony, if you will, of everyone that's spoken today
11 during public comment. And I'm sure he will share that
12 with the rest of the board so that we can follow up
13 appropriately. Thank you for your patience with us.

14 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Vice Chair Smith.

15 VICE CHAIR SMITH: Yes, through the Chair, and just
16 to reiterate with the ones that complained today, the
17 proper process for them to make their complaint is not
18 through the police department, but the proper channels.
19 Could you please explain that to them again please?

20 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Yep. Chief investigator, what
21 ways can individuals file CCRs

22 CI WARFIELD: Through the Chair.

23 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: A civilian complaint.

24 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: A citizen complaint report?

25 CI WARFIELD: Thank you. Through the Chair. There are

1 several ways that citizens can do that. Our number at the
2 Office of the Chief Investigator is area code (313) 596
3 2499. Again, (313) 596 2499. You also can file a
4 complaint right online on the Board of Police
5 Commissioners online page, and you can go right on there
6 and file the complaint there. You can also fax that
7 comment in, as well as you can email it to us as well.
8 And we did give out several brochures tonight for members
9 who had spoken during public comment. We already have
10 received some complaints in our office concerning the
11 Cinco de Mayo event, and some of the complaints regarding
12 how officers interfaced with some of the citizens. So our
13 investigators are well aware of some of the concerns of
14 the citizens.

15 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Commissioner Hernandez.

16 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: Thank you. Through the
17 Chair. I'll be entirely brief and I think there are still
18 facts that need to be submitted and I look forward to
19 every resident who feels unsafe that they have a
20 platform; they feel they have a platform to actually be
21 able to file those complaints independent of, of what
22 that process might look like. I think my colleagues have
23 expressed the need for repair to occur. I think there's
24 always going to be ongoing relational buildup that needs
25 to happen. The job that Commander Shelly Holderbaum and

1 her team are leading at the 4th Precinct is not an easy
2 one. I will say though, as a lifelong resident of
3 Southwest Detroit more needs to be done in the sense of
4 just bringing people together. It's not just the fact of
5 submitting a complaint, it's the fact of the follow-up
6 work that needs to happen, that responsibility falls on
7 this board. And I think that our team has been doing good
8 work. And it's not to put anyone on the spot, including
9 our chief investigator, but there needs to be additional
10 format, and I think the gentleman who was here, who
11 stated before, there needs to be statistics that are
12 digestible by the community so that we know that
13 improvement is being made and that oversight is properly
14 being delivered. So with that, I know that I've been in
15 communication with Commander Holderbaum every single step
16 of the way. She's been very cooperative. And with that,
17 I'll withhold any additional comments until I know more
18 of the facts that are happening and I look forward to
19 seeing and reviewing the body worn camera personally. And
20 I know that you've always been helpful. So I appreciate
21 the work that you're doing. I also appreciate all the
22 residents that have come out, and I actually anticipated
23 and hoped for more residents to be here from Southwest
24 Detroit. I know that it's a little bit of a drive, but
25 either way, I appreciate you for showing up.

1 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Alright. Thank you. With that,
2 now we will move to the presentation to the board by the
3 8th Precinct Police Community Relations Council. So we
4 invite you to come forward now.

5 MS. TUBBS: I'm going to make this brief because
6 we've been here for a minute.

7 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Yes.

8 MS. TUBBS: I will say this, and I'm going to start
9 with this, and I'm going to do my welcome. And I'm going
10 to make sure you know, I'm a cheerleader for the 8th
11 Precinct. So, disclaimer, I'm a fan. Are we perfect? No.
12 Are we individually perfect? No. So, having said that,
13 I'm going to make this as short as I can, but I would
14 like to say a prayer of protection and a prayer of
15 healing for what occurred on Cinco de Mayo or for any
16 transgressions that you all may think have happened in
17 your past. It's always, get a sprinkling of healing,
18 protection, and know that you are valuable, you are
19 appreciated. We are all children of God. We are daughters
20 of a king. We are sons of a king. At the same time, we
21 all have to act like we are daughters of a king, and we
22 have to act like we are sons of a king at the same time.
23 All right, so let me get at it.

24 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you.

25 MS. TUBBS: So I want to do a welcome real quick. I

1 want to welcome the Board of Police Commissioners to the
2 house of the 8th Precinct, and in our humble opinion, the
3 best of the best men and women in Blue. So where's my 8th
4 Precinct community? Listen, I'm a little biased, just a
5 little bit. We'd like to also acknowledge our
6 Commissioner from District 1, Tamara Liberty Smith, and
7 also Linda Bernard from District 2. I had the distinct
8 pleasure of sitting next to Miss Bernard at the Mayor's
9 State of the City address, and it was a pleasure to have
10 talked to her. And as far as Commissioner Smith, we are
11 out here on these streets constantly. So I know what she
12 does, I know what she stands for, and she has a lot of
13 passion for the people and doing the right thing at all
14 times.

15 And a heartfelt shout out to the commissioners over
16 the other districts and the staff members that fall under
17 you. It's a big task and responsibility. Thank you very
18 much for what you do. And again, welcome to the house of
19 the 8th Precinct. So, I wanted to say something about our
20 board of directors. Now, I have some of them here and
21 some of them are not here, so I'm going to go over them
22 pretty quickly. Yes, I'm president. My name is Gail
23 Tubbs, and yes, I actually hail from Honolulu, Hawaii. So
24 I'm going to give everybody one more time, an Aloha!

25 COMMISSIONERS: Aloha!

1 MS. TUBBS: Aloha means hello, goodbye, and I love
2 you all at the same time. One word.

3 COMMISSIONER WOODS: Aloha.

4 MS. TUBBS: So President, myself, Vice President is
5 Michelle Ruffin. She's not here tonight. Treasurer Val
6 Lever was the young lady that was here. We have recording
7 secretary Keita Walker. Wave to everybody, Keda.
8 Correspondence secretary, Harrison Shelby. He wasn't here
9 and he was also part of a Resolution. Sergeant at Arms is
10 vacant. Members at large, we have Rhonda Mitchell right
11 here. Peggy Noble, actually her birthday is today, so
12 she's celebrating with her family and Deborah Chapman. So
13 the mission I want to say is that this is a newly elected
14 board that was elected in November. So we are really
15 trying to make sure that we get the team together, get
16 the team dynamics together, and make sure we're in one
17 accord when it comes to the goal and the mission. So the
18 mission of the 8th Precinct Community Relations Council
19 is to promote a favorable relationship between the
20 community and law enforcement agencies, to initiate and
21 participate in educational programs that will enhance the
22 security and wellbeing of the community. To act as a
23 liaison between law enforcement agencies, citizens,
24 churches, business schools, and other civic
25 organizations.

1 And to disseminate information and to promote and
2 initiate programs that are beneficial to the community.
3 That's the mission of the council. The purpose, we as a
4 board came up with this in our planning meeting in the
5 early part of March. And all of us had a hand in these
6 pieces that we call the purpose. So our purpose is we are
7 committed to growth and to inspire our community with
8 vision, respect, exemplifying integrity, while engaging
9 with our police department. So that's our main purpose
10 for our council. Values, we picked 4. The first one was
11 respect. I want to sing RESPECT... But anyway, respect.
12 We will be kind, courteous, avoid interrupting or talking
13 over one another or causing disturbances. Think before we
14 speak and check our language and tone.

15 Thank you, back there. Second, value, integrity. We
16 will be honest, accountable, reliable, transparent, and
17 ethical in all that we do. Third value, diversity. We
18 will promote the representation and participation of
19 different groups of individuals, and additionally, we
20 will embrace diverse points of view in order to come up
21 with sensible solutions to support our communities and
22 public safety. And our last value is inclusivity.
23 Inclusivity, which means making sure everyone feels
24 welcome, valued, and respected, no matter who they are or
25 where they come from. Thank you for the amen, back there.

1 All right, these are our 2024 goals. Develop the board
2 structure, increase membership, construct committees, and
3 enhance frequent communication between the 8th Precinct
4 and the board. And to plan a community event and holiday
5 function.

6 So some of the community led crime prevention
7 measures, citizens Radio Patrol, are in the Berg Lahser
8 community, Grandmont, old Redford and Rosedale Park. If
9 anyone here is interested in forming a radio patrol in
10 their community, please contact Myra Gracey, Detroit
11 Public Safety Headquarters, Chief's Neighborhood Liaison.
12 And the number is (313) 596 2520 or
13 graciem800@detroitmy.gov. Another community led crime
14 prevention measure is to reduce violent crime through
15 Community Violence Intervention (CBI), ShotStoppers, and
16 Detroit People's Action. Detroit 300 and New Era or ERA
17 and how you want to play it. Detroit People's Community.
18 There was a 26% decline from November 23rd through
19 January, 2024, which is a 3 month period. Detroit 300 in
20 the same 3 months did not have a decline. And my
21 understanding is they had to go back to the drawing board
22 to do some more strategic plan, some more strategic
23 measures to make sure that we move the dial in their
24 area. And lastly, New Era, well, New ERA, 35% decline in
25 the same period, the 3 month period between November,

1 2023 and January, 2024. So I'm getting ready to end this.
2 All you all could go eat, go home, and watch some TV,
3 what have you. But I'm going to say this last thing. We
4 do love our 8th Precinct, our beloved 8th Precinct. I'm
5 here. Start. We love our Commander Dietrich Lever. We
6 love our Captain Brian Bowser, who's going to retire. I
7 remember when he was a lieutenant, and then captain, NPO,
8 Sergeant Crystal Johns, come on now. NPO, Shawn Childrey
9 with that fine haircut she has. Yes. NPO Barron Coleman,
10 aka BC, aka Mayor of the 8th Precinct, NPO, Precious
11 Reid, NPO, Troy Wesley and NPO, Dario Sharp. We love you.
12 So our meetings here for the Community Relations Council
13 are generally the last Monday of each month at 6:30 PM
14 right here in this auditorium. However, in May we have a
15 Memorial Day Holiday. So it's going to be May 20th. June
16 is fireworks, so it'll be on June 17th. We convene, have
17 meetings from March to November, and then December our
18 meeting is the holiday event. We didn't have one last
19 year. We will have one this year.

20 All right, so we are going to eat good people. Okay.
21 Coffee with a Cop. We have here NPO Sergeant Johns, she
22 conducts that. That's at 10:00 AM Second Wednesday, bi-
23 monthly. The next one will be June 12th. After that
24 August 14th, October 9th and December 11th. That is a
25 great opportunity for all the individual communities that

1 the 8th Precinct serves. They come out and they get
2 updated on what's going on with our Precinct, what
3 they're doing in our neighborhoods, and bring issues to
4 light. So we continually communicate with our people,
5 it's a continual thing. And lastly, Commander Lever, he
6 did mention the upcoming events. We too are having our
7 police appreciation luncheon on May 17th. The Peacenik
8 comes back for the 3rd year in a row to my park, O'Hare
9 Park on June 29th. National Night Out, August 6th,
10 Halloween.

11 October 31st is tentative. And again, we hope to
12 have that holiday celebration in December to be
13 determined on the date and exactly what that looks like.
14 So lastly, I'm closing now. I want to thank the Board of
15 Police Commissioners. This is the first time I've ever
16 experienced this. It is an experience. I want to make
17 sure I eat before I come, Okay? We have a little
18 something in the back there for you. Yeah, I don't know
19 if you guys do that, but here in the 8th Precinct, we eat
20 okay, we eat, and we make sure our people eat as well
21 because there's something about eating. My mother used to
22 say, baby, there are two times, two conditions when
23 people are more relaxed. And you can introduce an idea,
24 you can maybe even change their mind because they're in a
25 relaxed state. One, is at the table when they're eating,

1 the other one is on a personal level, but that would be
2 pillow talk.

3 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Amen.

4 MS. TUBBS: Okay. So I'm done with you all, thank you
5 so much for this little bit of time.

6 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you. I really appreciate
7 your report. Any questions or comments? And hearing none
8 again, we thank you for your report and the amazing work
9 you're doing in this community. With that, now we will
10 move quickly to new business. Both of the reports from
11 our Citizens Complaint Committee and our Policy Report
12 have no action items. And so for the second time, I'll
13 ask that our colleagues read that. And if you have any
14 questions, be prepared to respond to those at our next
15 week's meeting. Is there any further new business,
16 Commissioner Bernard?

17 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Most of our audience is gone,
18 but for those of you who are still here, and certainly
19 for my colleagues on the board and in the department, I
20 want to wish every woman in the room a Happy Mother's Day
21 and a Blessed Mother's Day. And for those persons who are
22 present, who are men who have served in the role of both
23 mother and father of their children, Happy Mother's Day
24 to you as well. Happy Parents' Day. Thank you.

25 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Any new business Commissioner

1 Moore?

2 COMMISSIONER MOORE: Yes. Very quickly, Mr. Chairman.

3 I know we accepted the resignation of Commissioner

4 Gamble.

5 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Yes.

6 COMMISSIONER MOORE: Has the mayor given any

7 timetable when he's going to replace?

8 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: No.

9 COMMISSIONER MOORE: Thank you.

10 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Any further new business?

11 Hearing none, the Chair entertains a motion for

12 adjournment.

13 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: So move.

14 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Is there a second?

15 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: It's been properly moved and

16 second. All those in favor, please signify by saying,

17 "Aye."

18 COMMISSIONERS: "Aye."

19 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: All those opposed? "No." The

20 "Ayes" have it. This meeting is adjourned. Thank you.

21

22

23 (Meeting Adjourned at 9:04pm)

24

25

(

(313) 47:20,21 93:2,3 99:12
(phonetic)incidents 86:18

0

0.04% 41:24

1

1 6:24 9:19 15:24 25:24 27:9
36:25 47:11 84:8 96:6

1% 25:10

1,535 7:18

1,910 7:16,17

10 19:2

100th 29:13

10:00 100:22

10th 38:15 39:1 62:13 82:9,19

11 35:20 66:19

11% 35:16

11.5% 41:22

1154 63:23 91:12

11:10 36:5

11th 100:24

12 5:5,11 42:8

12000 82:21

12842 84:7

12th 28:7 29:10,15,24 53:6
100:23

13 55:21

1301 8:24

13th 8:25

14 36:9

141 43:23

14th 9:3 100:24

16 35:23 38:17 40:8

16,000 38:2

161 36:2

16th 8:23

17th 82:20 100:16 101:7

18 7:2 54:1,3,14

1800 36:20 37:13 38:8

18270 23:18

189 7:11

1966 39:11,13

1973 84:19

1980s 28:7

1988 30:17

1991 15:23

1995 31:7 32:8,16

1:53 36:22

2

2 2:4,8 9:20 20:23 25:24 35:22
37:3 43:25 44:4 53:7,25 66:4
68:13 75:16 83:1 86:14 88:9,
14 96:7

2% 25:9

2,600 36:6

20 3:14

200 38:22

2000 56:3

2022 23:16 57:23

2023 23:18 39:21 42:5 58:3
100:1

2024 8:23 10:14 11:21,24
12:5,9,13,16 35:4 42:5 47:7
84:6 99:1,19 100:1

20th 47:9,10 100:15

21 77:15

21st 9:5 86:14

22% 35:14

23 5:9 53:8

23rd 99:18

2499 93:3

25 14:11

2520 99:12

26 90:11

26% 99:18

27% 35:15

27th 29:16 47:6

28 44:17 55:9

28% 35:15

29th 101:9

2nd 2:3 11:24 12:5,9,13,16
35:3 58:3

3

3 6:23 8:4 14:11 17:13 37:3
38:23 52:6,22 53:8 59:1,3
61:8 75:16 86:11,15 99:19,20,
25

3,400 20:23

3,800 36:23

3.2 75:5

300 43:18 64:1 99:16,19

31 53:7

31st 61:5 101:11

32 58:3

335 7:9

33rd 36:23 37:8 67:23

34 85:20

35 53:6

35% 99:24

36.4% 41:20

375 7:17

39 36:9
3:00 8:23 86:15
3rd 101:8

4

4 6:24 7:5 35:20 40:19 45:2,21
52:22 78:4 90:6 91:25 98:10
4.7% 41:25
40 28:10 29:9 77:23
442 7:8
45 35:19 40:17
48209 62:22
4:00 62:14
4:15 37:16
4th 36:5 64:2 86:2,10 94:1

5

5 27:8 36:22 42:8 45:21 59:7
5,017 36:1
5,178 35:25
5.8% 44:21
5/7 38:25
50 5:11
50% 5:12 35:17
50,000 86:13 87:24
55% 80:9
55.6% 42:1
575 7:10,11
5810 47:20,21
582024 35:8,13
596 47:20,21 93:2,3 99:12
5:00 9:3,5
5th 38:21 87:21

6

6 7:2 35:19,20 44:2 52:4,5
71:8 79:17
6,000 23:17
6.1 75:5
6.5% 41:21
6.6% 41:23
60 16:12
62 13:20
6:30 9:1 47:9,10 100:13
6th 38:24 53:7 101:9

7

7 3:16 5:17 11:16 16:1 61:21
66:20 74:25 75:16
7.1% 42:6 43:22
7.4% 41:24
70 60:21
70% 44:24
705 6:10,12
71 61:4
75% 44:19
77 75:2
7752 62:21
79 61:4
7th 9:1

8

8 16:1 86:16
80% 23:18
8:00 89:3
8th 9:19 10:6 15:7 16:21,24
17:4 18:1 19:15 21:21 23:18
25:24 33:5 34:16 41:8,14,18
42:20 43:6 46:9 47:5,23 48:1,

4,10,11 49:14 50:3,12 53:6
55:12 56:8 82:8 95:3,10 96:2,
3,19 97:18 99:3 100:4,10
101:1,19
8thh 41:17 51:20

9

9 38:18 75:1
9,000 24:15
90 7:18
91 61:4
911 36:12,15
92 61:5
95% 23:19
9:04pm 103:23
9th 11:21 40:20 100:24

A

abandoned 30:24
Abdullah 12:5
ability 19:7
absent 11:10,12,14
absentee 83:20 84:4,5
absolutely 47:25 91:5
abused 57:9
Academy 21:3 38:17
accept 15:11 34:1
accepted 103:3
accepting 18:23
access 45:18,19
accessible 31:12 72:14 77:12
accidents 43:3
acclaim 13:15
accolades 14:8
accomplish 5:5

accomplished 3:7
accord 97:17
accountability 56:23 57:25
66:9,11,21
accountable 67:8 71:20 72:2
98:16
accurate 7:1 70:25 81:6,16
accurately 67:5
accused 60:3
achieve 17:16 38:20
achieved 58:22
achievements 14:17
acknowledge 8:3 71:14,17
96:5
acres 24:18
act 56:16 95:21,22 97:22
Acting 3:15 8:19 11:5 69:7,8
92:8
Acting's 33:23
action 13:18,19,25 43:18
45:20 99:16 102:12
actions 14:13 28:19
active 21:10 28:11 45:1 72:16
actively 16:24 23:21 92:7
activism 14:15
activist 10:2 18:25
activities 19:19 29:4
actors 91:4
acts 57:18
actual 50:19 68:1 86:21 88:2
acutely 39:13
add 6:18 48:17 53:9 74:11
addiction 24:12
addictive 24:10
addition 5:21 31:25
additional 8:4 36:19 37:2 38:6

94:9,17
additionally 6:6 17:12 20:25
98:19
address 6:3 19:8 20:13 62:20
63:18,23 71:16 74:24 76:23
96:9
addressed 8:1 44:4
addressing 5:23 20:19,24
45:12,13
adds 13:8
adjacent 24:18
adjourned 103:20,23
adjournment 103:12
administration 16:10
administrative 3:18
admitted 35:7
adopt 18:4 21:24 26:14 33:7
adopted 30:10
adopting 23:21
ADPOA 3:19
ads 24:8
adult 17:13
advancing 21:13
advantage 25:5
advisory 17:5 28:15
advocacy 14:21 28:8
advocate 19:13 20:1 71:19
advocated 72:15
advocating 19:9 21:5
affair 92:5
affectionately 14:20 19:12
African 23:20 25:4,7,9,10,14
26:4 58:23
afternoon 8:20,21 9:16,17
12:22 34:18 55:20
again... 76:17

age 76:14
agencies 97:20,23
agency 10:13
agenda 3:6,11,25 8:15,18
11:1,4,21,22,23 27:13 46:25
57:17
aggravated 41:23
aggressors 67:19
agree 64:10
ahead 28:2 50:10 54:18 67:9
70:19 71:4 80:2 83:6 84:13
aid 35:11
Aiden 17:13
aimed 19:4 20:17
aka 100:10
alarming 90:21
alcohol 42:15
Alexander 24:1,23 26:1,10
Alicia 32:21
allegations 7:9 51:17 53:2,5
65:2 83:20 92:3
allegedly 40:8
Alliance 20:10 31:23
Allies 20:22
allowed 2:23 71:10
allowing 25:18
Almondo 38:14
Aloha 16:5,6,7 96:24,25 97:1,
3
Alright 11:19 23:9 26:25 27:8,
20 34:15 40:3 41:11 55:10
64:25 85:24 86:6 87:8 95:1
amazing 51:18 102:8
amen 2:22 3:9,10 98:25 102:3
amended 8:14,18
American 25:14 58:23 77:15
90:15

Americans 23:20 25:4,7,10,11
26:4
Americorps 20:21
Amherst 82:23
amount 81:14
amplifies 14:12
and... 90:16
Angels 32:16
animated 76:14
announcements 8:19 9:7,9
annual 28:21,22,25
antagonize 61:23
Anthony 12:16
anti-bullying 46:4
anti-gang 46:4
anticipated 94:22
apartheid 79:19
apologize 47:10 52:2 80:15
apology 61:23
App 57:5
Apparently 56:9
appoint 70:17
appointed 69:10 70:14
appreciated 40:22 95:19
appreciating 9:12
appreciation 9:20 10:12 17:1
101:7
approach 42:17 48:18 86:3
appropriately 8:1 92:13
approval 11:20,23 12:3,4,6,8,
10,12,14,15,17
approved 11:22,23,25 12:1,7,
11,18
April 4:12 7:4,16 29:16 35:18
40:19 51:20
arbitration 57:22

Archer 32:17
archives 15:11 18:4 21:24
26:14 30:11 33:8
area 31:14 37:21,22 38:1,3,7
54:11,14 62:3 93:2 99:24
areas 32:5 43:1,2 54:12
argued 59:2
arm 63:22
Armand 23:25 24:22 25:25
26:9
Armando 65:12 66:17
Arms 97:9
arrest 35:22 44:6
arrested 63:20 68:7,8 80:16
85:16
arrests 39:23 44:5 45:3 53:23,
24 54:14 66:4 86:17
arrived 27:10 36:7,9,24 37:17
arrives 18:18
Artist 31:14
artists 73:6 77:22,23
Artworks 31:16
ashamed 59:8
ASL 13:1
assault 63:19
assaulted 63:20
assaults 41:22,23
assessments 46:22
assist 5:1
assistance 36:10 37:12 52:20
assistant 39:6,16 43:12
Association 16:18 31:25
81:23
assurance 6:24
attack 64:16
attempted 87:1,2

attempting 36:16
attend 38:15 69:23
attendance 13:7 55:21
attended 28:10
attention 8:11 36:25 51:19
64:22 66:21 68:9
Attorney 12:24 43:12 58:5
69:5,8
attract 62:6
auction 75:6
audience 4:18 102:17
audience's 23:2
auditorium 47:17 61:1 100:14
August 100:24 101:9
AUSA 43:12
AUSAP 47:13
authority 57:18
automated 5:16 76:3
average 5:10
avid 16:11
avoid 98:12
award 14:1,2 65:16
awarded 32:6
awards 13:25 65:15
aware 33:24 39:13 40:5,13
61:17 93:13
Awesome 46:10
Aye 15:16,17 18:10,11 22:5,6
26:21,22 30:7,8 33:13,14
34:6,7 103:17,18
Ayes 15:19 18:13 22:8 30:10
33:16 34:9 103:20

B

Baber 86:18
baby 101:22

bachelor's 59:1
back 7:20 9:25 10:23 13:9
35:17 36:9 38:1 47:8 57:22
64:16,17,19,24 85:2 98:15,25
99:21 101:8,18
backed 50:20
backlog 6:6,8 7:19,20
Back... 91:18
bad 38:10 80:21 91:4
badge 56:18 63:25 91:11
badges 56:17
balance 85:1
ballot 83:20 84:4,5
Bank 79:3
Banks 11:9
banquet 31:11
Barber 82:12
barely 80:10
Baron 9:21
Barron 100:9
Barry 82:11
base 75:1,2 77:11
based 48:18 91:22
basically 79:16 80:14
basketball 46:1
BC 100:10
Beatty 13:2
beautification 63:18
beautiful 47:17 62:7
beautifying 30:22
beginning 11:1
beginnings 16:3
behalf 15:3 17:22 21:17 25:23
29:19 33:1 65:7
behaving 66:2

belief 14:15 70:25
believed 81:7
believes 29:5
Bell 11:10
belongs 68:10
beloved 100:4
beneficial 71:14 98:2
benefit 29:25
benefited 28:16 29:11
benevolent 14:13
Berg 99:7
Bernard 2:1,2 3:10,21 4:6,17
8:2,12 11:8 15:12 16:6 18:5
22:17,23,24 23:1 26:15 27:4
33:9 34:2 41:3,4 49:3,4,18
50:23 58:1,5,9 67:2 74:15
83:12,15 92:6,23 96:7,8
102:16,17 103:13
Bernie 55:23
bestowed 13:23
Betty 79:24 81:22
Bey 13:13 14:18 15:5,9 73:24
74:2,4,6,16,20 75:10,22 76:4,
7,11,18,20,23,25
Bey's 13:15 14:14
Bey's 14:6
bi- 100:22
biased 96:4
big 43:7 85:18,19 88:3 96:17
bigger 83:25
biggest 53:10
bigotry 71:9
biked 38:22
Bill 32:7
binder 4:12
binding 57:22

Birmingham 73:20
birthday 29:13 97:11
Bishop 32:20
bishops 83:17
bit 7:9 48:17 85:7 94:24 96:5
102:5
black 20:11,18 23:13 37:9
56:16 66:6 71:19,25 72:2,4
79:3 83:16 84:25
Blaine 36:6
blame 75:3
bless 3:5,7 61:7
Blessed 13:20 102:21
blight 30:16,24 32:18 45:13
block 15:24 35:22 36:6,23
37:22 38:2 42:13 81:23
blocking 78:9
blocks 32:2
blood 24:22
Blount 55:22 57:14,15 83:13
blue 64:14 83:18 96:3
BME 20:9
board 3:4,12,15 7:1,3 8:8 13:9
15:2 16:23 17:5,21 21:16
22:14 24:3 25:22 28:15 29:18
32:25 33:22 39:2 55:2 57:16,
18 60:9 66:19 67:7 68:19,20
69:6,7,9,10,21 70:2,6,7,13
74:6 80:23 81:1,4,7,8,10,12,
17,19 84:15,20,22 85:5,6,7
86:3,4,7 91:13 92:8,12 93:4
94:7 95:2 96:1,20 97:14 98:4
99:1,4,21 101:14 102:19
body 57:2 58:12 64:5 69:15
90:23,24 94:19
body- 40:14
bond 29:21
bonds 19:24
book 49:21

booty 69:14,19
BOPC 8:22 12:19
borders 16:1
Borgess 32:20
born 60:22 67:12 78:15
bottom 56:21
boundaries 14:9
bow 2:20
Bowens 38:14
Bowser 54:23 100:6
box 46:1
boys 20:12 69:14,19
brag 60:23 82:10
Brand 25:17
branded 25:19
Brandon 12:13 86:10
breakdown 51:15
breaking 44:23,25 46:23
Brian 54:23 100:6
brightest 16:14
Brightmoor 31:23
Brilliant 20:7
bring 19:7 32:13 52:8 82:4,22
101:3
bringing 94:4
brings 31:4
brochures 93:8
broke 23:16
brother 78:2
Brother's 20:10
brotherhood 45:24
brothers 83:9
brought 87:24
brown 3:13,15,16,21 8:20,22
11:5,6,7,8,9,11,13,15,17,18

12:21,22 27:2,3,4,5,6,7 55:18,
20 57:14 59:21 63:6 65:12
66:6,17 68:15 69:1 72:20
73:23 74:2 78:17 79:4,23
81:20 83:1 84:10 92:9
bruise 63:21
bruises 63:21
brutalizing 65:24
buckle 64:15
budget 84:16
build 24:17 37:10
building 43:19
buildup 93:24
built 64:7
bull 86:24
bump 63:22
burglaries 42:2
burglary 44:13,15
burner 73:3
Burton 11:11
business 24:21 31:1,24 38:17,
19 44:7,10 97:24 102:10,15,
25 103:10
businesses 25:15 31:19 61:20
73:1,5 77:16 78:11 80:11 87:5
88:2,3
businessman 26:7
Busters 30:16,24 32:18

C

call 2:17 15:25 27:1 36:12,15
47:20 55:21 58:16 59:16
62:11 98:6
called 24:16 25:17 49:9,20
69:14 76:12 78:20,21,22 81:7
Caller 83:4
calling 56:11,24

calls 32:23 35:24,25 36:2
52:22 88:1
cam 64:5
camera 40:15 94:19
cameras 64:5 90:23,24
campaigns 21:10
campus 54:10
candidate 70:13
cane 59:25 60:3
cannabis 23:13 25:6,9,16,19
26:3
cannabis-based 24:11
canvas 38:3
capacities 32:23
capacity 5:8,13 68:5 86:21
captain 54:23 86:10 87:25
89:2,8 90:22 91:10 100:6,7
car 57:11
cards 55:15 57:5 73:24
care 60:16 61:7
Career 38:24
caring 29:6
carjackings 35:16 42:1
cars 73:4
Carter 11:13 13:5
case 6:15,17 18:18
cases 6:8,10,12,14,21,25
7:11,16,17,18,20 50:15 53:3
59:3
Cash 57:5
casinos 56:20
Casper 42:14
cat 17:14
catalyst 30:21
categories 39:14
categorize 49:22,25

Catholic 90:11
Caucasian 84:24
caught 16:8 83:18 88:23
caused 89:19
causing 98:13
cavity 69:16
CBI 99:15
CBS 13:19
CCRS 51:21 91:22 92:21
ceasefire 45:22 46:3,7 72:7
celebrate 14:17 65:14 73:7
78:12
celebrated 4:9
celebrates 29:12
celebrating 78:13 97:12
celebration 65:21,25 86:11,16
87:16 89:4 101:12
celebrations 62:5
center 20:6,7 31:9 56:5
Central 16:10
cents 68:13
ceremony 38:11
certificate 10:11 38:19
certificates 9:11,13,20
certified 24:3
Chair 3:16 4:4 8:20 9:14,16,
18,24 10:11,21 12:22 13:11,
12 15:10,20 16:8 18:3,15,19,
22 21:23 22:9,24 26:13 27:15,
18 28:1,4 30:13 32:10 33:6,
20,25 39:17 40:23 46:10 48:7,
17 50:9 51:9 53:9,19 54:4,8,
17 55:20 58:10 61:8 67:1 71:7
73:23 76:1 79:23 86:1 92:14,
15,22,25 93:17 103:11
chairman 8:10 22:17 30:2
31:23 39:5 41:4 50:23 58:9
59:5,19 80:24 83:1 92:6 103:2

Chairperson 8:5,6,11,21 9:8,
17 10:21 11:6,7,19 13:6
15:10,14,18 18:3,6,8,12,17
21:23 22:1,3,7,16,20 26:13,
16,19,23,25 27:2,3,8,17,20,25
28:2 30:3,5,9 32:11 33:11,15,
21 34:4,8,21 35:9 39:3 40:3,
25 41:2,7,12 48:5,15,24 49:3,
19 50:10 51:2,12 53:1,13,17,
20 54:18,20 55:5,8,25 57:12
59:20,23 60:8 62:19,23 63:2,8
64:21 65:10 66:16,18 68:14,
16 69:4 70:9,11,24 71:6 73:22
74:1,5,19 75:9,21 76:9,17,19,
21,24 77:2 78:16 79:11,14,22
80:2,25 83:4,6 84:13 85:24
86:6,8 87:8 88:12 89:14 90:17
91:7,19 92:14,20,24 93:15
95:1,7,24 102:3,6,25 103:5,8,
10,14,19
challenge 81:6
challenges 4:14 10:8
Chamber 32:9
change 19:6,13 101:24
changed 59:4 84:21
channels 92:18
chaplain 2:18,22 46:24
Chapman 97:12
chapters 16:16
character 72:9
charge 50:2,22
charges 50:6 54:3
charitable 59:10
Charnita 55:22
charter 81:2,18 84:21
check 37:2 38:3 70:22 98:14
cheerleader 95:10
Chicago 60:20,22 61:7
chief 3:2 4:2,8,10,21,25 6:2
8:16 12:19,23 34:13,16,19,23
38:15 39:5,7,16 40:17,24

42:8,18 44:21 47:1 51:4,14
54:16 55:11 57:23 62:24 65:3,
6 69:18 81:11 91:10 92:20
93:2 94:9
Chief's 39:2 99:11
chiefs 64:12
child 58:18
children 19:23 29:3 31:7
32:22 71:22 90:10,15 95:19
102:23
Childrey 100:8
choose 16:20 56:22
Christian 14:1
churches 97:24
CI 4:4,7,19 76:1,5 91:14 92:22,
25
Cinco 61:14 63:1 67:14 72:23
73:2 85:3 86:10,12 87:14,19,
23 93:11 95:15
circumstances 36:17 71:10
citations 35:20 69:13
citizen 5:2 7:8,10,11 9:4 46:15
51:16 70:17 71:1 92:24
citizens 7:24 45:10 51:25
52:25 53:2,12 58:15 69:19
72:14 83:10 93:1,12,14 97:23
99:7 102:11
city 2:25 3:2 6:17 10:18 13:24
15:3 17:22 21:17 23:21 25:13,
23 28:16 29:19,22 30:22 31:5,
9,15,25 32:2 33:1 53:11 60:19
62:3,7,11 67:13 68:2 69:15,20
70:3,4 71:10,19 79:21 80:13,
14 81:18 83:10,17,18,21,24
84:1,18,21,24,25 85:12 86:22
88:6 96:9
city's 77:5 81:2
Citywide 32:19
City... 84:9
civic 21:13 29:14 97:24

civilian 66:8 67:7,21 68:19
92:23
clarification 53:14
clarify 51:3
clarity 27:13
classification 49:11
clean 30:25 31:6 32:19
cleanup 32:18
clear 53:2 68:18 87:2
clergy 83:15
clerical 81:8
clerk 83:18
Clerk's 13:24
click 45:14
Clinton 32:7
closed 6:11 7:11 12:2,3,4,8,
12,15 26:3 73:8 86:19
closing 61:20 101:14
closures 42:14
cloth 83:15
club 73:2 77:22,24 86:20
88:10,11
CMDR 41:11,13 46:11 48:14
49:11,24 50:7 52:1 53:9,15
54:17,19,22 55:6 86:7,9 87:18
89:1 90:1,6,22 91:5,15
co-founded 31:25
co-founder 30:16
code 42:12 64:14 93:2
Coffee 39:1 100:21
coffin 84:3
coined 32:16
Coldest 83:2,5,7
Coleman 9:21,23,24 10:3,10
60:13 70:5 84:20 100:9
collaborate 79:6

collaborated 45:1
collaborates 16:24
collaborating 79:9
collaboration 19:21 78:19,25
collaborative 32:1
colleague 23:9
colleagues 93:22 102:13,19
Collective 32:2
college 16:9 20:10,16,18 24:4
59:2
color 20:12 64:14
comfortable 82:5 85:11
command 71:13 86:2
commander 48:8,10 49:4
72:13 86:9 89:24 91:10,17
93:25 94:15 100:5 101:5
commanders 28:16
commanding 41:14 52:22
commendable 10:18 13:20
commends 15:4 17:23 21:18
33:2
comment 2:6,7 55:15,18
80:22 91:11,20,21 92:11 93:7,
9
commenter 68:25
commenters 63:3 76:22 87:9,
12 90:18
commenter's 88:13
comments 34:14 48:25 53:18
55:14 60:8 65:4 87:10 91:24
94:17 102:7
commission 2:16 3:14 26:4,8
51:2
commissioner 2:1,2 3:10,21,
23 4:6,17 8:2,12 11:8,9,10,11,
13,15,17,18 15:12,13 16:6,7
18:5,7 21:25 22:2,17,23,24
23:1 26:15,18,24 27:4,5,6,7
30:4 33:9,10,25 34:2,3 35:9

39:4,5,20 40:2 41:2,4 48:6,7,
11,15,16,25 49:1,3,4,18,19,20
50:5,23 51:3,11 53:21 54:4,16
58:1,9 62:23,24 67:1 70:21
72:12 74:15 82:24 83:2,12,14
84:10,11,14 89:23,24 90:2,20
91:2,6,7,9 92:6,23 93:15,16
96:6,10 97:3 102:16,17,25
103:2,3,6,9,13,15
Commissioner's 13:9
commissioners 3:4 8:4,9 11:5
15:2,17 17:21 18:11 21:16
22:6 25:22 26:22 27:10 28:18
29:18 30:8 32:25 33:14,23
34:7 40:14 55:2 60:9,11 65:1
68:19 69:10,22 70:3,6,7,13,14
81:11,13 84:15,21,22 87:10
93:5 96:1,15,25 101:15
103:18
commitment 10:15 14:2,15,21
20:2,8 21:4,13 26:6 29:23
committed 19:9 24:8 30:21
98:7
committee 9:2,3,4 17:7 28:14
67:1 75:17 81:14 102:11
committees 99:2
communicate 67:20 101:4
communicating 51:24
communication 19:17 67:16
94:15 99:3
communications 55:13
communities 14:22 20:8 21:9
70:1 72:6 77:12 85:18 87:6
98:21 100:25
community 4:1 8:25 10:2,4,5,
16,17 12:20 13:22 14:15 15:7,
25 16:18,20,22 17:4,15 18:1,
25 19:4,8,11,12,15,18,23,25
20:2,9,20,23,25 21:21 23:19,
22 26:6 28:6,20,22 29:12,15,
24 31:12 32:5,12,18 33:5
34:11,15 37:12 40:4 41:15,16
42:11,13 43:10,17 44:14,16
45:1,3,15 46:20,25 47:19 48:3
51:16 52:9,10 56:5 62:5,13

63:12 64:8 65:17,20,21,24
66:6,10,12 67:5,9 69:11,23
71:9,11,18,21 72:11,12,13,17,
24 73:6,7,9 74:22 75:17 78:14
80:20 82:2,3,6,9 88:13 89:11,
22 90:4,10 92:7 94:12 95:3
96:4 97:18,20,22 98:2,7 99:4,
6,8,10,13,15,17 100:12 102:9

community's 36:4

Company 23:13

compared 36:1 42:5

comparison 39:11,15

complained 92:16

complains 60:7

complaint 9:4 70:18 71:1
91:16 92:17,23,24 93:4,6 94:5
102:11

complaints 4:23 7:8,10,11,25
45:13,14 48:9,13 51:25 52:13
64:1 69:12 74:10 85:3 88:2
92:3 93:10,11,21

completely 64:17

completing 20:22

comprehensive 63:5 68:24

Compstat 52:14

concentrated 25:19

concern 78:18 79:8,15 80:8

concerns 5:23 6:4 8:1 74:12
76:23 79:16 93:13

concludes 33:17

conclusion 19:10

conditions 85:23 101:22

conducts 100:22

Conference 14:2 32:9

confidence 5:2

confident 91:22

conflict 46:16

confused 80:6

confusion 27:11

congrats 81:24 82:8

congratulate 15:8 18:2 21:22
26:9,12 33:6

congratulations 15:19 18:13
22:8 27:9 33:16 49:5

connection 91:20

connections 19:17

considered 7:19 54:12 74:13,
14,17,18

consisted 54:2

constantly 96:11

constituents 6:13

constitutionally 52:11,24

construct 99:2

construction 23:15

consultant 19:1

contact 36:19 37:13 38:8
53:12 58:7 99:10

context 53:14

continual 101:5

continually 101:4

continue 2:25 3:3,5 45:4,8
62:9,12

continued 29:14 84:19

continues 19:12 20:4

contract 57:23

contribute 72:6

contribution 10:19 33:4

contributions 14:10 15:6
17:25 21:20 29:14,20

convene 100:16

convention 60:19 61:7

conventional 14:9

conversation 77:7 90:4

conveyed 37:24

convinced 32:17

cooperative 94:16

coordinator 89:9

Cop 39:1 100:21

cops 67:18,24

copy 92:9

Corporation 79:6,9

corporations 31:3

correct 51:1,9,10

Corrections 43:14

correctly 56:10,13,22

correspondence 3:17 97:8

council 3:2 6:18 13:4 16:22
19:16 22:10 25:13 28:7,9,12
29:15 47:5 69:19 95:3 97:18
98:3,10 100:12

Council's 28:13

Councilman 47:12

Councilwoman 90:8

counseling 45:19

counter 46:5

countless 28:15 63:17

countries 79:1

country's 32:12

counts 17:14

County 13:24 50:1,18 70:22

couple 29:16 39:23 72:10
74:12

coupling 14:4

court 58:12 59:3,8 60:4

courteous 98:12

courts 59:7

cover 3:4 56:12

covered 61:15

COVID 23:16

Craig 13:13 14:6,18 15:5,8
create 31:19 84:22
created 5:15 25:16 70:3,6
creating 19:5 31:6
creative 24:23 31:16
creator 26:7
credits 38:20
crime 26:4 35:8,13 36:19
37:13 38:8 39:8,12 41:16,19
42:4,7,18,23 43:4,5,21,22,25
44:1,11 48:3 49:8 50:11,22
55:1 77:20 99:6,13,14
crimes 35:16 36:4 50:12 55:1
criminal 41:20 58:20 70:21
critical 20:19 40:12,13 48:21
criticized 60:2
crowd 42:12 85:18
crowds 85:19 87:2
crucial 19:16
Crystal 47:7 100:8
Cuevas 61:9,11,12 62:20
culture 78:13
curfew 42:15
current 7:17 39:12 52:16
custody 44:6,7 45:9
custom 40:11
customer 25:3
cut 79:5
CVI 43:16
Cynthia 69:2 72:21

D

damage 71:17,18
damn 61:4
danger 66:1

Dario 100:11
dark 36:15
Darling 12:16
data 35:8,13 42:19,22 49:12
date 7:2,15 35:24,25 36:1
40:18 43:24 47:15 101:13
dates 47:24
daughter 57:9
daughters 95:19,21
Davis 13:3 83:3 84:10,11,14
day 2:23 29:1 38:22,24 45:17,
21 61:3 65:22 67:25 73:5,7
85:3 86:11,12 87:15,23
100:15 102:20,21,23,24
days 7:18 10:15 17:4 40:17
44:17
DBB 30:19 31:4 32:2
DC 34:18,23 35:12 39:17,25
40:23 41:1 50:9,11 51:1,9
53:19,21 54:8 68:21 75:9,10
85:24 86:1
DDC 86:18
de 61:14 63:1 67:14 72:23
73:2 85:3 86:11,12 87:15,19,
23 93:11 95:15
dead 36:7
deal 4:15 42:24 67:25 68:1
91:3
dearly 9:25
death 22:12
deaths 51:4
Deborah 97:12
debriefing 40:12,14
decade 28:17
decades 14:11
deceased 36:11 37:4
deceived 57:15

December 100:17,24 101:12
decided 63:11 64:3,4,18
decline 99:18,20,24
decorum 87:9,13 88:14 90:18
dedicated 6:6 15:5 16:12
17:24 18:25 20:1 21:19 33:3
dedication 10:14 13:21 14:8
20:11,24 38:11 48:2
deeds 14:4,17
deemed 50:16,21
deep 28:17 91:3
deeper 65:8
deeply 14:19
defense 49:21 50:17
define 49:9
degrees 16:9
delegate 21:12
deliberations 81:4
delicious 29:1
delivered 94:14
demeanor 51:22 65:3
Democratic 21:11
demographic 84:18
demonstrate 20:11
demonstrates 21:4 84:4
Dennis 32:17
department 4:24 5:3 10:12
15:4 17:23 21:18 30:1 33:2
35:1,5 40:11,16 43:14 60:17,
24 61:14 68:21 78:19 79:5
80:17 81:13,25 82:3,7 84:2
92:18 98:9 102:19
deployment 42:10
Deputy 34:19,23 62:24
describes 17:17
description 81:5

Deshante 2:18
desiring 67:9
desk 2:10 91:17
Desoda 81:23
detail 35:17 59:5
detain 79:17
detained 53:25 78:4 79:2
detainment 61:21
detective 44:4 50:13
detectives 35:3,4,6 36:16,18
37:5 38:1,5 50:13
determination 49:14 50:18,20
determined 9:2 36:14 37:5
47:1,13,14 51:7 101:13
determining 57:24
Detroit 4:24 5:3 8:23 9:5
10:12,18 15:2,3,4 17:6,21,22,
23 20:6,7,9 21:12,16,17,18
23:14 24:7 25:15,17,22,24
26:11 29:19,21,25 30:1,15,16,
21,23 31:15,17,20 32:1,8,9,
13,25 33:1,2 36:20 37:14 38:9
43:18 53:11 62:8,14,21 63:15,
18 64:7 67:13 69:15 73:1,17,
20 77:17 78:19 79:4,5,17 80:9
81:13,24 82:2 83:11,17,21,22,
24 84:1,9,18,23 85:4,6,13,17,
20 90:12 94:3,24 99:10,16,17,
19
Detroiters 15:23 24:2
Detroiters 29:11
Develop 99:1
developed 5:22
developing 10:3 21:4
development 23:15 24:25
31:22
developments 62:8
dial 99:23
dictate 66:12

die 10:1
Dietrich 41:13 100:5
difference 14:25 17:16,18
20:3 87:18
digestible 94:12
dignity 52:10
diminish 86:21
direct 66:9 82:13
direction 7:23 59:18
directly 4:18
director 24:24 30:16 81:9
directors 96:20
disabled 35:1
disciplinary 58:21
discipline 57:19,24
disciplined 57:21
disclaimer 95:11
disconnect 65:16,19
discovered 37:2 38:2 56:8
discussion 34:5
dishes 29:1
disparaging 83:14
dispatched 36:6,22 37:16
disperse 89:19
dispersing 61:19 65:25
disposal 46:19
disrespect 56:18
disrespectful 67:19
disseminate 98:1
distinct 96:7
Distinguished 14:2
distribution 24:19
District 2:3,4 3:24 9:19 11:16
25:24 47:11 69:19 71:8 72:16
84:8 96:6,7

districts 96:16
disturbances 98:13
dive 91:3
diverse 62:10 98:20
diversity 19:10 21:7,8 98:17
Dodge 37:7
dog 17:13
dogs 45:4
dollar 26:2
dollars 17:6
Domestic 35:3
donate 82:22
donated 29:1
donating 29:3
donors 31:4
don't 50:17
Doobie 25:17
door 55:16
Doordash 57:4
doors 78:10
dope 56:18 83:23
downhill 77:24
download 91:1
downtown 50:14 54:9 85:13
DPD 23:20 38:17 43:15 46:8
47:23 57:19 90:12
DPS 38:23
Draft 10:15,17 39:24 53:23
54:13,14 65:20 66:3 88:18
drag 35:17 42:13
draw 51:19
drawing 99:21
dream 90:12
Dreamkeepers 14:1
drinkable 25:20

drinking 85:15 87:1
drive 94:24
driving 29:12 35:5 45:14
dropped 57:9
drove 37:8
drug 74:13,14,17,18,23
drugs 24:10
due 23:15 35:2
Duggan 69:11
Duke 24:4
Duly 76:17
Durango 37:8
duration 70:17
Durhal 13:4
dynamics 97:16
dysfunction 80:14

E

earlier 22:11
early 38:7 98:5
earned 58:25
earning 14:9
earth 59:15
easier 5:18 23:3
Easter 16:25 19:19
easy 94:1
eat 100:2,20 101:17,19,20
eating 101:21,25
edible 25:20
educate 66:8
educated 62:3
education 17:11 46:5
educational 20:14,19 21:1
97:21

effective 77:10
effectively 4:21
effects 24:12
efficiencies 6:19
efficient 5:15
effort 5:14
efforts 10:14 13:20 31:13,18
EI 73:2 86:20 88:10
elapsed 76:19
elected 12:19 16:23 19:14
21:2,12 66:20 70:15 84:20
97:13,14
election 28:13 84:7,20
elections 84:1,3
Elementary 38:25
Elijah 17:13
Ellsworth 81:23
email 86:22 93:7
embedded 43:5 45:16
embrace 16:14 98:20
Emilio 74:3 78:17
empathetic 48:22
emphasizes 14:3 21:8
employees 23:19 57:19
employment 4:10
empowering 19:5
empowerment 20:2,20
encourage 62:1
end 5:8,12 7:3,15 79:7 86:25
100:1
ended 86:15
enduring 14:14
enforce 43:3 66:13 89:13
enforced 65:19
enforcement 5:1 19:25 26:8

35:18 42:11,12,15,22,25 43:1,
20 45:11,24 97:20,23
engage 17:3 67:7 90:3
engaged 23:21 25:11 28:11
engagement 21:8,13 42:11
51:25
engagements 42:15
engage... 90:3
engaging 29:3 98:8
engineers 43:19
enhance 97:21 99:3
enhancing 10:5,20
enjoy 68:3
enjoyable 19:23
enjoyed 29:3
enjoying 67:17,25
enjoys 17:12
enlightened 23:13
enrichment 46:15
ensure 28:23 51:24 62:10
91:23
ensuring 10:15
entered 37:7
entering 44:23,25 46:23
enterprises 24:20
entertains 15:10 18:3 21:23
26:13 33:7 34:1 103:11
enthusiasts 25:5
entire 10:13
entirety 3:24
enumerated 81:2
equals 23:13
equates 38:20
equity 19:2 21:2,5,9
Era 99:16,24

Eric 39:7 55:22 83:13
Ervin 2:19,22
essence 14:12
ethic 19:7
ethical 98:17
evening 2:1,5,17,25 3:25 4:4,6
41:11,12,15 59:22,23 61:11
63:7,8 69:3,4 71:5,6 72:21
74:4,5 81:21 84:11 86:7,8,25
92:8
event 61:15 68:3 82:1 86:19,
23 87:7 88:3,10 89:9,16 90:25
93:11 99:4 100:18
events 19:23 28:21 38:21
41:17 46:15,25 47:19 62:5,6,
15 72:11,12,13,22 80:12,13
82:6 88:9,19 101:6
Evergreen 16:2
everyone's 13:7
evidence 38:2 56:18
evidenced 13:22
evident 14:18
evolve 84:19
Evolves 54:10
Ewing 39:7
exact 7:7 41:20 47:15 52:16
87:23
Excellent 55:8
exciting 62:9
excuse 11:10,11,13 34:10
41:22 52:9 53:10 54:19 87:11
90:17
excused 11:9
executive 17:5 24:21 30:15
81:9
exemplary 14:23
exemplifying 98:8
existing 30:25

expect 52:3,9,10 53:15
expecting 7:2 44:3
expeditiously 28:3
experience 19:2 21:6 77:21
101:16
experienced 77:20 101:16
experiences 17:10
expired 37:19 76:9
explain 92:19
explanation 67:16
expressed 93:23
extend 62:12
extended 61:2 86:16
extends 14:8
extensive 20:21
extensively 44:14
extra 52:20
extract 25:18
extremely 7:13 63:13
eye 23:3
eyes 42:15

F

Facebook 47:22
faces 61:13 63:14
facilitated 19:3
facilitating 19:16
facilities 25:11 31:11
facility 23:17 24:16,18
facing 19:8
fact 5:7 45:2 60:10 85:12
87:14 94:4,5
facts 50:19 93:18 94:18
fair 76:21 83:25
fairly 4:21

faithful 14:11
fall 96:16
fallen 38:11
falls 94:6
falsely 57:17
familiar 61:13
families 46:3
family 17:4 22:12 23:12,21
29:13 48:23 56:17 59:12
71:25 90:15 97:12
fan 16:11 95:11
farmland 32:3
fast 76:13
fatal 37:15 40:22
father 2:22 102:23
father's 32:23
favor 15:15 18:9 22:4 26:20
30:6 33:12 34:6 103:16
favorable 97:19
favors 56:12,25
fax 93:6
FBI 44:8
FBIATF 43:13
feature 13:19
federal 43:13 44:11 59:7
74:14,17
feed 29:1 71:22 82:19
feedback 34:24 35:13 67:4
feeding 82:19,20
feel 4:17 45:9 56:17 58:7 66:5
67:4 73:13,15,16,21 78:14
80:20 82:5,8 85:8 90:14 93:20
feels 85:11 93:19 98:23
fell 86:12 87:15,23
Fellow 21:2,3
Fellowship 24:5

felony 35:21
female 53:25
Fenkell 40:7
Fernandez 56:9 74:3 77:14
78:17,18 79:13,15
Fertile 32:1
Fiesta 73:2
fighting 54:1,2
figure 7:20 68:12
file 71:15 91:16 92:21 93:3,6,
21
filed 71:1
final 6:15 37:14 57:18
finally 12:14 30:11
find 27:23 58:1 81:18 84:16
findings 91:13
fine 40:2 41:6 100:9
fines 80:17
finish 23:11
finished 5:20 45:15
Fire 36:9
fired 37:6,23
fireworks 88:18 100:16
Firm 31:25
firmly 71:9
fit 59:6
fix 45:14
fixture 28:20
Flight 32:18
Flip 13:23
FMR 84:11,14
focus 20:11
folks 87:19 88:2,4
follow 39:6,15 40:21 42:7
45:21 46:17 47:22 50:23 92:4,

12
follow-up 94:5
food 13:21 20:13,16 78:2
82:22 86:21
foot 23:17 24:16
footage 40:15
footprint 53:24 54:1,3,5,6,7,9,
13
force 29:12 65:4 80:9 84:17,23
85:1
Ford 20:10,16 37:16,25
forefront 32:14
foreign 90:13
foremost 8:5
forever 29:22 43:11
form 5:16
formal 11:4 31:8
format 94:10
forming 99:9
forward 2:5 7:15 8:18 9:10,12,
13 23:8 34:10,16 55:13,18
86:6 89:23 93:18 94:18 95:4
forwarded 48:9
Foster 69:1 71:5,7
fostering 10:17 19:11,17,24
found 13:17 51:21 53:4
foundations 31:3
founder 24:6
founding 31:23
frankly 59:10
fraud 83:20 84:5,6
Fred 13:4
Frederick 38:13
free 4:17 32:3 58:7 83:25
freeze 23:15
frequent 99:3

frequently 24:7
Friday 82:20 86:2 88:1,8
friend 68:7
friends 29:13
front 2:10 44:20 47:20
Frontline 21:2
fruits 32:3
frustration 67:16
full 5:8,13 31:11 89:7
fully 6:11
fun 28:23
function 99:5
funding 79:8
Fuqua 13:13,15 14:6,13,18
15:5,9
furthering 32:23
further... 91:7
future 16:15

G

Gail 15:21 16:8,16,24 17:6,24
18:2 47:9 96:22
Gamble 3:18 33:25 103:4
Gang 85:14
garden 32:5
garnered 13:19
gas 36:13,14 44:6
gateway 74:23
gather 2:24 50:4
gave 16:15 83:11,12
General 6:9 7:22
General's 5:24
generally 87:21 100:13
generation 16:9
generations 29:11 62:11

gentleman 2:8 3:12 94:10
gentlemen 2:2 8:3 23:6 58:13
genuine 14:16
George 18:16 27:10,21 30:12,
14,15,24 32:6,20,21 33:3,6,16
George's 31:13
Georgia's 31:6
Gestapo 80:18
giant 43:7
gift 29:8 57:5
girl 68:6 77:15
give 2:8 4:7,11 6:22 41:15,19
47:24 52:15 57:10 67:2 71:3
75:1,16 80:8 93:8 96:24
giving 75:10
gloves 36:15
goal 4:25 17:9,19 97:17
goals 99:1
God 3:5 95:19
good 2:1 3:24 4:4,6 8:20,21
9:16,17 12:22 34:18 41:11,12
44:24 52:1 55:20 59:22,23
60:2,12 61:5,11 63:7,8,15
67:13 69:3,4 71:5,6 72:21
74:4,5 81:21 82:22 84:11
86:7,8 94:7 100:20
goodbye 97:1
government's 71:21,22,23
grab 10:24 62:20
Grace 29:7
Gracey 99:10
graciem800@detroitmy.gov.
99:13
graduate 16:9 24:3 32:20
38:19 58:24
graduates 38:17
graduating 38:18

graduations 47:19
Grand 13:13,15 14:6,12,18
15:5,8 32:15
Grandmont 99:8
grandparents 71:23
grandsons 17:12
grassroots 19:3 30:20
grateful 13:7
grave 3:19
gray 37:7
great 4:14 14:19 17:17 29:19
33:21 38:24 100:25
Greektown 54:11
Greenlight 43:8
Greer-travis 38:14
greeted 64:3
grievance 3:19
grievances 63:4 68:22
ground 23:16 32:1
grounded 14:16
grounds 32:4
group 6:6 20:11
grouped 39:14
grouping 39:21
groups 98:19
grow 68:12
grower 24:14
grown 30:19 32:22
growth 25:11 98:7
guard 16:8 88:22,24
guiding 16:13
gun 40:8 46:19
guns 43:23
gunshot 37:1,3,19
guru 55:1

guys 43:1 50:5 63:13 65:18
66:2,10 67:13 69:7,17 70:2
78:5 79:8 90:2,20,21 91:2
101:19

H

hail 96:23
hair 37:10
haircut 100:9
half 5:18 38:20 68:10,11
half... 76:6
hall 85:5
Halloween 16:25 19:20 29:4
101:10
hand 64:24 98:5
handed 83:18
handle 49:15
handled 49:16 50:12,14 51:5
hands 13:20 73:15
hands-on 48:22
happen 61:3 87:19 93:25 94:6
happened 36:21 63:1 70:1
73:17 86:5 95:16
happening 27:23 68:1 72:19
73:19 84:6 94:18
happy 5:6 102:20,23,24
hard 7:13 48:2 57:25 64:22
73:8 90:23
hardworking 43:23
harms 88:16
Harrison 18:19,24 19:6,11,14,
25 21:19,22 22:9 97:8
Harrison's 20:5 21:6
Harvest 24:16
Hawaii 16:3 96:23
Hawkins 69:5,8

Hawks 20:15
He'll 60:16
head 2:20 4:2 26:10 36:9 37:4
64:16
headed 23:23
headquarters 8:24 9:6 38:12
69:23,25 99:11
healing 95:15,17
health 10:7 35:24 36:2
healthy 10:8 31:6
heaping 29:2
hear 40:20 55:6 62:16 63:13
65:10,11 74:10,24 75:11 80:1
83:5
heard 10:7 28:19 37:6,23
38:23 61:24 65:4 73:13,16
75:8 78:10 83:13 84:12
hearing 2:6 11:22,25 12:6,10,
17 26:16 34:5,15 55:10 75:5
102:7 103:11
heart 56:2,15 77:13
heartfelt 96:15
Heavenly 2:22
Heights 73:18
held 71:20 72:1 80:13,14
helicopters 42:16
hell 60:12,19
helped 28:23 31:19 64:9
helpful 94:20
helping 31:21
helps 19:19 31:1 82:14
Henry 20:10,16 37:16,25
herd 26:11
heritage 65:21
Hernandez 8:8 11:17 15:13
26:18 27:5 34:3 48:15,16
93:15,16 103:15

heroes 32:12
He's 49:1
high 17:9 32:20 42:25
higher 7:6,10 71:13
highlight 5:4 20:18
highlighted 13:21 71:12
highlights 4:11 21:12
hills 16:3
hire 77:6
hired 5:6 75:19
hiring 77:4 81:4
Hispanic 83:9,16 85:17
historically 26:3
hit 64:16
hitting 60:3
hold 2:16 63:2
Holderbaum 86:7,9 87:18
89:1 90:1,6,22 91:5,15 93:25
94:15
holding 63:22 67:7
holds 25:15
holiday 67:17 78:12 99:4
100:15,18 101:12
home 14:21 31:1 35:2,7 60:21
62:11 68:6,11 73:3 78:15
100:2
homeowner 15:24
homes 30:25 32:15
homicide 39:12,18 49:7,9,10,
16,21,23 50:7,15,24 51:5
homicides 35:14 39:9,18
41:20 49:15,16,23 50:13,20,
25 51:4
honest 84:1 98:16
honestly 77:19,20 78:14
Honolulu 16:3 96:23

honor 15:20 17:14 29:13
honorable 86:7
honored 38:13
honoring 9:11 13:13 14:23
15:21 27:18 28:4 30:12,14
honors 13:23 25:25 59:2
hoodie 36:15
hookah 13:17
hope 13:8 61:5 62:9 101:11
hoped 94:23
hopes 17:2
hoping 6:16 17:16 81:15
hospital 29:7,8,9 35:7 37:16,
18,20,25 56:7
hospitals 56:25
hosting 9:1
hotline 57:5
hour 5:17 65:15 76:6
hours 5:17 20:23 86:15,25
89:4
house 31:15 83:22 96:2,18
houses 30:24 83:21,22,23,24
HR 77:5
humble 16:2 96:2
hundred 75:2
hunger 20:19
hurt 68:7

ice 80:21
idea 101:23
identified 43:2 45:5
identify 36:16 52:7 55:17
90:20 91:4
identifying 2:12

II 23:7 24:2 26:1,10
III 13:4
Ilitch 38:16
illegal 79:19 86:19,23 88:4,7
illegals 77:19
imagine 88:12 89:17
immediately 3:12 79:7
impact 4:1 14:19 19:22 20:4
34:11,15
impactful 14:4
implemented 5:15
importance 14:4
important 53:13 63:13 72:24
imposing 57:18
impounded 35:21
impressive 83:13
improve 29:23
improvement 87:5 94:13
improvements 6:5 62:8
improving 5:1 15:6 17:25
20:12 21:20 33:4
in-house 46:21
incident 36:5,17,18,21 37:11
38:4 40:19 41:5 48:21 50:19
73:17
incidents 36:3
include 50:24
included 7:19
including 25:19 31:14,19 59:7
94:8
inclusion 21:7,9
inclusivity 98:22,23
income 73:5
incoming 3:17
increase 99:2
increased 17:2 42:10 84:16

indebted 29:22
independent 93:21
individual 100:25
individually 95:12
individuals 13:18 19:10 31:4
61:21 92:21 98:19
industry 25:5 26:3
inevitable 14:22
information 2:12,15 3:13
36:19 37:13 38:6 39:10,25
42:19,22 43:9 49:13 50:4 65:5
77:12 98:1
informed 62:4
initially 51:5
initially... 51:4
initiate 97:20 98:2
initiative 5:22 26:2 32:16
initiatives 19:4 20:13 31:14
injured 34:25
injuries 35:6
injury 35:2
injustice 78:7
insecurity 20:13
inside 53:23 64:5 79:20 89:17,
20
insight 62:25
Inspector 5:24 6:9 7:21
inspectors 75:19,20
inspire 17:8 98:7
inspiring 20:4
instances 50:15
instilling 5:2
instrumental 31:21
insurance 32:19
integrated 24:13
integrity 5:3 98:8,15

intelligence 43:6
intend 67:2
interested 99:9
interfaced 93:12
intern 16:23 21:6
international 23:25 84:5
internationally 30:20
interpretation 58:11
interpreter 13:1
interrupting 98:12
intertwined 14:13
intervention 43:17 88:22
99:15
interviewed 69:6
intimidate 64:6
intimidated 69:24
intimidates 64:7
intimidation 89:19
introduce 101:23
introduction 11:4 12:18
invaluable 10:19
inventory 3:20
investigate 4:22 36:7,23 37:17
65:3
investigated 6:11 35:19,20
63:24
investigation 36:12,18 37:11
38:5 65:7,9 71:2
investigations 6:1,2,4
investigative 83:19
investigator 4:3,9,11,21,25
6:2 8:16 12:23,25 13:2 34:13
51:14 64:23 65:3,6 81:11
91:11 92:1,20 93:2 94:9
investigators 5:7,9,10,11,19
6:7,20,23,24 7:2,13 75:21,22
77:6 93:13

invitation 62:13
invite 28:9 41:8 45:18 95:4
invited 86:1
invocation 2:19
involved 40:6,22 92:7
involvement 16:18 20:15 21:9
ironic 56:4
Isam 38:15
Island 32:10
Israel 79:1
issue 56:6 83:25 87:4
issued 35:20,23
issues 19:8 20:19 22:11 32:14
45:12 59:12 62:15 67:25 68:6
82:1,14 101:3
is... 79:8
item 3:10,25
items 2:15 102:12
it... 76:8
it's 15:14 18:8 22:3 26:19
30:5 33:11 34:4 49:21 70:21
103:15
I'll 26:18
I'm 40:23 65:15

J

Jacqueline 34:19,23
jail 52:12
James 22:10 25:13 28:9 84:8
January 99:19 100:1
Jasmine 12:25
Java 31:15
JD 58:25
Jennifer 32:15
Jerome 4:1 12:23

Jesus 8:7
Jesus' 3:9
job 6:7 26:7 56:10,13,22 57:21
60:2,12,19 62:2 63:15 67:14
71:21,22,23,25 75:23 76:12
81:16 90:12 93:25
jobs 61:25
jockey 75:6
John 18:16 27:10,21 30:12,14,
15 33:3,6,16
Johns 47:7 100:8,21
join 14:23
joined 3:22 8:4 28:6 46:8
Jonya 12:25
Jordan 12:13 23:7,25 24:23
25:25 26:9
Josh 63:6 65:12
Joshua 61:10
journey 14:6
joy 16:15
Jr 25:14
Juices 31:16
Julia 74:2
Julie 77:14
June 6:16 8:25 47:2,3,14,15
100:15,16,23 101:9

Junior's 84:8
justice 19:2 20:1 21:5
justifiable 39:8,18 49:10,21,23
50:17,21,25
justified 49:25
juveniles 53:25
juxtaposition 66:2

K

Kayla 12:9

Keda 97:7
Keeper 20:10
Keita 97:7
kids 19:20 38:22 46:17
kind 39:22 63:14 66:9 79:20
89:17 98:12
king 95:20,21,22
Knight 32:17
knocked 48:11
knocking 78:10
knowing 68:11
knowledge 28:17
kudos 82:17,24
Kylan 72:21
Kym 50:16

L

Labelle 12:24
laboratory 24:10 25:4
ladies 2:1 8:3 23:6 58:12
Ladon 13:3
lady 91:15 97:6
Lahser 99:7
laid 42:18
landing 13:19
language 13:1 75:7 98:14
Lansing 24:16,18
larceny 41:24
large 61:18 97:10
largest 45:2
lasted 86:15
lastly 99:24 101:5,14
late 49:1 73:24
Latino 66:6 73:1 78:11

launching 20:15
law 5:1 19:25 26:8 43:3,20
49:22 58:20,24 59:4,12 65:19
89:13 97:20,23
laws 89:12
lawyer 58:6
lay 80:7,23
LCA 54:12
lead 51:25
leader 14:7 17:18 28:9
leaders 12:20 17:17 21:3
28:16
leadership 14:1,3,4,13,16,24
15:6 16:10 17:24 19:6 21:1,4,
19 33:3 38:17 41:9
leading 8:12 51:20 94:1
leased 52:10
leave 3:18 68:11
led 99:6,13
left 8:6 14:22 54:23
leg 40:10
legacy 23:14
legal 58:11 59:11 69:7 70:12
88:2
legally 26:5
letter 33:24
letters 6:12
level 17:7 66:21 74:14,17
89:15,18 102:1
Lever 41:11,13 46:11 48:14
49:11,24 50:7 52:1 53:9,15
54:17,19,22 55:6 97:6 100:5
101:5
leverage 7:14
Lewis 26:10 86:10
liaison 81:10,12 97:23 99:11
Liberty 3:23 8:7 9:15,18 13:11
96:6

license 88:6
licensed 24:14,15 26:5 59:7
licenses 25:16
licensing 80:12
lieutenant 38:13 100:7
life 16:17 17:8 20:12 31:5
45:12 61:2 77:21 78:6
lifelong 94:2
Lift 3:1
lifted 68:23 92:4
lifting 2:24
light 23:4 32:6 101:4
lighting 47:18
lights 64:23
likewise 63:4
limitations 65:1
Linda 2:2 58:5,16 60:1,15 67:1
96:7
link 24:25
Lisonya 12:25
listed 49:7 82:16
listen 71:11 96:4
literally 44:20 52:8 54:6 76:5
live 16:21 57:8 62:12
lived 90:9
Livernois 82:21,23
lives 14:25
local 23:19 28:9 31:22 38:23
location 9:1 37:2,6 86:22
locations 25:9 86:21
lock 46:19
locked 45:6 56:14
loitering 87:1
long 72:1 90:10,25
longer 79:6

Lord 60:4,6 61:5
Lory 65:13
lost 90:3
lot 5:18 46:12,13 52:15,17
56:8,11,25 64:11,12 69:22,24
72:9,15,17 74:24 77:16 78:1
84:23 85:3,4,14 86:24,25
87:24 88:1 96:12
Louis 23:7 24:2 26:1
lounge 29:8
love 9:25 10:6,9 55:6 60:17,21
67:13 97:1 100:4,5,6,11
lovely 61:13
lovingly 15:25
luncheon 101:7
Lydia 61:9 63:6 78:3
lying 83:18

M

Maciel 61:9 63:6,7,9 65:8
Mackinac 32:10
Madam 3:16 4:4 50:16
made 33:24 36:14 39:23 40:5,
13 44:4,6 53:3,6,23,24 58:12
59:13 61:17 65:2 80:20 87:16
91:21 94:13
mafia 56:17
main 79:7 98:9
maintain 87:9,13 88:14 90:18
major 74:7 79:16
majority 85:17
make 4:15,22 5:14,22 6:5
7:14,25 14:24 17:16,18 19:22
20:4 26:18 30:18 31:5 39:14
40:23 42:19 44:20 45:2 46:18
48:2 49:14 50:17 53:12 55:14
59:24 64:3 67:15 68:18 82:17
85:11 87:3,6 91:20,22 92:17
95:5,10,13 97:15,16 99:23

101:16,20
makes 5:18 6:25 50:17,20
68:6
making 7:23,24 20:3 23:14
98:23
male 20:11,18 36:15 37:9
53:24
man 60:15 72:2 83:15
man's 71:25
management 6:15,17 24:9,21
42:12 48:19
manager 24:24
mankind 26:11
manufacture 25:18
manufacturer 24:14
manufacturing 24:19
March 58:3 98:5 100:17
marginalized 19:5
Marie 13:4 72:22
marijuana 13:18 23:23 25:15
74:12 87:1
mark 14:22
marked 14:7
market 25:18
marketing 24:25
Marshalls 54:10
Masonic 31:8
master's 58:23
material 25:19
materials 49:6
matter 5:7 45:2 58:20,21
62:25 70:21 91:21 98:24
matters 65:3 73:15
Maybury 38:25
Mayo 61:14 63:1 67:15 72:23
73:2 85:3 86:11,12 87:15,19,
23 93:11 95:15

mayor 3:1 32:17 70:15,16
100:10 103:6
Mayor's 96:8
mayors 32:13
MBA 38:21
Mcnichols 37:22 38:7
MDC 43:14
MDP 54:2
meaning 7:17
means 76:5,7,8 97:1 98:23
measure 99:14
measures 66:10,11 88:21
99:7,23
mechanical 86:24
media 13:16 61:10,13 63:6
65:12,14
mediation 46:16 90:5
Medic 36:9
medical 25:8 36:10,25
Medicine 24:4
medics 36:11,24
meditation 32:5
Meeko 79:24
meeting 2:17,18 3:6,8 8:12,22,
25 9:3,4 11:24 13:8 28:10
31:11 40:4 47:11 55:3 58:2
62:13 69:22 74:8 85:6 89:9
90:6 91:25 92:8 98:4 100:18
102:15 103:20,23
meetings 9:2,5 47:5 67:2
100:12,17
meets 9:3,4
Mega 31:22
Meijer 31:22
member 8:8 13:4 17:5 20:22
22:10 45:3 66:19 70:15
members 21:10 35:1 38:11,
13,18 60:11 65:17,21,24

66:20 71:18 93:8 96:16 97:10
membership 99:2
memberships 17:3
memorial 38:12 100:15
men 17:13 20:12 23:13 71:20
72:4 96:3 102:22
mental 35:24 36:2
mention 4:20 101:6
mentioned 88:15 90:7 92:2
mentioning 40:10
mentor 19:1 52:6
mentoring 20:17 46:2
message 52:23
Mexican 77:15 80:8 90:15
Miami 23:25 24:1
mic 35:10
Michelle 97:5
Michigan 14:10,20 16:10 20:6
21:11 23:23 24:4,6,16 25:1
32:15 43:14 59:3 62:22 67:22
68:1
Michigan's 21:7
Michiganian 32:7
mics 90:24
midnight 89:3
Mike 38:16
mile 15:24 16:1 47:1 86:14
military 77:17
mind 65:5 101:24
mine 27:16
minister 55:22 57:14,15 60:6
73:24 74:2,4,6,16,20 75:10,22
76:4,7,11,18,20,23,25 83:13
ministers 83:17
minority 85:18
minute 90:25 95:6

minutes 2:8 11:24,25 12:1,3,4,6,7,8,10,11,12,14,15,17,18
misconduct 92:3
misrepresentation 80:10
missed 40:12 52:2 73:5
mission 4:20 16:19 97:13,17,18 98:3
mistaken 47:7
Mitchell 18:21,23 97:10
moment 9:10 22:22
moments 67:14
Monday 47:6 89:8 100:13
money 56:19 57:4 76:16
Monteith 59:2
month 4:12 5:8,13 7:3 38:18 39:7 40:5 44:2 47:6 51:19 52:17 60:20 99:19,25 100:13
monthly 9:2 47:4,11 100:23
months 5:6 7:5 99:20
monumental 74:11
Moore 11:15 22:2 27:6 35:9 39:4,5,20 40:2 48:6,7 51:2,3,11 53:21 54:4,16 72:12 82:25 91:8,9 103:1,2,6,9
Moorish 14:3,7
morning 38:8 40:24 52:5
mother 101:21 102:23
Mother's 102:20,21,23
motion 15:10 18:3,13 21:23 26:13,17 27:9 33:7 34:1,9 103:11
motivated 73:10
motor 31:9,15 41:25
mouth 64:18
move 9:10,12,13 10:25 11:3,20,23 12:2,7,11 30:1 34:16 55:12,18 87:2 95:2 99:23 102:10 103:13

moved 15:12,14 18:5,8 21:25 22:3 26:15,19 30:5 33:9,11 34:2,4 103:15
moving 7:15,23 8:18 34:10 89:23
MSTA 14:11
multi-billion 26:2
multiple 25:15 35:6 73:1,3,4
Myra 99:10

N

nail 84:3
named 32:7
Nancy 27:12,18,24 28:5,6 29:20
narcotic 24:10
Nasser 12:5
nastiness 64:11
nasty 64:4
National 13:25 16:25 28:22 101:9
nationally 25:10
native 24:2 30:15
nature 59:10
navigate 17:10
nearby 36:13
needed 38:20 46:22
negotiate 59:17
negotiated 57:23
negotiations 6:15
neighborhood 16:17 19:20,21 30:17,19 31:18 32:14 46:11,15 99:11
neighborhoods 28:8 29:25 31:7 79:4 101:3
neighbors 30:18

Nest 20:15
Network 13:25
newly 16:23 97:13
news 13:20 32:8 38:10 51:18
NFL 10:14,17 39:24 81:25 88:18
nice 6:25 61:12
Nicholas 23:6,24 24:22 25:25 26:9
night 16:25 28:22 52:5 89:5 101:9
Noble 97:11
noise 42:11
non- 40:21
non-emergency 46:13
non-fatal 35:14 40:5 41:21
non-permanent 86:19,24
non-residents 62:7
nonprofit 30:17
north 37:8
noted 76:17
notes 38:9
notified 37:18
noting 9:9
November 97:14 99:18,25 100:17
NPO 82:13 100:7,8,9,10,11,21
NPOS 82:10,16,18
Nuggets 23:13,16,17,19,20,22 24:11,13 25:15 26:5
number 5:7 6:4 7:20 25:7 50:3 51:20 53:5,6,7,8 60:13 61:19,20 69:18 70:18 75:16 91:11 93:1 99:12
numbers 4:12 7:4,9 41:20 75:1,3 77:11
numerous 14:8 19:4 25:1

29:14 83:14

O

O'HARA 15:25 16:18,19
O'HARE 101:8
Oak 73:19
oath 83:10,11,12
objection 11:21,25 12:1,6,9, 10,14,16
objections 11:22
objective 17:7
objectively 4:22
observance 87:15
observe 17:3
observed 36:7,24
occur 93:23
occurred 36:5 37:15 39:21 48:21 50:11 62:15 84:6 95:15
occurring 40:21 62:8
OCI 3:20 51:15
October 100:24 101:11
offer 46:22
offered 40:17
offering 16:14
offers 31:11
office 4:2,8,10,20,25 5:11,24, 25 6:1,9,19 7:16,21 8:1 13:3, 4,5,24 47:20 50:16 51:7,15 52:8 65:2 77:4 81:11 93:2,10
officer 9:21,23,24 10:2,10 12:5,8,13,15 38:14 40:6,9,22 41:14 52:23 63:23 64:9 78:4 82:11,12,13
officer's 33:23 57:24
officers 3:3 13:10 19:21 28:15 29:2 34:25 36:6,7,22,24 37:1, 5,16 38:1 43:23 46:12,24 48:2 50:3 51:21,24 52:4 53:4 56:3,

4,6,16 57:7,20 58:14 63:19,25 64:8,11,12 69:14,15 70:8,18 78:8 83:8 84:17 88:7 89:2 90:21,24 93:12

offices 6:8
officials 12:19 21:2 62:17
oil 25:19
on-duty 35:2
one-on-one 46:1
ongoing 31:17 93:24
online 93:4,5
only... 42:1
onsite 24:10
open 2:17 34:13 42:15 64:18 84:1 87:3 89:5,7,20
opened 23:17
Opening 85:14
openings 66:24
operated 26:5 79:20
operating 5:10
operation 13:23 23:23 34:20
operational 31:10
operations 24:22 34:24 43:5 45:4,23
opinion 69:7 70:12 82:7 96:2
opportunities 25:2 66:24
opportunity 2:13 34:12 68:22 70:16 100:25
opposed 15:18 18:12 22:7 26:23 30:9 33:15 34:8 103:19
Oprah 32:11
options 16:14
oral 55:13
order 2:18 43:4 98:20
orders 61:25
organization 30:20 31:8

organizations 10:5 19:3 20:5 72:9 97:25

organize 19:19
organizer 18:25
organizing 62:5
outcomes 20:12
outstanding 6:7 52:13
Overcrowding 61:18
overhearing 77:18
overseeing 81:14
oversight 66:8 67:7 68:20 94:13
overview 6:22 41:16
owned 25:9 73:1 77:16 78:11
owners 31:2 44:10
ownership 25:14

P

pain 24:9,12
Palestinian 79:2
palpable 14:3
panic 64:15 80:18
pantry 13:21 20:16
paper 2:9,10 76:15
parade 82:1 86:13,15 87:14, 21,22
paramount 89:23
parcel 77:6
pardon 29:5 75:10
parent 17:13
parents 29:4
Parents' 102:24
park 15:25 16:18,19 73:4 99:8 101:8,9
Parker 28:9 82:11

parks 30:25 38:23 65:13 68:15
69:1,3,5 70:10
part 2:3 35:15 42:4 43:11
66:19 77:5 97:9 98:5
participate 66:25 97:21
participated 46:7
participating 82:18
participation 13:7 20:17,25
98:18
parties 35:23
partner 43:8
partnered 43:11 44:8,15
partnering 43:20
partners 43:8,13
partnership 44:9,16
partnerships 42:13 43:11
party 21:11 37:22 42:13
passes 18:13 27:9 34:9
passing 52:23
passion 16:12 19:1 20:18
96:13
passionate 20:1
past 29:23 31:24 32:13 35:18
61:14 95:17
pastors 83:16
path 17:11
patience 92:13
Patient 24:9
patients 29:7
patrol 3:3 99:7,9
pay 3:18 57:22
paying 66:21
peace 31:16 82:4,5
Peacenic 47:13 101:7
pedestrians 89:6
peers 67:10

Peggy 97:11
pending 52:15,18
Pennsylvania 58:25
people 3:8 16:20 19:7 21:3
31:1,4 35:19 52:7,12 56:8,11
58:13,15,16 59:10 60:3 61:24
62:11 67:24 68:4 69:22,24
72:11 73:3,9 74:8 75:3,4,7,11
80:16,20 82:5 85:4,8,13,14,16
86:13,16,24 87:24,25 88:7
89:19 94:4 96:13 100:20
101:4,20,23
people's 43:18 78:10 99:16,17
percentages 77:11
Perez 65:12 67:10
perfect 95:11,12
perform 77:24
period 4:16 7:7 74:22 99:19,
25
permanent 86:23
permission 23:2 58:10
permits 77:18 80:12 88:8
persistent 44:22 45:7
person 6:25 36:7,14,17 44:5
52:19 56:13 73:14 88:6
personal 102:1
personally 52:9 58:7 94:19
personnel 4:24
persons 102:21
perspective 67:12 87:25
Phoenix 20:6
phrase 32:16 90:13
physician 23:24 26:7
picked 98:10
picnic 28:23 32:4
pictures 57:6
piece 2:9 68:8,13 73:21

pieces 2:10 98:6
pillow 102:2
pioneering 26:2
pivotal 13:17
place 2:24 8:23 9:5 14:20 40:6
62:10 72:18 88:21
places 88:5
plain 75:7
plan 5:22 99:4,22
planning 73:6 98:4
plans 24:17 42:8 88:20
plaques 38:11
plate 82:14
plates 29:2
platform 93:20
platforms 13:16
play 45:25 57:4 99:17
plays 19:16
pleased 5:6
pleasure 2:5 41:13 61:12 96:8,
9
PM 8:23 9:1,3,5 36:22 62:14
86:15 100:13
podium 23:8
point 18:18 32:6 42:8 57:1
64:22
points 98:20
point... 82:25
police 3:2 4:24 5:3 8:8 10:5,
12,17 12:4,8,12,15,19 13:9
15:2,4,7 16:22 17:1,21,23,25
19:21 21:16,18,20 25:22 28:6,
15,18,19 29:1,15,18,21,24
30:1 32:25 33:2,4,22 34:16
38:14 42:8,10 44:16,21 46:5,
11,13,24 47:16 48:10 52:23
55:2,11 56:3,4,7,16 57:9,10
60:17,24 61:18 63:15 66:13
68:19,20 69:10,18,21,25 70:2,

6,7,8,13 72:3,25 77:17,25
78:4,8,19 79:5 80:9,17 81:10,
13,24 82:3,7,19,24 83:7,9
84:15,17,21,22,23 85:1 88:22
89:12,17 92:18 93:4 95:3 96:1
98:9 101:7,15

policies 66:25 67:3 71:16

policing 42:16

policy 9:2 32:9 66:13 67:1
102:11

political 21:10,14

poor 79:3

populated 53:11

population 88:19

populations 19:5

position 70:14,16

positive 10:17 14:24 19:5,22,
24 20:4 30:21 38:9 44:12

positively 47:25

post 57:6

post-secondary 17:11

posted 45:22

posting 81:16

posts 73:12

Potato 31:20

potential 70:12 71:14,17

power 56:25 66:12

practices 43:4 46:3 77:3

pray 3:9

prayer 95:14

precedent 59:3

precinct 9:1,19 10:6 15:7
16:21,25 17:4 18:1 19:15
21:12,21 23:18 25:24 28:7,11,
16,20 29:2,10,15,24 33:5
34:17 38:21,24 39:1 41:9,14,
17,18 42:20 43:6 46:9 47:5,23
48:1,4,10,11 49:6,14 50:12,13
51:13,17,18,20 53:6,7,11

55:12 64:3,6 67:23 82:8,10,
20,23 86:2,10 91:16 94:1
95:3,11 96:2,4,19 97:18 99:3
100:4,10 101:1,2,19

precinct's 29:4

Precious 100:10

predict 88:19

predominantly 84:24

prejudice 73:11

prepare 17:8

prepared 102:14

prescribe 24:11

prescription 46:19

presence 8:4 29:6 42:10 83:8
89:18

present 3:11 9:22 10:8 11:7,8,
17,18 12:23 13:14 15:22
18:16,20 23:5,8 27:19 29:23
50:5 59:22 61:15 73:8 90:8
102:22

presentation 44:20 47:14
51:16 95:2

presentations 46:4

presented 50:19

president 11:15 16:24 25:13
31:24 32:7 81:22 96:22 97:4

Presidential 84:7

pressing 19:8

Pressley 8:5,11,21 9:8,17
10:21 11:6,19 13:6 15:10,14,
18 18:3,6,8,12,17 21:23 22:1,
3,7,16,20 26:13,16,19,23,25
27:2,8,17,20,25 28:2 30:3,5,9
32:11 33:11,15,21 34:4,8,21
35:9 39:3 40:3,25 41:2,7,12
48:5,15,24 49:3,19 50:10
51:2,12 53:1,13,17,20 54:18,
20 55:5,8,25 57:12 59:20,23
60:8 62:19,23 63:2,8 64:21
65:10 66:16,18 68:14,16 69:4
70:9,11,24 71:6 73:22 74:1,5,
19 75:9,21 76:9,17,19,21,24

77:2 78:16 79:11,14,22 80:2,
25 83:4,6 84:13 85:24 86:6,8
87:8 88:12 89:14 90:17 91:7,
19 92:14,20,24 93:15 95:1,7,
24 102:3,6,25 103:5,8,10,14,
19

prestigious 13:25

pretty 91:15 96:22

prevent 72:18

prevention 99:6,14

previous 20:5

previously 72:15

price 57:3

pride 73:7

primarily 67:6

Primary 84:7

prior 88:21

Prisoner 32:15

Pritchett 34:19,23 35:12
39:17,25 40:23 41:1 50:9,11
51:1,9 53:19,21 54:8 62:24
68:21 75:9,10 85:25 86:1

privilege 17:14

Pro 25:13

proactive 85:7 88:17

problem 18:22 32:11 43:2
46:23 54:20 58:17 66:1 68:9
74:7 82:17

problems 52:7 68:1 71:15
74:22 84:23

procedure 51:22

process 6:13 77:5 80:6 92:17
93:22

processes 62:4

processing 6:20

processors 24:15

product 24:25 25:16

productivity 13:8

products 25:2,6,20
professional 53:16 59:8 80:5
professionalism 52:4
professionally 58:7
proffered 84:2
program 24:5 38:18 45:22,24
46:4,7,19 79:7
programs 19:4 20:17 21:1
28:21 31:10 41:17 45:16
46:20 97:21 98:2
progress 4:14,15 7:24,25
progressive 21:13
project 24:24 32:1
promote 97:19 98:1,18
promoted 58:4,14
promoting 19:10 21:8
promotion 57:25
pronounced 36:11 37:4
proper 92:17,18
properly 15:14 18:8 22:3 30:5
33:11 34:4 85:9 94:13 103:15
property 26:19
Prosecutor 50:18 70:23
Prosecutor's 51:7
Prosecutors 50:1
protect 50:3 64:13 71:23,25
83:10
protected 62:6 73:14
protecting 60:25
protection 72:25 95:14,18
protests 73:11
proud 15:24 41:18 58:21,22
59:13 64:10
provide 2:19 9:10 37:13 40:11
41:1,9 51:14 67:4 68:21 92:9
provided 29:6 36:10

providing 19:22 32:3 36:24
72:25
public 2:6,7 8:24 9:6 10:6,16,
20 15:6 17:25 20:22 21:20
29:23 31:1,16 33:4 42:9
55:14,15,18 63:3 68:24 76:21
83:18 86:25 87:3,4,9,11 88:13
90:18 91:11,21 92:11 93:9
98:22 99:11
publicly 48:20
pulled 40:8
purchased 31:8
purpose 98:3,6,9
purposes 25:8
put 2:11 54:24 55:3 57:3 60:25
61:3 76:15 88:21 94:8
puts 84:3

Q

Qasem 38:15
qualification 80:4,23
qualified 69:6
quality 5:1 6:24 45:12 49:12
question 39:22 41:5 49:4,8
51:13 52:1,2 53:22 58:19
66:19 69:9,17 71:2 73:11
80:4,22 87:13 91:9
questions 8:16 34:12,14 39:3
40:4 41:7 48:5,24 51:12
53:18,22 55:11 58:17 61:23
62:15 66:14 74:12 87:10
91:24 102:7,14
quick 49:4 62:21 95:25
quicker 75:23
quickly 28:3 50:24 96:22
102:10 103:2
quorum 2:14 3:11 8:9,14,15,
18 10:25 11:3,20 34:11
quote 17:17 24:22

R

race 75:6
racially 73:10
racing 35:17 42:13
racist 77:20 78:1
Radden 23:6,7 24:2,8,23
25:25 26:1,9,10
Radden's 26:6
radio 43:10 99:7,9
raid 80:8,21
raiding 77:17
rainy 2:16
raised 60:22 64:24 67:12
78:15
ran 37:24
ranging 51:22
rank 71:15
rape 56:12
raped 56:13
rapid 42:10
read 22:18 23:2 27:15,21
30:11 58:2 70:5 102:13
ready 56:2 60:3 100:1
real 16:15 43:9 49:2 62:21
79:15 95:25
real-time 43:8
reality 31:7
realize 65:20
rear-ended 35:4
reason 39:10 49:1 67:19 76:11
reasons 54:24,25 86:5
receive 4:22 8:19 22:13,14
27:22 86:22
received 7:7 22:21 93:10
recent 13:15 14:14

recently 31:21
recitals 47:19
reclaim 32:2
recognition 14:9,14 26:8
46:20
recognize 52:19 85:8
recognized 30:20
recognizes 15:4 17:23 21:18
25:25 32:12 33:2
recommendation 77:10
recommendations 4:23
reconciliation 89:15
record 22:18 27:22 30:11 58:2
64:5 83:19 91:21
recorded 64:4 91:23
recording 64:18 97:6
recovered 35:22
recovering 35:2
recreational 25:8
recruitment 72:16
Redford 31:24 99:8
reduce 99:14
reduced 5:16
Reentry 32:15
referring 42:4 70:18
refers 14:20
regime 79:19
regional 17:6 21:6 32:9
regular 83:22
regulations 62:4
Reid 100:11
reinvestigating 6:14
reiterate 92:16
relate 58:17
related 2:15 6:1 24:20 35:24

39:8 41:5
relates 5:9 6:19 39:12 59:12
62:25 67:8 81:3
relational 93:24
relations 10:5,18 15:7 16:22
18:1 19:15 21:21 28:7,22
29:15,24 33:5 95:3 97:18
100:12
relationship 89:22 97:19
relationships 19:24
relative 34:14 70:12 87:11
relaxed 101:23,25
release 80:16
released 40:18 45:6 86:17
reliable 98:16
Relief 31:17
remain 8:14 10:22
remains 28:11 29:11
remark 58:10,12 59:13
remarkable 14:17
remarks 59:9
remedies 24:11
remember 100:7
remiss 48:1
Remo 40:6
renovate 30:25
renovated 31:8
rent 31:12
reopen 7:21
reopened 6:11
repair 46:3 89:15 93:23
repairing 89:21
replace 103:7
report 3:12,17,20 4:1 5:16,19,
21,24 6:10 13:10 33:23 34:11,
15,16,17 39:2 41:10 50:24

51:14,16 52:2 55:12 76:5
83:19 84:2 87:11 92:24 102:7,
8,11
reports 5:17 39:2 64:3 76:3
102:10
represent 2:3 3:23
representation 98:18
Representative 13:5
Representatives 12:20
representing 9:19 11:16 18:16
66:22 67:5
represents 66:23
reputation 58:21
request 2:18 3:19 40:24 58:3
requested 89:8
require 3:11
requires 57:23
research 23:14
reserve 47:21
reserved 47:22
residence 29:22
residency 24:5
resident 93:19 94:2
residents 10:4,16 15:3 17:22
21:17 23:19 24:7 25:23 28:8,
15 29:19 31:22 32:4 33:1
61:20 62:2 73:20 79:18 94:22,
23
resignation 3:17 33:24 34:1
103:3
resolution 11:2 13:12 15:11,
21 18:4,15,24 21:24 22:10,13,
18 23:1,6 26:14 27:12,18,21,
24 28:4 30:1,10,12,14 33:7
46:16 97:9
resolutions 9:13 13:11 22:25
28:3 33:18
resolve 14:24 88:16

resolved 15:1 17:20 21:15
25:21 29:17 32:24 82:15,17
resonates 14:19
Resource 31:9
resources 7:14 17:9 42:24
45:20 46:14
respect 56:20 98:8,11
respected 62:6 98:24
respectful 52:24
respond 50:3 68:22 76:10
102:14
responded 35:22 38:1 80:4
responding 49:15 50:2
response 42:10 51:23 61:18
63:5 68:24 80:25
responses 61:24
responsibilities 72:5 81:1,3,
19
responsibility 65:2 92:5 94:6
96:17
responsible 45:10
responsive 68:17
rest 92:12
resting 35:7
restorative 43:3 46:2
result 88:20
resulting 61:19
results 43:21 44:12
resume 80:5 83:13
retail 23:17,22 25:9
retailers 24:15
retire 100:6
retired 16:11
return 8:17 33:18
returning 85:2
revealed 36:12

revenue 73:5
Reverend 4:1 8:2
review 40:14 45:21 81:5
reviewer 6:24
reviewing 36:13 57:19 67:3
94:19
revitalization 30:17 31:18
revitalizing 30:22
Rewards 36:20 37:14 38:9
rewrite 81:16
Rhonda 18:23 97:10
Ricardo 82:24
ride 10:1 52:20 57:10
rights 19:9 50:4
ring 86:20
riots 73:12
risk 24:12 48:19
Road 16:2 23:18
roads 78:9
rob 44:11
robberies 35:15 41:23
robbery 41:22 44:1,5,7
Robert 3:13
rode 38:22
Roe 12:9
Rogers 82:12
role 13:17 17:19 19:16 71:20
72:2 81:6,8,17 92:4 102:22
roles 20:5
roll 26:25 52:22
Romero 90:8
Ronald 69:1
rooftop 42:17
room 55:15 56:19 58:4 59:5,
14 87:4 102:20

rooting 10:1
Rosedale 99:8
Roundtable 21:7
row 101:8
Roy 3:18 33:25
Royal 73:19
Ruffin 97:5
rules 62:4 89:12
run 32:14 45:23,24

S

safe 3:1 19:22 30:19 31:6
45:14 46:16,18 48:3 73:17
87:3,7
safety 9:6 10:6,16,20 15:6
17:25 21:20 28:20 29:23 33:4
43:19 46:20,21 87:4 98:22
99:11
sales 24:25
salesman 32:20
salutes 29:20
Santiago 90:8
Saturday 29:16 36:5 38:7 86:3
88:1,9
Saturdays 47:11
save 61:3
scene 36:10 37:4
scholars 17:6,7
school 17:9 32:21 38:16,22,25
46:16,17 90:10
schools 38:23 46:5 90:11
97:24
scratches 63:20
Script 13:24
searches 69:16
seconded 26:20

secretary 3:15 8:19 11:5
12:21 19:15 80:5,23 81:2,4,7,
8,17,19 92:9 97:7,8

secretary's 3:12 70:14

section 8:17 49:17

secure 25:2 31:21

security 37:18 73:21 97:22

seeking 27:13 36:3 37:12

see... 25:3

selected 32:8

self- 49:20 50:16

self-defense 49:22 50:21

selling 13:17 88:5,6

send 42:24

senior 6:24 13:2 46:15

Sensations 31:20

sense 19:11 67:15 68:6 89:21
94:3

sergeant 38:14 52:21 97:9
100:8,21

serve 17:15 24:23 41:14 59:15
66:11 81:10,12 83:10

served 17:4 28:13 29:2 102:22

serves 14:23 17:6 19:14 28:14
101:1

service 10:19 13:22 14:2,8,22
16:12,17 20:21,23 24:19
26:11 29:5,14 35:25 36:2
51:22 55:9

services 5:2 45:20 46:24
61:13

serving 16:21 20:2,8,24 21:11
26:6

session 12:4,8,12,15

sessions 12:2,3 46:2

set 3:7 17:17,18 79:23

setting 59:3 88:4

sexual 41:22

shame 59:9 72:5

share 44:19 65:5 91:12 92:11

shared 23:12 51:18

Sharp 100:11

Shawn 100:8

Sheik 13:13,15 14:6,12,18
15:5,8

Shelby 18:20,24 19:25 21:19,
22 22:9 97:8

Shelley 86:9

Shelly 93:25

shifts 52:6 82:21

shoe 66:4

shooting 36:21,23 37:7,15,17
38:2 40:6,22 67:22

shootings 35:14 41:21

shop 29:8

shops 13:17

short 37:10 95:13

Shortly 37:23

shot 37:24 40:9

shots 37:6,23 40:9

Shotspotter 78:22 79:10,12

Shotstoppers 99:15

shoulder 36:8

shout 96:15

show 78:1

showcases 20:24

showing 94:25

shut 72:25 77:16 78:11 80:11
86:23 88:7,9,10,11 89:11,16

shutting 13:17 73:3

side 24:12 40:9 63:21

sign 13:1

signage 44:10

signal 30:6

significant 7:23,25 13:19
19:22 36:3 44:5 45:3

signify 15:15 18:9 22:4 26:20
33:12 34:6 103:16

silent 2:20

simple 42:7

Sinai 29:7

sing 98:11

single 94:15

sir 13:13 48:14 67:9 76:7
87:18 89:1 90:1,9,14 91:5,14

sister 3:22

sisters 83:9

sitting 96:8

situation 90:5 91:3

skills 19:7 21:5

skinny 37:10

sky 42:16

slang 83:24

slangs 83:22,23

slightly 61:16

Sloan 12:25

smack 63:14 64:19

small 77:16 78:11

Smith 3:23,24 8:7 9:15,16,18,
19,24 10:11,21 11:7 13:11,12
15:20 16:8 18:15,19,22 22:9,
24 27:3,15,18 28:1,4 30:13
33:20 46:10 55:23 59:21,22,
24 60:10 92:14,15 96:6,10

smoking 87:1

social 13:16 19:1,13 20:1 21:5
45:16 78:7

society 71:21 72:2

solicitation 58:8,11

solidify 17:2
solutions 98:21
solving 36:4
somebody... 60:7
something's 85:10
something's 85:9
sons 23:24 95:20,22
sore 63:21
sound 78:23 79:5,9 81:21
sounds 35:12
Southern 14:1
Southfield 16:2
Southwest 62:14 73:1,17 82:2
85:4,6,17,20 90:12 94:3,23
so... 55:7 76:19
space 31:10 34:13
spaces 31:1
spawned 31:13
speak 2:7,12,13 4:17 32:9
38:16 56:3,4 60:10 63:9,11,13
67:11 68:20 72:22 75:4 76:8,
14,25 98:14
speaker 19:1 59:20 73:23
speakers 55:21 61:8 79:23
83:1
speaking 15:2 17:21 21:16
25:23 29:18 32:25 43:25 75:4
78:4
Speakup 36:20 37:14 38:8
special 28:25 43:5 45:23
56:10
Specialists 24:6
specialized 43:15
specialty 25:16
specific 42:21
specifically 48:22

spectator 35:23
speeders 43:2
spend 76:16
sphere 21:14
spiking 42:23
Spinal 24:5
spine 24:3,6
spoke 22:10 77:1
spoken 92:10 93:9
spot 54:24 55:3 94:8
sprinkling 95:17
SPU 35:3
square 15:24 24:16
Sr 2:19
SSM 24:6
stabilization 31:18
stabilizing 30:22
staff 6:22 12:19,22 22:11
48:13 69:18 81:14 96:16
stage 47:17,18 86:20,24
stand 30:18 58:5 71:8 72:4,8
standardized 77:3
standing 23:10
stands 96:12
Stansberry 37:22 38:3,7
start 2:15 5:20 71:15 81:24
84:14 95:8 100:5
started 5:21 6:3 35:17 86:16
starting 16:22
starts 47:10
state 8:24 13:5 14:10,19 24:4,
14 38:16 54:12 58:25 59:1
96:9 101:25
state-of-the-art 24:17
stated 37:21 81:18 87:14
89:16 94:11

statement 70:25 80:8
statements 57:16 58:2 72:23
States 25:1 84:7
stating 37:24 68:8
station 36:13,14 44:6
statistically 49:13
statistics 39:8,12 74:24 75:4,
11,13 94:11
status 70:19
stay 47:3 61:6
steadfast 14:15,24
steal 56:18
stealing 56:19
stems 13:16
step 82:17 94:15
Stephanie 12:24 13:2
steps 82:14
Sterling 73:18
stewardship 14:12
Stewart 13:3
stop 45:8,9 67:24 89:4
stopped 44:22
Stoppers 36:20 37:13 38:8
stops 35:20
Store 31:22
stores 44:11
story 46:6 67:11
straight 72:3
straighten 85:22
strategic 99:22
strategies 41:16 42:7
strategy 42:18,21 43:21 44:24
street 8:24 36:23 37:8 42:14
43:24 84:8 85:16
streets 87:2 89:5,6 96:11

strengthening 16:19 19:23
29:21
stretch 86:14
striking 40:9
strong 10:4 19:6
strongly 23:20 25:14
structure 17:2 99:2
structures 81:15
student 20:16
students 17:8,10 20:18
study 64:9
stuff 47:22 78:1
submitted 51:6 93:18
submitting 94:5
substantial 81:14
suburban 43:20
suburbs 31:5 87:20
succeed 17:8
success 20:14,20 46:6 49:5,6
successful 28:23 44:17 81:25
suffering 36:8,25 37:3
suggest 74:7
suggestions 67:3
suicide 51:6
suicides 39:9,20
summer 85:23
Sumpter 82:11
Sumter 82:13
Sunday 36:22 37:15 61:14
62:15 67:14 86:3 87:21,22
88:9
supervising 6:23 12:24 64:23
support 17:10 28:8,21 43:17,
18 46:24 58:18 71:8 82:6
98:21
supported 31:3

supporting 20:13,17
supports 23:20 25:14
suppression 42:14 43:4
Supreme 59:3,7
surgeon 24:3
surgery 23:3
surgical 29:8
surprised 48:18
surprising 88:23
surround 36:17
surveillance 42:17 45:4 78:20,
24,25
suspect 37:7,9 40:8,10
Sussex 84:7
sustained 35:6 53:4
Sweep 32:19
Sweet 31:20
Swept 6:17
sworn 83:8
system 6:15,17 52:18 59:11

T

T-SHIRT 37:10
table 101:25
tackling 6:8
taco 73:2
tag 57:3
takes 76:6 90:25
taking 48:18 68:2 80:21 88:22
91:2
talk 4:13 42:3 44:1 46:12 52:6,
8,21 58:15 60:5,24 61:6 67:20
75:7 82:9,10 102:2
talked 44:9,14 60:4 66:25
96:10
talking 44:22 47:24 64:19

65:18 74:25 98:12
Tamara 3:23 8:7 9:14,18 13:11
23:9 96:6
target 17:9
targeted 42:21
task 16:21 96:17
Tate 22:10 25:13 47:12 84:8
Taylor 12:25
Tea 31:15
team 17:3 43:17 45:1,13 48:8,
12 86:2 94:1,7 97:15,16
tear 30:24
technology 42:19 78:20,24,25
79:2,3,12,16,18,20
teens 45:25
Telegraph 23:18
television 24:8
telling 77:18
tells 42:23
Tem 25:13
Temple 14:11 31:9
tenants 31:10
tendered 33:25
tentative 101:11
terms 20:23
testimony 92:10
testing 25:4,11
texts 76:15
that'll 47:23
that... 49:24 54:25 76:3
That's 42:17 54:20 68:12
theater 54:10
theft 41:25
they're 56:16 57:3 75:15
the... 54:15 74:18

thing 46:25 66:7 67:21 71:7
96:13 100:3 101:5

things 5:4 68:18 71:12,16,24
72:4,9,18 74:23 76:2 83:14
86:5 88:5,14 89:11

Thinking 78:23 79:6,9

Thirdly 71:19

this... 75:8

Thomas 27:12,19,24 28:5,6,
13,19,25 29:5,10,20

thought 28:25 77:20 78:6

thousands 24:7 30:23 62:7
63:16

threat 73:8

thriving 17:15

throat 37:1

Thursday 2:17 8:22,25

ticketed 86:17

tickets 35:23

ties 10:4 79:5

Tiffany 13:2

Tiger 85:13

time 4:16 5:16,20 7:7,8 9:14
22:15,21 28:23 30:19 43:9
47:8 57:1 58:15 60:2 64:21,22
70:11 72:11 75:11 76:9,19
85:12 87:22 90:10 95:20,22
96:24 97:2 101:15 102:5,12

timeliness 5:22

times 52:22 63:17 72:18 83:14
96:14 101:22

timetable 103:7

tip 45:2

Tire 31:20

tireless 10:14 14:21 19:7
29:20,22

today 8:13 9:20 10:2 18:23
22:19 31:9 38:10,24 45:17
47:2 89:9 92:10,16 97:11

today's 7:1 51:13

told 6:16 40:7 44:8 47:2,23
60:18 64:1 75:25 76:12 77:25

tolerated 80:19

tomorrow 38:15 40:24 62:13
90:6 91:25

tone 98:14

tonight 3:5,7 46:21 91:20 93:8
97:5

topical 25:20

total 7:7,16 35:15

Touch 3:6

touched 29:10

towed 57:10

town 80:8 85:5

track 57:7

tracked 44:25

traffic 35:19 42:11,25 43:1
89:7

trail 45:7

transgressions 95:16

transit 57:9,10

transparency 43:25 56:24

transparent 43:10 74:9 98:16

transportation 25:2,3

transported 37:20

trap 83:21,22,23

treasurer 16:23 97:5

treat 66:6

treated 63:17 85:9

treats 24:7 29:3

tremendously 92:7

trend 44:2,13,15

trending 7:5,6

trends 43:25

trespassing 54:2

triggered 67:22

triple 36:21

troubled 46:7

Troy 100:11

truck 64:14,16,19

trucks 73:2

true 42:20 57:19 63:16

trust 89:21

Tubbs 15:21,23 16:5,24 17:2,
24 18:2 47:9 95:5,8,25 96:23
97:1,4 102:4

Tuesday 9:3,4 38:25

tuned 47:3

turn 9:14 13:10 55:16

turned 32:2

turnout 38:24

turns 16:17

TV 36:20 37:14 38:9 43:7
100:2

type 5:17 76:13

typist 76:13

Tyrone 13:5

U

U-M 16:11

unable 22:13

unacceptable 80:15,17,19

uncle 64:9,10

underage 13:18

undercover 42:14 57:7,8

underscore 20:7

underscores 14:14

underserved 20:8

understand 59:6 61:2,24

64:13 65:23 66:5,7,9
understanding 99:21
Understood 54:16
underway 6:3
Underwood 13:1
unduly 2:16
uniform 60:25 61:3
unique 24:13 25:17
unit 42:14 43:5,6 44:4 50:2,13,
14
United 31:16 84:6
units 43:15,16 49:15
unity 19:11
University 16:11 20:6 23:25
24:1,4,5 38:16 58:24,25
University's 59:2
unlawful 80:11
unlawfully 79:2,17
unlike 85:19
unmarked 35:5
unnoted 13:22
unsafe 93:19
unwavering 10:13 14:7,21
upcoming 41:17 46:25 101:6
update 4:7 34:25 41:1 70:19
71:3
updated 101:2
updates 40:15
uphold 83:12
uplift 72:6
uptick 42:2 44:3
urban 32:3
urinating 85:15
USA 23:23
user 25:7

V

vacant 97:10
vacates 70:15
Val 97:5
valuable 95:18
valued 98:24
values 21:14 98:10
vapes 13:18
vapor 25:20
variety 31:13,19
Varner 79:25 81:20,21,22
vast 61:19
vegetables 32:4
vehicle 35:4,5 41:25
vehicles 35:20,21
vehicular 39:9,18 89:7
vending 88:5,7
Vernor 62:21 67:24 86:13,14,
18
version 16:13
versus 49:9
vertically 24:13
Veterans 31:17
viable 31:6
vibes 73:2
Vice 8:6 9:14,16,18,24 10:11,
21 11:7 13:10,12 15:20 16:8
18:15,19,22 22:9,24 27:3,15,
18 28:1,4 30:13 33:20 46:10
92:14,15 97:4
victim 36:8,10,25 37:18,19,24
victimizing 45:10
victims 37:2,3 43:15
video 36:13 38:4
videos 40:18

view 9:6 98:20
Village 31:15,17
Violence 35:3 43:17 99:15
violent 35:16 43:4 99:14
VIPS 13:3
virtuous 14:16
visibility 42:25
vision 23:12 31:6 98:8
visitors 29:7 61:19
vocal 19:13
voice 68:8 81:22
voice... 90:3
volunteer 29:7,9
volunteering 21:10
volunteers 30:23 77:9
vote 22:18 27:9 66:22
voted 57:20
voter 83:20 84:5,6
votes 27:8 83:23,24

W

wait 22:21 41:4
waiting 37:20
walk 47:1,13 73:4
Walker 97:7
walking 45:4
walks 31:5
wall 38:12
wanted 5:14 44:1 68:23 71:7
74:13,20,21 81:23 96:19
Warfield 4:1,3,4,7,19 8:3
12:23 76:1,5 91:14 92:22,25
warm 29:6
warrants 69:16
was... 27:16 64:20

watch 2:25 3:4,5 43:7 91:17
100:2
watching 90:23 91:1
Wave 97:7
Wayne 13:24 38:16 50:1,18
54:12 58:25 59:1 70:22
ways 67:6 92:21 93:1
weapon 35:22
wearing 36:15 37:10 90:24
Wednesday 100:22
week 4:9 12:2 17:1 47:16,17
52:22 60:6 69:5 82:19
week's 102:15
weekend 35:18,19 60:18
weekly 3:20
weeks 29:16 39:23 48:21
wellbeing 97:22
wellness 24:9
Wesley 100:11
West 16:1 37:22 38:7 62:21
69:2 72:20,21,22 79:3
Western 34:19,24
we... 76:22
we're 75:6 76:13
Wheel 31:20
while... 23:10
white 37:10 38:15 57:23 80:9
85:2,14
White's 42:8
who've 8:4,13
wholesale 24:19
wholesaler 24:14
widely 25:6
wife 32:21
William 83:3
Williams 55:22,24 56:1 57:13

79:24,25 80:1,3
win 41:24
Winfrey 32:11
Wing 6:17
wisdom 28:17
wise 90:21
withhold 94:17
witnesses 37:5,20,21
woman 57:8 78:5 102:20
women 96:3
won 59:2
Woodmere 86:13
Woods 11:18 16:7 18:7 21:25
26:24 27:7 30:4 33:10 48:25
49:1,19,20 50:5 62:23,24
70:21 89:23,24 90:2,20 91:2,6
97:3
word 83:11 97:2
work 19:7 20:9 48:19 51:14
72:7,10 81:25 82:3,8 89:10
90:14 94:6,8,21 102:8
worked 28:18 32:13,22 85:20
90:11
worker 45:16
working 5:20 7:13 19:3 30:23
34:21 48:2 61:15 71:16 87:5
works 45:16 46:8
world 20:3
worn 40:15 94:19
worry 60:15
worse 85:23
worthy 26:7
Worthy's 50:16
would've 67:23
wound 36:8 37:1,19
wounds 37:3

Wow 46:10
wrestling 86:20
writes 16:16
written 57:16 92:9
wrong 85:10
wrongdoing 53:4

X

Xavier 61:8,11

Y

Yakata 13:1
year 4:8,9 5:25 7:5,6,7,8,9,12
23:15 30:23 32:8 35:24,25
36:1 42:5 43:24 56:21 61:16
67:18 68:4,5 69:13 72:17
78:12 86:11 87:6,17 88:17
100:19 101:8
years 3:14 16:12 19:2 23:14
28:10,14,24 29:9 40:8 55:9
59:1 60:21 61:4,16 77:15
85:20 87:16 90:12
yesterday 38:21
yesterday's 36:1
yes... 50:8
young 18:25 20:12 21:2,3
58:13 59:10 60:13 70:6 84:20
91:15 97:6
your... 53:8
youth 16:12 20:9 21:6 45:25
46:7 74:22

Z

zones 46:17
zoom 9:7 12:24 55:17 79:24